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E CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

In the financial year 2012/13, the global economic
environment remained challenging while showing
signs of improvement. The recession in the
Eurozone economy remained but was abating.
Together with the gradual recovery of US economy
through the third round of quantitative easing, local
investment market improved as a result of abundant
market liquidity in Hong Kong and overseas. With
the reversion to the four-year undergraduate
curriculum, funding from the University Grants
Committee (UGC) and tuition fee income increased
modestly, coupled with the incentive brought by the
Sixth Matching Grant Scheme, and a rebound in the
investment markets, | am pleased to report that the
University achieved a total consolidated surplus of
$2.7 billion in 2012/13 and a total consolidated net
assets of $15.2 billion reported as at 30 June 2013.

The financial statements reflect the total income and
expenditure for both recurrent and non-recurrent
activities funded by government or supported by
other non-government funds. The tables and charts
on pages 6 to 8 provide additional information and
analysis of the financial results of the University
by different categories and sources of funding.
Comments and highlights in the following sections
refer to the operating results of the University
whereas consolidated financial statements have
also been prepared which include the operating
results and financial positions of the University and
all the Colleges.

Income

The University’s total income increased by 52%
or $2,948 million to $8,633 million in the financial
year 2012/13, mainly caused by the increase
in government subventions, tuition fee income,
investment return and donations and benefactions
as compared to last year. Government subventions,
which include block grants, supplementary grants,
earmarked grants, capital grants and grants from
government agencies, went up by $1,131 million to
$4,423 million, due to increase in matching grants
allocated under the Sixth Matching Grant Scheme
and increase in block grants for the extra cohort
under the revised academic structure. Tuition,
programmes and other fees grew by $302 million
to $1,858 million. The fee income from non-UGC
funded programmes accounted for 54% of the
total fee income as these programmes charged
a relatively higher tuition fee than UGC funded
programmes, reflecting their different cost structure.
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Expenditure

The total expenditure rose by 10% or $561 million to
$6,060 million in 2012/13, mainly attributable to the
upward revision of pay adjustment, and the planned
increase in learning, research and support services
for the implementation of the revised academic
structure.

Expenditure on learning and research reported at
$4,897 million and accounted for 81% of the total
expenditure, confirming the University’s mission in
attaching great importance to enhancing teaching
and learning quality. On the contrary, expenditure on
Institutional Support which comprised Premises and
Related Expenses, Student and General Education
Services, and Management and General was kept
at below 20%.

Operating Results

With prudent financial management, encouraging
matching grant opportunity and improved sentiment
in the investment market, the University achieved
a total surplus of $2,573 million in 2012/13. It
comprised a surplus of $487 million from recurrent
government funds mainly due to the additional
government subventions and tuition fee income
for extra cohort. Riding on the fund-raising
impetus instigated by the Sixth Matching Grant
Scheme in August 2012, the University solicited
$509 million and contributed $448 million to the
surplus in UGC Matching Grant Fund. The non-
government funds generated a sizeable surplus of
$1,638 million resulting from the bountiful support
of our benefactors and the favourable return on
investment.

Balance Sheet Position

The University’s net assets reported a growth of
23% or $2,573 million to $13,673 million as at 30
June 2013. Investments slightly decreased by $297
million to $6,099 million due to the expiration of held-
to-maturity debt securities. On the other hand, Cash
and Short-term Deposits surged by $2,751 million to
$6,650 million as a result of parking the surplus for
the year in short-term deposits. The University is in
the process of conducting a consultancy study on
the objectives, overall strategy and asset allocation
of the Endowment Fund of the University. Pending
the result of the consultancy study, the University
will put further investable funds in a well-diversified
portfolio.
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The aggregated amount of Deferred Income
increased by 40% to $623 million, mainly arising
from the increased fund balance from earmarked
grants for specific purpose spent on capital
expenditure.

The net book value of fixed assets built up to $5,970
million, denoting an increase of 10%, mainly due to
the construction of teaching buildings and Colleges,
as well as the acquisition of equipment, furniture
and fittings to cope with the extra cohort of students.
For items acquired by funds from government or
government agencies with conditions attached,
the balance of their aggregate net book value was
treated as Deferred Capital Fund. The total amount
set aside under this category slightly rose by 8% to
$3,638 million.

The General and Development Reserve Fund
increased to $1,658 million after accounting for a
transfer of surplus of $487 million for the year in
2012/13 from the recurrent government funds.

In addition to recurring grants from the UGC
covering maintenance costs of infrastructure for
general research activities, the University has
also secured substantial funding through different
sources to support specific research projects. In the
financial year 2012/13, total grants of $205 million
were received from UGC and its Research Grants
Council. Another $439 million of research funds
came from the private sector and other sources in
the form of sponsorship or donation.

The University has continued its fund-raising
momentum and successfully raised donations of
$1,156 million in 2012/13 with the incentive brought
by the Sixth Matching Grant Scheme. The University
is grateful to the alumni, friends and organizations
for their generous financial support for its academic
development, research activities, scholarships and
capital development programmes.

In addition to the contribution of $26.6 million in the
last financial year, Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities
Trust donated another $21.7 million in this financial
year 2012/13 to support scholarships for outstanding
students and other activities. The University is again
most appreciative of the continuous support from
Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust.
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Out of the total fixed assets of $920 million acquired
in this financial year, $616 million was spent on
premises-related development projects.

The Yasumoto International Academic Park, Wu
Ho Man Yuen Building, an Integrated Teaching
Building, the Pommerenke Student Centre and
student hostels of Lee Woo Sing College and Wu
Yee Sun College were completed on schedule to
accommodate the needs for additional teaching
and student amenity facilities, while the C.W. Chu
College aimed for completion in December 2013. To
provide more space to undertake research activities
and accommodation, a Centralized General
Research Laboratories Complex (Block 2) in Area
39, and two blocks of student hostels in Area 39 are
under detailed design stage.

Dissemination of knowledge is one of the core
functions of the University. As a public institution
and in accordance with its role, the University
provides learning opportunities at sub-degree
and postgraduate levels, as well as lifelong
learning programmes, to complement the UGC-
fund academic activities. The main purpose of
the University’s self-financed programmes is to
meet community and societal needs. As a result
of the improved operating environment and the
market demand for pursuing learning opportunities,
revenues from non-UGC funded programmes
continued its growth trend by 14% and reached
$1,006 million in this financial year.

The financial year 2012/13 concluded with the
University’s accomplishment in the implementation
of the four-year undergraduate curriculum and
success in the Sixth Matching Grant Scheme. The
University has been very cautious and vigilant in its
spending, while facing more challenges unfolded
by UGC in its funding allocation mechanism.
The University is indebted to the unreserved
support of the alumni and benefactors to enable
it to solicit record-high donations and matching
grants. These gifts will go a long way towards
enhancing the strategic growth of the University. The
University has also set aside incentive and support
funding schemes in sustaining the momentum and
enhancement in capacity building, international
collaboration and development activities, research
and scholarship advancement, and information
technology support service.
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In addition to the Shatin campus, with the staunch
support of Shenzhen University and the Shenzhen
Municipal Government, The Chinese University of
Hong Kong has inaugurated the development of The
Chinese University of Hong Kong, Shenzhen, which
is a non-profit-making institution of higher education
with the status of an independent legal entity,
targeting to admit the first batch of undergraduate
students in 2014. The key mission of the Shenzhen
campus is to nurture future generations of university
graduates with CUHK’s core educational philosophy
and values.

The University is also celebrating its golden jubilee
on the theme ‘Embrace our Culture, Empower
our Future’ in 2013. While taking stock of its
achievements and contributions in the past, the
University has urged CUHK members through
the focal celebratory event ‘CU50+Care’ to reach
out to the community by contributing their time,
professionalism and strength in 2013. In marching
towards its sixth decade, the University will spare
no effort to fulfill its mission and vision as a first-
class comprehensive research university, and
its commitment to providing every opportunity to
expand students’ experiential learning horizons
in addition to achieving their academic goals.
Once again, | would like to express, on behalf of
the Council and the University Administration, our
heartfelt thanks to all our staff, alumni, students,
friends and organization for their unrelenting support
for the University.

Roger K. H. Luk
Treasurer
22 October 2013
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( Total #%8 $8.633 million BBt )

4.7%

45.3%

5.9%

Government Subventions
BUFEED
($3,914 milion B & 1)

Matching Grants
FcdtBh&
($509 million B & JT)

Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees
BE  FREREMNE
($1,858 million B & JT)

Interest and Investment Income
FE R IgE IS
($576 million B &)

Donations and Benefactions
S LY SEIEE
($1,156 million & & JT)

Ancillary Services Income
EHENARFSUIA
($216 million B & JT)

Other Income
HgA
($404 million B & JT)

Expenditure Analysis & 55 #

(" Total #828 $6,060 million HET )

3.0%

in
Wi

M

struction and Research

HERT ($4,469 millionEH & T)

brary

BEEEE ($183 millionEH & JT)
B Central Computing Facilities
FRREHEESHE ($114 millionE & JT)
[l Other Academic Services
H 2R ($131 millionEH & JT)

anagement and General

IR K —REIE ($239 million & & IT)

. Premises and Related Expenses

BFRE/EZH ($555 milionE & IT)

B student and General Education Services
B R—MWRBEET ($332 milionE & IT)

[ Other Activities
HAhE ($37 milionE & JT)



Income Analysis YA 247

Year Ended 30 June

NA=TH(F#)

Government Subventions BAFERD 3,914 45.3% 3,292 57.9%
Matching Grants [RES g 509 5.9% - 0.0%
Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees B8 .\ B REMINE 1,858 21.5% 1556 27.4%
Interest and Investment Income FERIRE UGS 576 6.7% 8 0.1%
Donations and Benefactions [ Y SEEE 1,156 13.4% 260 4.6%
Ancillary Services Income EEENBRFEUA 216 2.5% 188 3.3%
Other Income EAbUgA 404 4.7% 381 6.7%
Total ($ million) e (EET) 8,633  100.0% 5685  100.0%
Expenditure Analysis Sz 53
Year Ended 30 June NA=TH(FR)
(HK$'M) (%)
Instruction and Research HE R 4,469 73.7% 4,073 741%
Library EE 183 3.0% 169 3.1%
Central Computing Facilities FROR B RSEL I 114 1.9% 91 1.7%
Other Academic Services H {25 131 2.2% 210 3.8%
Management and General EIER—AYEIE 239 3.9% 139 2.5%
Premises and Related Expenses EFREREH 555 9.2% 508 9.2%
Student and General Education Services 24 R —M S B =T 332 5.5% 275 5.0%
Other Activities Hith=E7% 37 0.6% 34 0.6%
Total ($ million) 8% (B &) 6,060 100.0% 5,499 100.0%
Surplus/(Deficit) attributable to the following funding sources
BER/BREBNTIESE
Year Ended 30 June NA=TH(FR)
General and Development Reserve Fund  —i% & 3 R 487 18.9% 63 33.9%
Matching Grant Fund [RESge e 448 17.4% (41) (22.0%)
Non-Government Fund FERUREED 1,638 63.7% 164 88.1%
Captial Projects E-SESL]E| 385 15.0% 44 23.7%
University Development PN 335 13.0% 43 23.1%
Research Activities MREE 123 4.8% 54 29.0%
New Colleges SRR 139 5.4% 10 5.4%
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries RES BHERUPBE 97 3.8% (20) (10.8%)
General Academic Use — B R E 321 12.5% 7 3.8%
Other Activities Hith 55 238 9.2% 26 13.9%
Total ($ million) H%E (BB T) 2,573 100.0% 186 100.0%




Analysis on the financial position of the University as at 30 June of 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

S TE—ZER-T-_FAA=1H  KEMBARR TN T:

(Expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars LUE#E & 2 T 57)

2013
“E-=HE
Government Funded BT &Ef Non-Government Total
Recurring Non Recurring Funded qa=t
s JEAT FFBUTEED
Income WA 4,214 1,151 3,268 8,633
Expenditure 3z 3,727 703 1,630 6,060
Surplus Z 85k 487 448 1,638 2,573
2012
2 HE
Government Funded BAF&E) Non-Government Total
Recurring Non Recurring Funded st
T IFATEE IRBUHEED
Income YZA 3,334 715 1,636 5,685
Expenditure 3z H 3,271 756 1,472 5,499
Surplus 285/
(Daficit F18) 63 (1) 164 186

. Government Funded Recurring
B S AR

Government Funded Non Recurring

BURAFFE R AR

Non-government Funded

IFBUTEB
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PENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

HEREPXABRED

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong (the “University”) set out on pages 10 to 83, which
comprise the consolidated and University balance sheets as at 30 June
2013, and the consolidated and University Statements of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure, the consolidated and University Statements
of Changes in Funds and the consolidated and University Cash Flows
Statements for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The Council of the University is responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and for such
internal control as the Council determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Statute 12(7) of The Chinese University of
Hong Kong Ordinance (Cap. 1109), and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the University and of the Group as at 30
June 2013 and of their surplus and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

22 October 2013

HINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

PXKB
TED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

R
FOR THE YEAR E

BE—S-=FRA=1THLFE

2013

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L{E#ET5T57R)

Note 2012
PizE
Income A
Government Subventions BATEERN 3 3,291,573
Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees BE - RENHMWE 4 1,559,343
Interest and Net Investment Income FIBRIEFWE 5 17,128
Donations and Benefactions 1BEE KB 6 282,019
Ancillary Services Income EHENARTSWA 7 193,246
Other Income HAA 8 383,840
5,727,149
Expenditure I 9
Learning and Research Efif RRR
Instruction and Research HENHAE 4,072,605
Library EE8E 169,024
Central Computing Facilities th R E AR 91,463
Other Academic Services H B ARTS 221,289
Institutional Support REBEHBNARTS
Management and General EEN—RREIE 138,870
Premises and Related Expenses EFEREEXH 518,629
Student and General Education Services BEN—RHEEE 327,923
Other Activities HAth=E7% 39,817
5,579,620
Surplus for the year REFEERER 147,529
Item that may be reclassified subsequently HEETEHIEERMRE
to surplus or deficit EiEIER
Changes in Fair Value of ot EMIRE (20,033)
Available-for-Sale Investments NEEEE
Total comprehensive income for the year  REEREINEEEE 127,496
Attributable to: BREn:
Surplus of Recurrent Government BREMBFEERER 62,767
Funds transferred to General and EE-RAERFRES
Development Reserve Fund
Surplus/(Deficit) of Non-recurrent IR B BT B BB R R/ (B1E) (41,467)
Government Funds transferred to/(from) HE/(B)HESmhHmEE
University Grants Committee (“UGC”)
Matching Grant Fund
Surplus of Non-government Funds IE I EBNERER 106,196
transferred to Restricted Funds EHEEHRES
127,496

The notes set out on pages 22 to 83 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

AS AT 30 JUNE 20
—F-=F7A=1+AH

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LA&#EFT5I7R)

Note 2012
PiEE

Non-Current Assets ERENEE
Fixed Assets BE&EE 14 5,514,011
Investments BE 15 4,705,560
Employee Retirement Benefit Assets EERINMEFNEE 16 22,865
Other Receivables HthFEYFRIE 17 53,990
10,296,426

Current Assets MENEE
Investments BE 15 2,314,824
Inventories =78 454
Staff Loans A== 25 241,762
Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and FEYTIRSR ~ FE{TFRIE K 17 469,556
Other Receivables HthFEWRIE

Cash and Short-term Deposits with Banks IRE RIRITIEHAEM 18 4,540,311
Current Liabilities mENRE 7,566,907
Accounts Payable and Accruals FEfIIRFR A FEEtE 19 891,243
Provision for Employee Benefits EEEFESE 20 337,044
Loans and Borrowings &R 21 96,801
Deferred Income IEFEU = 22 173,739
1,498,827
Net Current Assets mEEERE 6,068,080
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities EEERRIas 16,364,506

Non-Current Liabilities ERENEE
Provision for Employee Benefits EEEF£ESE 20 200,270
Loans and Borrowings =6 21 11,372
Deferred Income IEFEU =R 22 271,666
483,308
Deferred Capital Funds EEEEEE 23 3,380,622
NET ASSETS BEFE 12,500,576
Restricted Funds SHEE 10 10,318,132
Other Funds HittBE 11 2,182,444

TOTAL FUNDS B2aE

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 22 October 2013
REGNR-_F—=F1+B -+ it & RIFRZRIUTEREK

Vincent H. C. Cheng Z};85R
Chairman of the Council IiEZX[FE

Roger K. H. Luk [EEi5
Treasurer S][E

Vice-Chancellor &£

Salome Chan [FE# B3t
University Bursar B#& &

The notes set out on pages 22 to 83 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L4&#&F5t57R)

Other Funds EfthE% (Note Fifzt 11)

General and uGcC Total Capital
Development  Matching Funds
Reserve Fund Grants
—RRBR BEg
FiEEE Ec¥iwEBnE ] EEET
Balance - 1 July 2011 —E-—FtRA—H#&8% 1,109,003 1,052,141 2,161,144 2,051,715
Transfers (to)/from the BE)/aEEZR 62,767 (41,467) 21,300 81,675
Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer B2 ER i i i .
Balance - 30 June 2012 ZE--FRA=1TA%R 1,171,770 1,010,674 2,182,444 2,133,390
Transfers (to)/from the LEEN e eES 486,683 448,077 934,760 278,068
Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer HEEEZER - - - -
Balance - 30 June 2013 —EB-=ZFSA=THER 1655453 1,458,751 3,117,204 2,411,458

The notes set out on pages 22 to 83 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Restricted Funds ZRE:R® (Note FizE10)

Endowment Other Building  Research Others Investments Total Total
Funds Restricted Funds Project (Note 10.1) Revaluation Funds
Funds Funds Reserve
HthE= A BEEH HREE Hith BESH
BAES HE HE H2E (Fft3E 10.1) fafie ] HEBER
2,883,425 2,235,961 112,603 506,693 2,234,192 187,347 10,211,936 12,373,080
(92,993) 24,042 (92,051) 38,651 166,905 (20,033) 106,196 127,496
30,061 (79,095) 28,205 14,262 6,567 - - -
2,820,493 2,180,908 48,757 559,606 2,407,664 167,314 10,318,132 12,500,576
457,541 610,078 (189,626) 131,498 429,962 21,167 1,738,688 2,673,448
(93,325) 21,158 34,224 (10,618) 48,561 - - -
3,184,709 2,812,144 (106,645) 680,486 2,886,187 188,481 12,056,820 15,174,024




THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

X XB
TED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

i 0

FOR THE YEAR
BE_F-=FXA=THLEE

2013

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L& T5]7R)

14

2012
Operating Activities R
Surplus for the Year REERER 147,529
Adjustments for: HEIEE -
Depreciation e 339,294
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets HEBEEEERE 1,077
Interest and Net Investment Income B RITE B W (17,128)
Operating Surplus before Changes in SESTEHIICERR 470,772
Working Capital
Increase in Employee Retirement EERINMEFEEZIEM (620)
Benefit Assets
Decrease/(Increase) in Accounts Receivable, FEYUIRTR ~ FETRRIE R E fthFEUL (136,811)
Prepayments and Other Receivables FRIE RZ Rk (Y h0)
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories FE R I(E) (89)
(Decrease)/Increase in Accounts Payable FEATRFR A FEET B PR (L) 38N 71,246
and Accruals
Increase in Provision for Employee EEEF X2 IEM 23,783
Benefits
Increase/(Decrease) in Deferred Income IEFEUER 2 IE NN/ (GRS (117,063)
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities E&EEEE A EFEE 311,218
Investing Activities 15w
Increase in Time Deposits with FrREREEE =& BRI B HATEM (449,460)
Original Maturity over Three Months ZIENN
Payment for Capital Expenditure BARRAXZNR (1,411,440)
Proceeds from Disposal of Fixed Assets HEBEEEMSWE 561
Payment for Purchase of Investments BRRE (855,643)
Proceeds from Sales of Investments HERERESMIE 963,170
Dividend Received [SgEds 17,082
Interest Received BlRFIE 186,182
Loans Granted to Staff A= R (36,000)
Loans Repaid by Staff HEEEMN 29,272
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities BB RS FMER 2R EBE (1,556,276)



(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L{#&#FT5]7T)

Note 2013 2012
PiEE
Financing Activities B RS
Secured Loan Received Mg HIEREM 40,000 -
Increase in Deferred Capital Funds EEEEES2IEM 257,806 990,512
Bank Loans Obtained for On-lending to Staff HEFPHUREZIRTEMR 6,000 5,000
Repayment of Secured Loan BEGEHEM (15,801) (15,801)
Repayment of Bank Loans for On-lending EBEBHETHBEZIFTEMR (9,000) (3,000)
to Staff
Net Cash Generated from Financing Activities RIEESREEZREEHE 279,005 976,711
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash RERFEEEYZBIEM(EL) 24,382 (268,347)
Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents REMBREEEY - FER 767,652 1,035,999
- Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year REMREEEY - FRER 18 792,034 767,652

The notes set out on pages 22 to 83 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L& T5]7R)

Note 2013 2012
Pk
Income WA
Government Subventions BAFER 3 4,422,592 3,291,573
Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees BE - RENHEHMKE 4 1,858,101 1,556,140
Interest and Net Investment Income FERBE WS 5 576,586 8,223
Donations and Benefactions E=[PNE =R 6 1,155,926 260,149
Ancillary Services Income EHBIARFS A 7 215,711 187,826
Other Income E A 8 403,607 380,905
8,632,523 5,684,816
Expenditure Zi 9
Learning and Research EBfiT R ARR
Instruction and Research HEBKAR 4,469,125 4,072,557
Library EIEZEE 182,675 169,024
Central Computing Facilities th REEE 114,183 91,463
Other Academic Services H it B ARTS 130,824 210,425
Institutional Support ANEBBHBNARTS
Management and General EBR—HREIE 238,731 139,112
Premises and Related Expenses BFhERE%H 555,291 507,654
Student and General Education Services BN —RHEER 332,354 275,386
Other Activities HhET 36,634 33,469
6,059,817 5,499,090
Surplus and total REEBRK
comprehensive income for the year 2ElELEEE 2,572,706 185,726
Attributable to: BER:
Surplus of Recurrent Government KEGBAEERE 486,683 62,767
Funds transferred to General and BE-RABERREREES
Development Reserve Fund
Surplus/(Deficit) of Non-recurrent FREMBUITEE R/ (E5E) 448,077 (41,467)

Government Funds transferred to/(from) HE/(B)HESmhEmEE
UGC Matching Grant Fund

Surplus of Non-government Funds IEFEBNE RS 1,637,946 164,426
transferred to Restricted Funds EHEEHAES

2,572,706 185,726

The notes set out on pages 22 to 83 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

—B-=f3A=+H

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L{&#ET5T57R)

Note 2012
PiEE
Non-Current Assets EREEE

Investments in Subsidiaries RIftEASIMIRE 12 98,274
Fixed Assets EE&EE 14 5,443,803
Investments E A= 15 4,334,572
Employee Retirement Benefit Assets EERNENEE 16 22,865
Other Receivables HthFEWRIE 17 53,490
9,953,004

Current Assets MENEE
Investments wE 15 2,062,023
Staff Loans HEEaM 25 241,762
Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and FEWIIRTR ~ FAMIFRIE K 17 456,554

Other Receivables Hth R FRIE

Cash and Short-term Deposits with Banks IRE RIRITREHAEM 18 3,899,346
6,659,685

Current Liabilities mENaE
Accounts Payable and Accruals FEfIIRFR R FEEtE R 19 1,042,696
Provision for Employee Benefits EEEFESE 20 335,588
Loans and Borrowings (B 21 96,801
Deferred Income IEFEW 2= 22 173,739
1,648,824
Net Current Assets mEBEEEE 5,010,861
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities REERRSEE 14,963,865

Non-Current Liabilities EREEE

Provision for Employee Benefits EEEF £ 20 199,566
Loans and Borrowings &R 21 11,372
Deferred Income IEFEW 25 22 271,666
482,604
Deferred Capital Funds BEEEEE 23 3,380,622
NET ASSETS BESE 11,100,639
Restricted Funds EHEE 10 8,918,195
Other Funds HittBE 11 2,182,444

TOTAL FUNDS BE2@E

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 22 October 2013
REEN_-_F—=F+A-+ B ERFRERILAEHRR

11,100,639

Vincent H. C. Cheng Zf;g5R
Chairman of the Council REEX[E

Joseph J. Y. Sung }jitH2=
Vice-Chancellor i&ZE

Roger K. H. Luk [£#i5
Treasurer T][&E

Salome Chan s B
University Bursar B4#%E

The notes set out on pages 22 to 83 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (I4#&#F7t5IR)

Other Funds HfthtE£ (Note izE 11)
General and UGC Total
Development Matching
Reserve Fund Grants
—MRRERE nEE
ffiREE EceimEnE R
Balance - 1 July 2011 —E——FtA—RA4%&8R 1,109,003 1,052,141 2,161,144
Transfers (to)/from the BE)/aFzER=ER 62,767 (41,467) 21,300
Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer EEREIR i i i
Balance - 30 June 2012 —E-—HFXA=1TH&R 1,171,770 1,010,674 2,182,444
Transfers (to)/from the LEEINUSESENNEES 486,683 448,077 934,760
Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer HEEEIR - - -
Balance - 30 June 2013 ZE-ZFB=1THER% 1,458,751 3,117,204

1,658,453

The notes set out on pages 22 to 83 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Restricted Funds =MAES (Note HizE10)

Capital Endowment Other Building Research Others Total Total
Funds Funds Restricted Funds Project (Note 10.2) Funds
Funds Funds
HithE BHRIEE mERER Hith

EEES BAEE =2E g 2E (PftzE 10.2) L] BEEE8H
2,019,357 2,704,313 1,867,534 112,958 506,693 1,542,914 8,753,769 10,914,913
43,824 (86,350) 77,086 (92,051) 38,651 183,266 164,426 185,726
- 29,856 (78,890) 28,205 14,262 6,567 - -
2,063,181 2,647,819 1,865,730 49,112 559,606 1,732,747 8,918,195 11,100,639
268,882 439,157 577,611 (189,626) 131,498 410,424 1,637,946 2,572,706
- (93,917) 21,750 34,224 (10,618) 48,561 - -
2,332,063 2,993,059 2,465,091 (106,290) 680,486 2,191,732 10,556,141 13,673,345




(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L& #&FT5]7T)

2013 2012
Operating Activities REEH
Surplus for the Year NEERR 2,572,706 185,726
Adjustments for: HAEEIER :
Depreciation e 362,295 337,764
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets HEBRTEEERIE 30,096 1,077
Interest and Net Investment Income MEREESW S (576,586) (8,223)
Operating Surplus before Changes in EEETHIPIRERR 2,388,511 516,344
Working Capital
Increase in Employee Retirement EERNEFEEZIGM (168) (620)
Benefit Assets
Increase in Accounts Receivable, FEWUIRTR ~ FE{TFRIE R EL{th FEUL (1,906)  (159,025)
Prepayments and Other Receivables FIEZIENN
(Decrease)/Increase in Accounts Payable FEATIRFR R FER B FR A2 (R 248N (72,111) 81,245
and Accruals
Increase in Provision for Employee EEEFXE w2 18N 43,028 23,220
Benefits
Increase/(Decrease) in Deferred Income IERE 25 2 B AN/ G 178,001 (117,063)
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities BEEMEERRERH 2,535,355 344,101
Investing Activities BEEE
Increase in Time Deposits with FHHREE=ERNEIER (2,664,878)  (331,297)
Maturity Period over Three Months 2Z3E
Payment for Capital Expenditure BARREXZM (919,846) (1,373,738)
Proceeds from Disposal of Fixed Assets HEBEEEEMSMNE 767 561
Payment for Purchase of Investments BRIRE (32,114)  (774,048)
Payment for Investments in Subsidiaries BRERMBAS (11,983) (37,260)
Proceeds from Sales of Investments HERERSRIE 673,462 870,532
Dividend Received Sl 2,483 2,543
Interest Received [=LE =N 213,805 169,273
Loans Granted to Staff BB BN (32,600) (36,000)
Loans Repaid by Staff HEEEM 42,815 29,272
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities BREFRBFER 2R EFH (2,728,089) (1,480,162)




(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LT TTEIT)

Note 2013 2012
P EE
Financing Activities REEE
Secured Loan Received S EEEER 40,000 -
Increase in Deferred Capital Funds EEEERESZIEM 257,806 990,512
Bank Loans Obtained for On-lending to Staff EEFHHE ZIRTEMR 6,000 5,000
Repayment of Secured Loan EEFIEHEN (15,801) (15,801)
Repayment of Bank Loans for On-lending EEBETHREZRTEN (9,000) (3,000)
to Staff
Net Cash Generated from B EREFMEECREFEHR 279,005 976,711
Financing Activities
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash RERREEE I 86,271 (159,350)
Equivalents NGRS
Cash and Cash Equivalents RERREEEY - EMLELR 637,882 797,232
- Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year RENREEEY) - FRER 18 724,153 637,882

The notes set out on pages 22 to 83 form an integral part of these financial statements.
NERE-—+—BENT=EZMERIEBERER —E5 -
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BAISERRAIEE

E CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

L STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements (the “Financial
Statements”) include the financial statements of The
Chinese University of Hong Kong which includes
Morningside College, S. H. Ho College, C. W.
Chu College, Wu Yee Sun College, and Lee Woo
Sing College (collectively the “University”) and of
the Trustees of the four separately established
constituent Colleges, namely The Trustees of
Chung Chi College, The Trustees of New Asia
College, The Trustees of United College and The
Trustees of Shaw College (collectively the “Group”).
The Trustees of these constituent Colleges were
incorporated under The Chinese University of
Hong Kong Ordinance (the “Ordinance”). As the
Colleges function to complement the University
in the provision of a balanced, holistic education
which also embodies different intellectual and
cultural traditions, management of the University is
of the opinion that the Trustees of these constituent
Colleges are created to accomplish academic and
related objectives, consistent with those of the
University. Pursuant to Hong Kong Accounting
Standard 27 “Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements”, the consolidated financial statements
of the University include the financial results and
assets and liabilities relating to the Trustees of
the four separately established Colleges. The
aggregate surplus for the year ended 30 June 2013
of the Trustees of these four separately established
Colleges amounted to $79 million (2012: $38 million
deficit) and their aggregate net assets at the balance
sheet date amounted to $1,500 million (2012:
$1,400 million).

The consolidated financial statements have
not incorporated the financial statements of the
University’s subsidiaries as management is of
the opinion that their total net assets and net
income, which would have constituted 1.4% (2012:
1.5%) and 0.1% (2012: 0.4%) of the respective
consolidated totals, are insignificant.

2.1 Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. A
summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.
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The HKICPA has issued several amendments
to HKFRSs and one new Interpretation that are
first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group. Of these, “Amendments to HKFRS 7,
Financial instruments: Disclosure — Transfers of
financial assets” and “Amendments to HKAS 1,
Presentation of financial statements — Presentation
of items of other comprehensive income” are
relevant to the Group’s Financial Statements.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require certain
disclosures to be included in the financial statements
in respect of transferred financial assets that are not
derecognised in their entirety and for any continuing
involvement in transferred financial assets that are
derecognised in their entirety, irrespective of when
the related transfer transaction occurred. However,
an entity need not provide the disclosures for the
comparative period in the first year of adoption. The
Group and the University did not have any significant
transfers of financial assets in previous years or the
current year which require disclosure in the current
accounting year under the amendments.

The amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to
present the items of other comprehensive income
that would be reclassified to surplus or deficit in
the future if certain conditions are met separately
from those that would never be reclassified to
surplus or deficit. The Group’s presentation of other
comprehensive income in these financial statements
has been modified accordingly.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 32).
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Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except as otherwise stated in the accounting
policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about the carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

In the Balance Sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less any impairment losses (see
note 2.9).

2.2
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2.4 Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets, other than Construction In Progress
and Art Collection, are stated in the Balance Sheet at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 2.9).

Construction In Progress represents buildings and
other fixed assets under construction, and is stated
at cost less any impairment losses (see note 2.9)
and is not depreciated. Construction In Progress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of fixed
assets when completed and is ready for use.

Art Collection is stated at cost less any impairment
losses (see note 2.9). The residual value of art
collection is expected to be equal to or greater than
the carrying amount, therefore Art Collection is not
depreciated.

Leasehold Land granted by the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the
“Government”) for use by the University is recorded
at nil value.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
assets to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Where it can be clearly demonstrated
that subsequent expenditure on an asset has
resulted in an increase in its future economic benefit,
such expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of that asset.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of fixed
assets, less their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives
or economic lives, whichever is shorter, as follows:

Interest in Leasehold Land
held for Own Use under
Operating Leases

Over the remaining
lease term

Buildings Shorter of remaining
lease term and 40
years

Equipment, Furniture 3-10 years

and Fittings
Assets acquired for
Research Projects

Shorter of useful
life and duration of
project

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed
asset is determined as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the fixed asset and is recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

24 BIEEE

REBIELEMEERS  BEEERUMNMERE
RBFELREBGEREERBRPIIREMEE2.9)

ARIRERENERRERNEELREMEEEE -
PR ENREMTRESERIKREME2.9) - 2F
FLURE - MERIEEEI TR AEZTEAR
REFRMAZE S ENEEEESR

iR G EUR A EREREBR(RMEE2.9) -
HFERMEMET ERSFRAAREIREE © FZT
BREFDINE -

HBAUEEHENREFTABERNLIM - UBRA
BEAlR -

EEEEMNEREERBABA—EZEEEERT
kR Rt RNER - BRI L INERBERS
IEINEAGRAVAE BN 50T - BEIHEREST AR
MEEEEENMERA o

hENERUEEEEMKAHE MR RIERMELR
BTHFETRFRSEEFS - LREE/ERA
=k ypan iR

SEHSETHER M 8570 S5 HAPR

EE R 5 tH EHAMREL
M+ - KBRiE
ERE

fE - REMERE =Ft+fF

RIEERMEEREZ OJRFREIEEFE

EE&E H o DBeERE

FHERREMEENEFABRZUZEECEEN
AHERLREEENERAE  REEWEREH
EEEWZRAER

UMEEEEPARNEHEARNTRFR » BIEMZ
ERUSEEES TSR - WD FEMENE - &
AT AR RRIERMECER) B FES -

25



26

2.5

2.6

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
These include land held for currently undetermined
future use.

Investment properties are stated in the Balance
Sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2.9). Any gain or loss
arising from the disposal of an investment property
is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described
in note 2.13(v).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
investment properties, using the straight line method
over their estimated useful lives. Useful lives of
investment properties are the same as for buildings
or interest in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases as shown in note 2.4.

Leased Assets

Leases of assets under which the lessor has not
transferred all the risks and benefits of ownership
are classified as operating leases, except for
property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis.

(i) Assets Held for Use in Operating Leases

Where the Group or the University leases out
assets under operating leases, the assets are
included in the Balance Sheet according to
their nature and depreciated in accordance
with the accounting policies as set out in note
2.4. Income arising from operating leases is
recognised in accordance with the income
recognition policies, as set out in note 2.13(v).

(i) Operating Lease Charges

Where the Group or the University has the use
of assets under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term.
Lease incentives received are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.
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2.7

Investments

The Group’s and the University’s policies for
investments in securities other than investments in
subsidiaries are as follows:

(i) Dated debt securities that the Group and/
or the University has the positive ability and
intention to hold to maturity are classified as
held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity
securities are initially recognised in the Balance
Sheet at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are stated in the Balance
Sheet at amortised cost less impairment losses
(see note 2.9).

(i) Investments in securities held for trading are
classified as current assets and are initially
stated at fair value. At each balance sheet date
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

(iii) Investments in equity securities that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are recognised in the Balance Sheet
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2.9).

(iv) Limited Partnership investment and alternative
investments are initially recognised at fair
value. At each balance sheet date, the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

(v) Other investments in securities are classified
as available-for-sale securities and are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs.
At each balance sheet date the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised directly in fair value reserve,
except for impairment losses (see note 2.9)
and, in the case of monetary items such as debt
securities, foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised directly in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
Where these investments are interest-bearing,
interest calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
When these investments are derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
directly in fair value reserve is recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure.
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2.8

29

(vi)Investments in securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group and/or
the University commits to purchase/sell the
investments or they expire.

Staff Loans and Accounts Receivable

Staff Loans and Accounts Receivable are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost less impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts (see note 2.9), except where
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see
note 2.9).

Impairment of Assets

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and receivables:

Investments in debt and equity securities and
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost or are classified as available-for-sale
securities are reviewed at each balance sheet
date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more
of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure as
follows:
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For unquoted equity securities and receivables
that are carried at cost, the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses for
receivables are reversed if in a subsequent
period the amount of the impairment loss
decreases. Impairment losses for equity
securities are not reversed.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets).

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that had been recognised directly in fair
value reserve is removed and is recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure. The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure is
the difference between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and amortisation)
and current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure.

Impairment losses recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
Any subsequent increase in the fair value of
such assets is recognised directly in fair value
reserve.
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(i) Impairment of Other Assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
identify indications that the Fixed Assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. When an asset
does not generate cash inflows independently,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash generating
unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised to reduce the
carrying amount of the asset or assets in the
cash-generating unit on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs
to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

- Reversal of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.

2.10 Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value and their
maturity dates are within three months from the
date of acquisition.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the University
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where itis not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Income Recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received/receivable. Provided it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group or the University and the income
and expenditure, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, income is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure as follows:

(iy Government Subventions

Recurrent grants for general purposes are
recognised as income when the grants have
been received or are receivable from the
University Grant Committee (“UGC”). Any
such grants, which are received in excess of
the related expenses incurred are transferred
to General and Development Reserve Fund
in the reporting period in accordance with
prevailing UGC guidelines.
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(iif)

(vi)

Matching grants are recognised as income
when the grants have been received or are
receivable from the UGC.

Recurrent grants and earmarked grants for
specific purpose spent on capital expenditure
are initially recorded in Deferred Capital Funds
and are recognised as income over the useful
lives of the related assets when the assets
are put into use, to the extent of the related
depreciation expenses incurred for that period.

Earmarked grants for specific purposes are
recognised as income to the extent of the
related revenue expenditure incurred during
the reporting period.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Dividend

Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

Dividend income from listed securities is
recognised when the share price of the
investment becomes ex-dividend.

Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees

Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees are
recognised on an accrual basis and unearned
fees are treated as receipts in advance.

Rental Income from Operating Leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in
equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable.

Donations and Benefactions

Donations and benefactions with general
purposes are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure when
the Group or the University become entitled to
the donations and it is probable that they will
be received.

Donations and benefactions for specific
purposes are recognised as income to the
extent of the related expenditure incurred
during the year.
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(vii) Other Service Income

Other service income is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure when the related service is
rendered.

2.14 Books and Periodicals

Library books and periodicals are written off to
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure in the year in which the expenditure
is incurred.

2.15 Employee Benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Salaries, paid annual leave, housing allowances
and the cost to the Group or the University of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are
rendered by the employees of the Group or
the University.

Contract-end gratuity is payable on completion
of a contract appointment of not less than two
years. The gratuity, together with the total
amount of the University’s contributions to a
particular retirement scheme, will add up to
10% or 15% of the appointee’s basic salary
drawn during the contract period.

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
schemes, including Mandatory Provident
Funds (“MPF”) as required under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure as incurred.

The net obligation in respect of a defined
benefit retirement scheme is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their
services in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine the present
value, and the fair value of any scheme assets
is deducted. The discount rate is the yield
at the balance sheet date on high quality
corporate bonds that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Group’s or
the University’s obligations. The calculation
is performed by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method.

(vii)
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In calculating the obligation in respect of the
scheme, to the extent that any cumulative
unrecognised actuarial gain or loss exceeds ten
percent of the greater of the present value of
the defined benefit obligation and the fair value
of scheme assets, that portion is recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure over the expected average
remaining working lives of the employees
participating in the scheme. Otherwise, the
actuarial gain or loss is not recognised.

Where the calculation of the net obligation
results in a negative amount, the asset
recognised is limited to the net total of any
cumulative unrecognised net actuarial losses,
past service costs and the present value of any
future refunds from the scheme or reductions
in future contributions to the scheme.

(v) Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the Group or the University
demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility
of withdrawal.

2.16 Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the market
rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses on foreign currency
translation are dealt with in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
the fair value was determined.
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2.17 Related Parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

() The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(if) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(Vii)A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

2.18 Taxation

The University is exempted from payment of Hong
Kong Profits Tax by virtue of Section 88 of the Inland
Revenue Ordinance.

2.19 Inventories

Inventories represent souvenirs held by the Chung
Chi College for resale. They are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.
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GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS  BIfF&E8h

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A& EFIT5IT)

The Group and the University

REERERAE
2013 2012
Subventions from UGC HE=LEH)
Block Grants EERRHENE 3,069,860 2,358,665
Supplementary Grants IBHETERE 171,860 192,958
3,241,720 2,551,623
Earmarked Grants BRSNS
Research Grants e S 180,489 183,517
Housing Benefits EERF 20,676 29,091
Matching Grants Eo¥imBnE 508,551 -
Area of Excellence EREAT SA1 24,039 21,119
Ophthalmology and Visual Sciences ARFI R R BRI 19,826 18,527
Restructuring and Collaboration Fund SHAGEMBIE 2,501 3,235
One-off Special Equipment Grant —RBYIRIR AR E 8,478 8,516
Knowledge Transfer Activities B EE 14,248 12,771
Other Earmarked Grants HtiigE RS 14,317 105,867
Rates and Government Rent Refund RE = A BT 43,209 40,194
Capital Grants and Alterations, Additions,  EE#HBIEEEE ~ N2 - 169,065 143,581
Repairs and Improvements (AA&I) HIEMINE TR
Block Allocation
4,247,119 3,118,041
Grants from Government Agencies BRI 175,473 173,532

4,422,592

3,291,573




3.1 Matching Grants

HoH B &

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TT5ITR)
Matching Donations  Matching Donations
Grants Grants
EodimBnE B EeEitEEE B
The Group The University
RERERRE RE
2013 2013
Balance - Beginning of Year FYEERR 1,010,674 1,189,343 1,010,674 1,157,819
Income WA
Grants/Donation {HBIB B 508,551 | (1,027,528 508,551 960,178
Interest and Net Investment Income  Fll 2 &I & B 13,222 (1,434) 13,222 (3,763
521,773 1,026,094 521,773 956,415
Expenditure (Note) X (i)
Teaching and Research HE LR 16,547 151,072 16,547 150,891
Student Exchange Activities BXmEE 1,863 9,221 1,863 9,051
Student Development BYeRE 14,466 32,448 14,466 28,124
Scholarships REE 36,360 15,708 36,360 9,005
Bursaries BhEE - 5,305 - 5,157
Capital Projects HiZEH - 138,700 - 138,700
69,236 352,454 69,236 340,928
Transfer to Capital Fund BEEERESE (4,460) (166,806) (4,460) (166,741)
Balance - End of Year FREER 1,458,751 1,696,177 1,458,751 1,606,565
The Group The University
REREES REB
2012 2012
Balance - Beginning of Year EES 1,052,141 1,228,846 1,052,141 1,195,148
Income KA
Grants/Donations HBENE/BRR - - - -
Interest and Net Investment Income Fll2 AR EF N 15,245 72,581 15,245 72,221
15,245 72,581 15,245 72,221
Expenditure (Note) X i (FitEE)
Teaching and Research HEBRRR 11,912 32,243 11,912 32,180
Student Exchange Activities BEZRER 3,095 4,373 3,095 4,373
Student Development BERE 7,491 4,687 7,491 3,237
Scholarships REF 35,275 7,221 35,275 6,200
Capital Projects E=EAE]S - 12,844 - 12,844
57,773 61,368 57,773 58,834
Transfer from/(to) Capital Fund BERI(R)EEESE 1,061 (50,716) 1,061 (50,716)
Balance - End of Year TR

1,010,674 1,189,343 1,010,674 1,157,819

@



Note: For Matching Grant Schemes, private donations secured for purposes including construction of campus
buildings and scholarships but excluding self-financed activities were matched. Grants were awarded on
a dollar-for-dollar matching basis up to $60 million and on a $1 for $2 matching basis (i.e $1 Government
Grant for every $2 donation) for amounts beyond $60 million and limited to an overall total of $600 million.

HizE: BCHEEIEE BRSNS EEARERRSAEESE - EFEEARBEEHER - HPELE
BATERTESEAIVEI—TH T R)EE - HRERAIL — Mttt R EEmTrh A BRaSE —
TBHEE)R S - MaeUSBEmEEHERT -

3.2 Matching Grants for Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students
S B4 RtERASHEREHME
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A& 7T5I7R)
The Group and the University
REBERRAREB
Matching Donation Matching Donation
Grants (Note) Grants (Note)
Ee¥itEBE =R Ee¥itEBE BR
(PIE) (PR=E)
2013 2012
Balance - Beginning of Year  F#l458% 7,789 1,211 - -
Income (Note) WA (FiEE)
Grants/Donations fHBE R - - 7,883 7,883
Interest and Net Investment MEREES W= 193 62 59 44
Income
193 62 7,942 7,927
Expenditure Zi
Programme Costs IHBRM%
Academic Related Programs EBfiftaRIEE 230 - 45 -
Career Related programs MEHERIER 1,157 - - -
Cultural Related Programs X{LiERAIER 403 - 108 -
Service Related programs IRFSERAIER 365 - - -
Instruction and Research HERHARE - - - 6,716
2,155 - 153 6,716
Balance - End of Year FRERR 5,827 1,273 1,211

Note: The matched donation is for supporting the development of the University.

MizE: RFECHCIRERARENABRE -

7,789

4. TUITION, PROGRAMMES AND OTHER FEES BE - RERHMKE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (M&HEFITHIT)
The Group The University
REAEERE AL
2013 2012 2013 2012
UGC-Funded Programmes HEEEHRE
Tuition Fees B 834,763 662,443 834,763 662,443
Programmes and Other Fees PRE R HE M E 17,105 11,888 17,105 11,888
Non-UGC-Funded Programmes EHEEERE
Tuition Fees BE 1,000,897 877,075 997,583 873,963
Programmes and Other Fees PR M E & 8,660 7,937 8,650 7,846

1,861,425

1,559,343

1,858,101

1,556,140



INTEREST AND NET INVESTMENT INCOME

B RIGER N

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A& 7T51R)
The Group The University
REAELEE RE
2013 2012 2013 2012
Interest Income from Listed Securities LhEEMN RS 5,067 7,640 3,456 5,588
Interest Income from Unlisted Securities  IF_ LS 2= 109,946 114,550 107,728 110,180
Interest Income from Time Deposits TEHERAE 103,812 65,273 91,607 56,253
Net Realised and Unrealised HittBEvBEIRMAR 343,007 (216,424) 317,503 (192,868)
Gain/(Loss) on Other Securities IR/ (B518)FH
Net Realised and Unrealised Exchange BEIRRAREIRLZINE 39,565 5,703 34,041 4,544
Gain from Time Deposits RIRFIW S
Dividends from Listed and EiRIE LR 37,592 35,256 20,517 19,396
Unlisted Securities BE 2 UEE
Other Investment Income Hiig E W= 1,734 5,130 1,734 5,130
640,723 17,128 576,586 8,223
DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS EELEPNE R
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAEHT7T5I7R)
The Group The University
REAEZED KRER
2013 2012 2013 2012
Capital Projects HiZlHH 8,013 2,845 - -
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries REE - BERMEBE 175621 28,077 144,768 17,773
Donations for Research Activities BB 196,584 79,311 196,584 79,311
Donations for Establishment of B REERIEMN 27,124 1 27,124 1
Morningside College
Donations for Establishment of M EEERRIEM 13,130 2,154 13,130 2,154
S. H. Ho College
Donation for Establishment of BT ERRIEMN 34,605 9,765 34,605 9,765
C. W. Chu College
Donation for Establishment of B FNEERRIEM 49,450 8,003 49,450 8,003
Lee Woo Sing College
Donation for Establishment of A EREREMN 41,963 - 41,963 -
Wu Yee Sun College
Donation for Establishment of BT EBDSIAREGEY) 100,000 - 100,000 -
CUHK (S2) B
Donations for General Academic Use  —RRZ(EMER 599,252 151,863 548,302 143,142

1,245,742

282,019

1,155,926

260,149

Note: Total donations of $21.7 million were received from the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust for the year

(2012: $26.6 million).

MizE: AEEREEESEEEERESRBCMEA—FT—Bt+E8R (CB—2F: ZF B THER) °
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ANCILLARY SERVICES INCOME  E#BhARFSUIA
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A& #EFT5IT)

The Group The University
AL E=4 AL

2013 2012 2013 2012

Resident Halls BYES 113,207 96,887 112,253 96,077
Rental Income WA 50,078 45,648 44,488 41,030
Catering and Hospitality Services ER R EERTE 10,964 10,199 10,964 10,199
University Press REH ARt 13,862 9,431 13,862 9,431
Rental Contribution from Staff FHEHEEHMR 11,166 11,107 11,166 11,107
Retail Store Sales TEEHHEE 1,920 1,646 1,920 1,646
Others Hfth 21,050 18,328 21,058 18,336

222,247 193,246

215,711 187,826

OTHER INCOME  HftiltA
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (WA &HEFIT5IT)

The Group The University

NEAREED REE
2013 2012 2013 2012
Service Income BRFEUZA 190,110 175,368 188,923 173,780
Contract Research BEREH 72,933 73,538 72,652 73,468
Miscellaneous Hfth 143,762 134,934 142,032 133,657

406,805 383,840

403,607 380,905



EXPENDITURE %
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LU TT5IR)

The Group
REBEERE

Staff Cost Operating

Depreciation 2013

and Benefits Expenses Total
BT #
KeAgEFl F—{E5 e Bz
Learning and Research Bilo B 5 e
Instruction and Research HE R 3,111,880 1,217,070 142,750 4,471,700
Library EZSEE 78,441 99,665 4,569 182,675
Central Computing Facilities HRE KRR E 67,494 32,184 14,505 114,183
Other Academic Services HthZ AR TS 109,639 29,837 2245 141,721
3,367,454 1,378,756 164,069 4,910,279
Institutional Support (Note 9.1)  XE3EHRNBRFE(KIFE9.1)
Management and General EBA—REIE 178,565 42,097 18,162 238,824
Premises and Related Expenses  {&F RBEAZH 151,035 238,427 178,723 565,185
Student and General Education BER—RHEEE 169,146 217,648 3,000 389,794
Services
Other Activities H{thEEF5 20,349 19,272 550 40,171
519,095 517,444 200,435 1,236,974

Total Expenditure - 2013 ZE-=FA%H 3,886,549 1,896,200

Staff Cost Operating

364,504

6,147,253

Depreciation 2012

and Benefits Expenses Total
ETE
KAEF BERR e FEEE]
Learning and Research Bilo B iR e
Instruction and Research HE R 2,835,286 1,090,906 146,413 4,072,605
Library EEE 73,204 91,338 4,482 169,024
Central Computing Facilities P RENERHE 64,049 12,231 15,183 91,463
Other Academic Services HthZEBRRTS 176,728 42559 2,002 221,289
3,149,267 1,237,034 168,080 4,554,381
Institutional Support (Note 9.1)  XE3EHRNBRFE(HIFE9.1)
Management and General EEN—RREIR 88,912 30,431 19,527 138,870
Premises and Related Expenses  1#FRBEEAZH 133,791 236,113 148,725 518,629
Student and General Education BN —RHEEE 148,593 177,020 2,310 327,923
Services
Other Activities H =T 19,758 19,407 652 39,817
391,054 462,971 171,214 1,025,239

Total Expenditure - 2012 —E-"F8%H 3,540,321 1,700,005

339,294

5,579,620



9.

._

EXPENDITURE

3

(Continued #8&)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MA&#EFIToIm)
The University
PA=
Staff Cost Operating Depreciation 2013
and Benefits Expenses Total
BT EM
KAEF mER% e k]
Learning and Research Bl KRR
Instruction and Research HERHE 3,111,861 1,214,515 142,749 4,469,125
Library EES 78,441 99,665 4,569 182,675
Central Computing Facilities oh R EE AR it 67,494 32,184 14,505 114,183
Other Academic Services H{hZ EBRTS 101,105 27,509 2,210 130,824
3,358,901 1,373,873 164,033 4,896,807
Institutional Support (Note 9.1)  KE3HfiBhART% (Fi15E9.1)
Management and General EEN—REE 178,565 42,057 18,109 238,731
Premises and Related Expenses BFAERXH 150,506 228,096 176,689 555,291
Student and General Education BY N —RHEE 153,635 175,788 2,931 332,354
Services
Other Activities HhEEH 19,369 16,732 533 36,634
502,075 462,673 198,262 1,163,010
Total Expenditure - 2013 —E-=FATH 3,860,976 1,836,546 362,295 6,059,817
Staff Cost Operating Depreciation 2012
and Benefits Expenses Total
ST EE
KAEF RERR & k]
Learning and Research Bl K%
Instruction and Research HERAR 2,835,237 1,090,909 146,411 4,072,557
Library EIE8E 73,204 91,338 4,482 169,024
Central Computing Facilities PR EE ARt 64,049 12,231 15,183 91,463
Other Academic Services H{th 2 ERTE 167,257 41,189 1,979 210,425
3,139,747 1,235,667 168,055 4,543,469
Institutional Support (Note 9.1)  KE3G#iBIAR% (Pi15E9.1)
Management and General BB N—REIE 88,912 30,682 19,518 139,112
Premises and Related Expenses BFABRXH 133,306 226,997 147,351 507,654
Student and General Education BER—RBESE 134,046 139,142 2,198 275,386
Services
Other Activities H{thEE5% 19,216 13,611 642 33,469
375,480 410,432 169,709 955,621
Total Expenditure - 2012 —E-FA%RE

3,615,227

1,646,099

337,764 5,499,090



9.1 Analysis of Institutional Support Operating Expenses KEEBIIRISEEZ S
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LT TT5IR)

The Group The University
REREERS REE
2013 2012 2013 2012
Management and General EER—REE
General Insurance —RIRIGER 4,966 3,859 4,939 3,848
Legal and Other Professional Fees AR NEZHEZAER 296 (1,347) 283 (1,359)
Auditor's Remuneration ZERTEE 1,394 1,337 1,394 1,337
Other Operating Expenses Hithis&mE% 35,441 26,582 35,441 26,856

42,097 30,431 42,057 30,682

Premises and Related Expenses BFAERXEH

Repair and Maintenance HIERRE 94,178 104,848 84,828 97,447

Utilities KERERE 95,466 85,299 95,466 85,299

Government Rent and Rates = A AR 45,010 41,137 44,871 40,974

Security, Environment and Safety RE -~ RIERZEERE 1,892 2,299 1,307 1,714
Services

Property Insurance MEERRE R 1,632 1,570 1,624 1,563

Other Operating Expenses HithiR &R 249 960 - -

238,427 236,113 228,096 226,997

Student and General Education BYEL—BHEEH
Services
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries  #2E% « R REIEBE 134,751 107,965 108,230 84,900
Resident Halls Expenses BAESHX 28,668 24,961 27,566 23,797
Student Exchange Programme BARinstEl 8,018 7,547 7,996 7,505
Careers, Counseling Services and ~ Bi% - BiBRIENEE 24,824 17,430 23,962 16,368
Student Activities FRINER
Student/Extra-curriculum Activities ~ EBHEARINEEN 4,765 6,663 - -
Alumni Affairs RRGHAEETE 3,990 3,084 3,990 3,084
Sports and Other Facilities BB M HAMERHE 1,997 2,234 1,936 2,264
Student Financial Aids B4 E R 656 577 - -
Student and Staff Health Services B N 3B S (R ERRTS 1,867 1,192 1,867 1,185
Other Operating Expenses Hithis&m% 8,112 5,367 241 39
217,648 177,020 175,788 139,142
Other Activities H{thsE7%
University Press FREH Rt 10,071 9,140 10,074 9,166
Catering Services ERARS 5,015 3,687 5,015 3,687
Souvenir Counter Emak 447 255 456 255
Miscellaneous MIEXH 3,739 6,325 1,187 503

19,272 19,407 16,732 13,611

517,444 462,971 462,673 410,432

@




9.2 Remuneration of Senior Staff SR E T ERE

The number of staff members in the University whose remuneration exceeded HK$1,800,000 during the year ended
30 June 2013 and 2012, irrespective of the funding sources and listed by the various bands, are as follows:

FEEREFERSENE(ICEFHEBEE—BN\TETNETABUSERIIAT :

The Group and the University

REBERKE
2013 2012
$ $

1,800,001 - 1,950,000 61 58
1,950,001 - 2,100,000 41 24
2,100,001 - 2,250,000 27 22
2,250,001 - 2,400,000 15 13
2,400,001 - 2,550,000 10 13
2,550,001 - 2,700,000 15 4
2,700,001 - 2,850,000 - 5
2,850,001 - 3,000,000 5 6
3,000,001 - 3,150,000 4 6
3,150,001 - 3,300,000 8 6
3,300,001 - 3,450,000 3 7
3,450,001 - 3,600,000 4 1
3,600,001 - 3,750,000 7 6
3,750,001 - 3,900,000 1 7
3,900,001 - 4,050,000 6 4
4,050,001 - 4,200,000 6 -
4,200,001 - 4,350,000 1 2
4,350,001 - 4,500,000 1 -
4,500,001 - 4,650,000 1 -

> 4,650,000 1 1
Total e 227 195

Included in the total figure above are 95 clinical staff members (2012: 93).
PligFaiERREEASHISA (TF—TF:93A) °

Remuneration includes salaries, contributions to retirement schemes, housing benefits, education allowances,
contract-end gratuities and other allowances.

FHEHEFE - RINEHIR - BERT - HER0M - LS RE MR -



The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each component of the Group’s and the
University’s Restricted Funds are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Funds and the Statement
of Changes in Funds respectively.

10.1 The Group KEREE

(i) As at 30 June 2013, the balance of Others includes the Pommerenke Trust Fund of $670 million (2012:
$651 million) and the operating reserves of $2,216 million (2012: $1,757 million) for self-financed activities,
ancillary services and privately funded projects. The Pommerenke Trust Fund originates from a gift of land
donated in 1970 to the Chung Chi College by the Reverend Herbert Henry Pommerenke and Mrs. Jean
Macpherson Pommerenke in commemoration of Doctors Stewart and Julia Kunkle. The land gift was
outside the precincts of the University and, since 1976 and in accordance with The Chinese University of
Hong Kong Ordinance, has been vested in the Board of Trustees of Chung Chi College on the same trusts
and subject to the same terms and conditions on which the land gift was then held.

BECS—=FA=1H HtESCOEEEREESAELTERCE——%: NMEAT—BER) ' &XKE
BE;E) - REHPREAMABHEENEER#HE -+ - E—FTAEBET(CE— = : +tEBERAFTtEER)
o REMETFEEEMRBEIAERAR—NTTERL ZDoctors Stewart K Julia KunkleTigiX4s REE T
T o ISHRABISSARA LN R ARBEES - B—NEAERE @ IREEFBDIIABEAFNIZBEFEAEBRSE
ZE B T FTRIBNAEREFE U RAERIRR AR - BERESRKRES o

(i) The transfers to the various restricted funds, except for Capital Funds, are partially attributable to the
donations and benefactions of $1,246 million (2012: $282 million) as disclosed in Note 6.

REEESLY  BIRESEAESNHPROESKBRBARRNGE T -ROTAEET (CEF—2F . 2R)
NTFTZEER) FREE @ BEEERZ 2T IR HEE6eA -

10.2 The University K&

(i) As at 30 June 2013, the balance of Others includes the operating reserves of $1,264 million (2012: $1,106
million) for self-financed activities and ancillary services.

HECS—=FA=1H At ESFZOEEEEAABHBRBNEERFELT 2R TEHEERT (=
B—ZF . +—FRERT) -

(i) The transfers to the various restricted funds, except for Capital Funds, are partially attributable to the
donations and benefactions of $1,156 million (2012: $260 million) as disclosed in Note 6.

REEEZLUY - BIRESERESNHPEGREREAERRGEZ +—BATAEERT(EE—ZF : 21N
FERIT)RESE & BB 2 SR HiEEeA



NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESTRICTED FUNDS

Capital Funds

Capital Funds represent the balance of net book value
of the Fixed Assets which were financed by funds with
non-designated purpose.

Endowment Funds

Endowment Funds represent donations received by
the University, usually with the stipulation from the
donors that the principal amounts should remain
intact in perpetuity or for a defined time period for
specific purposes.

Other Restricted Funds

Other Restricted Funds represent the unspent
balance of funds donated for the development of the
new colleges. In addition, the Funds also comprise
the unspent balance of sponsorship grants and
service income.

Building Funds

Building Funds comprise the privately-funded capital
projects funded by external private organisations.

Research Projects Funds

Research Projects Funds represent the unspent
balance of projects with designated purpose in
carrying out research activities, including those
funded by the Government, related organisations
and external private organisations.

Others
Others comprise reserves generated from self-

financed programmes, ancillary services, scholarships
and bursaries and miscellaneous activities.

BEEEMHELRARE
BEER

AEES RIS RN A BENE A ENED
B
BrES

BTXESEABWINRERE  BEEREEZERL
EEBFREAE - BEFEREEECHREAERERE

HitnEHEE

HithSAESBUEAREAE R RS RIS o It
5 - BEEMNESEENIRRAVEREE N AR A o

BEXRERE
EXEEESEERMAKBENNERTRE -

MEREEE

MREEESEARBAFRHRENAEBNES  HP
NEMEBEEERAITHERA - HERAKERFAA
ttd o

Hith

HittSAESSERBEERBRE - BIRYE - 82
& - BIBRERBIREENREER -



11. OTHER FUNDS HitEE

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each component of the Group’s and the
University’s Other Funds are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Funds and the Statement of
Changes in Funds respectively.

AREBRERABNEME S AZAMED RV RIRGERAEIE - DREGRSESEHRAESEHRPIT -

(1) The General and Development Reserve Fund (GDRF) represents the unspent funds carried over from one
funding period (usually a triennium) to the next to facilitate the University’s longer-term planning and new
developmental needs. The balance of the GDRF at the end of a funding period should not exceed 20% of
the University’s approved Recurrent Grants other than the Earmarked Grants for Specific Purposes for that
funding period, and any excess amount is refundable to UGC.

—RABEREHRESERERPREER=ZF)RBAMTEES —BRPREABRETELAERNES - —
B BREHRESPRCERUABERECEEHHME(BHFARIEEHMMERINNESZ=TRIR - T
BHRENSIEREABHEENEZESE -

(2) $372 million of the UGC Matching Grants has been set aside as permanent endowment capital, to support
strategic initiatives such as endowed professorships, endowed scholarships and other indicated activities
in perpetuity. Only investment income from these permanent endowments will be used to fund these
programmes.

HESMEUMPEPH=RtTEBTCREBIEENERSE & UXHRBUNZRIER - SFEEZIRE
i - ERIREE L ETEEE - MZFRENEEZL - ROUBEFESFRBRINNRERE (T



12.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

R EBASIRNRE
(MUEBTTIE)

The University
K

2013

2012

Unlisted Shares, at cost

FE LMD - A7

110,257 98,274

As explained in Note 1, the results of all subsidiaries including the following companies have not been consolidated

into the Group’s financial statements:-

SNPfEE—FREAA - KBRS MR B ARSI T M B A SN R -

Name of company Place of Percentage of equity held Principal activities
incorporation FhBtgmItE
and operation
stmpisrx by the University by a subsidiary
UNSIEA 1T HARRE HNBAENE IEs
The Chinese University of Hong Kong Note To sponsor, develop, promote and
Hong Kong Foundation &8 FizE encourage public participation in
Limited public services
BEDPNAREEES B - BE - ([BERERTEAT
BRAT SHNHEE
Information Networking Hong Kong 100% To provide technology transfer
Laboratories Limited * &5 and investment holding
MBPERARFABERAT) * RS LI EIZER
The Hong Kong School Hong Kong 100% To operate intranet services for
Net Limited * g schools in Hong Kong
BEEBRPEERAE EEEREEREESEE
PA Company Limited Hong Kong 100% To provide services which are
EZFRAE aE charitable and educational in
nature
RHEE MBI ERRTE
HKIX Hong Kong Limited * British Virgin 100% Investment holding
Islands REER
REBELHES
The Hong Kong Internet Hong Kong 100% To provide internet services
eXchange Limited &i R B BHRRIRTE
BEBRERAZRPIL
BRAE]
CU Business Administration Hong Kong 100% Not yet commenced operation

Holdings Limited * &aE

PABEERBRAT *

REAIGAEE



Name of company Place of Percentage of equity held Principal activities
incorporation FhEtEtEsSsILE
and operation
sEMBEII A by the University by a subsidiary
NGRS R HASHEE HMBASEE IEXRB
CUGEN Limited * Hong Kong 100% To commercialise research
hEEYMREARAS * 'BE outputs
1SsERRERL
CUCAMed Company Limited Hong Kong 100% To promote Chinese medicine in
P RPEERZERAT] aE Hong Kong
B SREPE
The Hong Kong Institute of Hong Kong Note To develop an internationally
Biotechnology Limited g8 PftEE recognised biotechnology industry
HEEYMREHATER in Hong Kong
BRAT EEEZREFZINEYRER
I
IBSOmed Bioscience Limited Hong Kong 100% Dormant Company
ERRIRBRAT BE NEEAT
BRAMERCRYNEIRAS *  People’s 100% To carry out research, technology
Republic transfer and related technical
of China services on advanced technology,
hEAR provide consulting service
HANE on international technology
development, and manage owned
properties
SR EATROET S - BB(E RABRAE
IR% - EREHRIERR® - BEY
FHEEHEE
Asia Diabetes Foundation Hong Kong Note To organise activities and
Limited * &EE PfiEE research regarding diabetes on
a non-profit making basis
PAFE R TV AR SRR IS AR PR AR HYSE
B RAR
The Chinese University of Hong Kong Note To sponsor, develop, promote and
Hong Kong (Shenzhen) &5 FfiaE encourage public participation in
Foundation Limited* public services
BEPXAB(RINEEE &8 R - RENGRHELR
ABRAE SHENHER
The Chinese University Hong Kong 100% To provide health care and
Medical Centre & Hospital S8 associated services

Limited*

*  Companies not audited by KPMG.

* WAEIKIRE S NIFREFE SIS EAAE -
Note: This is a company limited by guarantee without a share capital.
MizE: WASIR—MERERAE  WRBIMED -

R R LR



13. ASSOCIATE i —/NS|

The Chinese University of Hong Kong - Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Community College (the “Community
College”) Limited is a company limited by guarantee with two members, being the University and the Tung
Wah Group of Hospitals (“TWGHSs”). Pursuant to an agreement dated 17 February 2003 (the “Agreement”), the
University and TWGHSs establish, operate and develop the Community College as a non-profit making post-
secondary education institution in Hong Kong.

According to the Memorandum of Association of the Community College and the terms of Agreement, the
University has no beneficial interest in any surplus assets of the Community College and is not required to finance
its operations or contribute to the shortfall of net assets since all responsibilities for financing the establishment
and recurring operations of the Community College rest with TWGHs. Accordingly, the University’s financial
statements do not share any of the Community College’s net assets and results of operations.

The Agreement between CUHK and TWGHs relating to Community College has been terminated on 31 August
2013 and the Community College ceased operation on the same date.

BEPXAB-RE=RHEDR( "HESMR., ) BRATEHAABRERE= ( "RE., \MKSFER—ERE
RIEEAT - REBE-FF=F_R+LAMENE( "HE. ) KBRREEFLMNNRATMKIT - BIERZRMT
EERD—E LBERE -

kigtEBRMAMAMLERMRIBHE LIRS - KABRAOHESREHEE LRES - MESRE®ZAR
EBRRNEAERHE  TABRMIABEEFPARBANREZHERESN  TEEFER - LHREFE X
B ABIMSHEERMHEANER - THERT - AEEMBRR LIFARREUHESRAEENFIEENEER
EREESIS o

EBPIABERE= RS ARMESRNFEER _S—=F\BA=1+—H&L - MtESRTENEBREL
i -



(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAEHEFITHIT)

The Group
pAL ]
Equipment,
Construction Furniture Art
(Note [fizE) in and Fittings Collection

Land Buildings Progress &&fiE ~ &2 Eff Total
tith EE TEEIRE KM Wiinn 4388

Cost R
At 1 July 2012 —E—-_fF
+tRA—B#8
Additions 1Ehn
Transfers L4
Disposals HE
At 30 June 2013 e

NA=t1B4&8R

Accumulated Depreciation RiEHTEE

At 1 July 2012 —s——fF
+tB—B#8R
Charge for the Year b=
Written Back on Disposal HE O
At 30 June 2013 =
ANB=1+B#8k
Net Book Value at —E-=F5xA=1H
30 June 2013 IREFE
Cost R
At 1 July 2011 % 336,848 4,126,339 1,162,549 2,646,260 14,300 8,286,296
+tB—B#8R
Additions 1N - 564,046 667,389 178,798 2,886 1,413,119
Transfers 574 - 615558 (615,558) - ; -
Disposals HE - - - (91,950) - (91,950)
At 30 June 2012 ==

ABE=1H#8 336,848 5,305,943 1,214,380 2,733,108 17,186 9,607,465

Accumulated Depreciation R&EHE

At 1 July 2011 —F—1F 58,501 1,548,586 - 2,237,385 - 3,844,472
+tHB—B#8R
Charge for the Year b= 7,732 129,128 - 202,434 - 339,294
Written Back on Disposal HHE#& BN - - - (90,312) - (90,312)
At 30 June 2012 —E—-_fF
~B=1TB4#& 66,233 1,677,714 - 2,349,507 - 4,093,454
Net Book Value at “E-"&5xA=1+H
30 June 2012 R FE 270,615 3,628,229 1,214,380 383,601 17,186 5,514,011

Note: - Land refers to “Interest in Leasehold Land held for Own Use under Operating Leases”.

- The properties, including land and buildings, are located in Hong Kong. Leasehold land of the Shatin campus is granted by
the Govemment for use by the University under medium-term leases and is stated at nil value.

- Land and buildings include investment properties in Siu Tao Fung Shan, Shatin. The investment properties are stated at zero
cost and have a market value of approximately $156.6 milion (2012: $136.8 million) at the end of the financial year.

- A property, categorised under Buildings, with carrying amount of $102 milion was pledged in the year of 2003 to secure
an interest-free loan from the Govemment. The relevant pledge was discharged in November 2012. At 30 June 2013, the
outstanding amount was nil (2012: $13.5 million).

FifEE: - DRSS THIB AL

- FrEEREE DN RERIATEE - HBITLAESH IR T A ERERE DB HAEZE - MUTRASSIIR

- IitEEEHEARGYEIVERILAIREYISE  INATRATIR - IRAMBEREER - ZEIREYRCHENR—RATS
BATERCE——FE —E=F8/\1+&mn) -

- EREERD - Hh—IBREES— S _EETAES - #TST=FELTRRRRSEREER < IRIFAETREEH
BECE——F —T=ah1&rx) - MEEEEINER=S——F+— kR -
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(BT TTE)
The University
K&
Equipment,

Construction Furniture

Art

(Note Bfiz¥) in and Fittings Collection
Land Buildings Progress z&fi ~ 58 iy Total
tith EE ERETE I Wi #HzE
Cost 2% 3
At 1 July 2012 5T
+tBA—RB%8
Additions 1
Transfers HiE
Disposals HE
At 30 June 2013 —B-=5F
ANBA=1B#8%
Accumulated Depreciation BEifEE
At 1 July 2012 “B-TF
tA—R#&eR
Charge for the Year TEERR
Written Back on Disposal ~ H&#& @i
At 30 June 2013 —B—=F
AB=1+B#8R
Net Book Value at —E-=F5~A=1+H
30 June 2013 IREEE
Cost 2% 3
At 1 July 2011 5% 336,848 4,121,580 1,135,366 2,639,217 13,701 8,246,712
+tBA—HB48R
Additions 1&h0 - 544,877 649,869 177,091 1,901 1,373,738
Transfers B - 570,855 (570,855) - - -
Disposals = - - - (91,889) - (91,889)
At 30 June 2012 g
~NB=1H#8 336,848 5,237,312 1,214,380 2,724,419 15,602 9,528,561
Accumulated Depreciation REifEE
At 1 July 2011 —g—fF 58,501 1,548,033 - 2,230,711 - 3,837,245
tA—R#%&eR
Charge for the Year ITEsE 7,732 127,969 - 202,063 - 337,764
Written Back on Disposal & #& O] - - - (90,251) - (90,251)
At 30 June 2012 - F
ANA=1TB#ER 66,233 1,676,002 - 2,342,523 - 4,084,758
Net Book Value at —E--F5~A=1+H
30 June 2012 IREFE 270,615 3,561,310 1,214,380 381,896 15,602 5,443,803
Note: - Land refers to “Interest in Leasehold Land held for Own Use under Operating Leases”.

- The properties, including land and buildings, are located in Hong Kong. Leasehold land of the Shatin campus is granted by
the Govemment for use by the University under medium-term leases and is stated at nil value.
- A property, categorised under Buildings, with carrying amount of $102 million was pledged in the year of 2003 to secure
an interest-free loan from the Govemment. The relevant pledge was discharged in November 2012. At 30 June 2013, the
outstanding amount was nil (2012: $13.5 million).

PitEE: -

ITHEEEEEERTE R -

- FAEERBEIMEAEENEEE - AEFMEEERRH‘ PABMRYBREREZ AN L thEPRAZZL - I

AR ASSIR o

- EEREERT - EP-BREER—RFT-EETNNE - RTFT=FER—ERNFRREMEER - RFX
EREZHFRRECE——F—T=g0 18N  MEEEEIeR=3——5+—RB##R -



15.

INVESTMENTS  #%i&
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A& #EFIT5IT)
15.1 Non-Current Investments JERENIRE The Group The University
REAEERE KRE2
2013 2012 2013 2012
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities, HEERRGEERES -
at Amortised Cost TR EHm A
Unlisted JELT 2,322,242 2,818,368 2,206,099 2,787,078
Listed fialy ]
Hong Kong & 1,453 - - -
Overseas =5 6,324 127,215 6,224 103,666
2,330,019 2,945,583 2,312,423 2,890,744
Available-for-sale Securities oftHERES
Unlisted Equity Securities, JE LRSS
at Cost E£-{D 7 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001
Less: Provision for Impairment W R 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000]
1 1 1 1
Equity Securities Listed in Hong Kong, HE FHEAES
at Fair Value BRAREE 239,042 217,875 - -
239,043 217,876 1 1
Limited Partnership Investments, [RESBIEE -
at Fair Value (Note 1) BAREE (MiEE1) 1,233,344 1,158,519 1,233,344 1,158,519
Alternative Investments, BEERE -
at Fair Value (Note 2) mAonEE (MEE2) 205560 285,308 305560 285,308
Investments in Unconsolidated JEmSHIBAT
Subsidiaries, at Cost HIRE » 1RAAR 110,257 98,274 - -
Non-Current Investments IEmENRE

4,218,225 4,705,560

3,851,328

4,334,572



Note:(1) These investments represent the University’s equity interest as a limited partner in three limited partnerships
and are stated at fair value. The University intends to hold these investments for long-term purposes. The
main limited partnership, which started in July 2006, targets to maximise long-term risk-adjusted returns and
to achieve capital appreciation and invests in proprietary funds, discretionary accounts and partnerships
across a broad range of marketable and alternative asset classes, including both publicly traded and privately
held securities and obligations. All applicable lock-up periods of the main limited partnership ended on or
before 31 December 2011. The University may withdraw all or any part of its Capital Account by giving the
General Partner of the partnership written advance notice of not less than one year prior to withdrawal.

In July 2009 and February 2010, the University joined as a limited partner of two new limited partnerships
set up by the same General Partner. These new limited partnerships were set up to invest in highly selective
investment opportunities formerly held by limited partners of other limited partnerships who have been
forced to sell in the market at substantial discounts their high-quality limited partnership interests in private
equity, distressed credit, real estate, natural resources, etc. The capital commitments will be drawn upon
request from the General Partner. The University’s commitments are about 4% and 1.8% of the respective
total commitments of these two new limited partnerships. The maximum sums payable by the University
are US$14.9 million and US$2.25 million respectively.

(2) The alternative investments represent the University’s investments arranged and managed by an investment
consultant in the United States. These alternative investments include hedge funds, private equity funds
and limited partnership with a lock-up period of two to three years. The University intends to hold these
alternative investments for long-term purposes.

Hist: (1) REMZRESBASHNBRARER=ERESBER2MUALBEEFIR - KB EIRPHENEIREEE -
REIBENREGBRERSSE F ARG - BRENENRG N EAARRRSNON - WENERIBE -
EHNREEESEEEER  EEERRFAEUZSEHRENSBREASZEEES - HPIEREAREERTL
ABBNESLEY - FEREGBEENREEERCR=F——F+A=1+—HE#R - KBALFEL—F
DEEBANESBARNERRFPHIAZENES -

RENZHIRZFFAFLARZE—FF-_ARENMENNRESHIER - EMEHRNRESBREEMMUL
REMREFERESHEBNEHE—EESBARH - EMERNRESBEEIZERENEEREREBEN
HittfRESGHIER - BERESBIEERHRTARESBALEERTSEEERLMU LRINFIRESHBE
B - BERESBEERESELERE - EEEEER - BiE - RRERS - REFRERNERGBAER
Fft - KEFRFRENRBERDRSMESBIEEENREFrNERCEOARERZ—R/\ » B LR HIB
—FOEATBEETA=E=+THERRT -

() ZERER—FAXENREBRRARRENER  BFEHTESE - WEREREES NMEME=FHERR
BEEBRES - AEFEIRPHFZSERERE -



15. INVESTMENTS $&%& (Continued £8)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A& #EFT5IT)

15.2 Current Investments RENI%E

The Group The University
REAERE AL
2013 2012 2013 2012
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities, HEEIHHEERS
at Amortised Cost TRIBEHR S
Amount Matured Within One Year —F RN
Unlisted LM 518,272|1 661,367| 501,372 584,127
Listed L
in Hong Kong =EE 23,332/ 24,148 - -
Overseas =igst 100,000 1,507( | 100,000 -
641,604 687,022 601,372 584,127
Trading Securities, at Fair Value OEEES  RAREE
Debt Securities BE5ES
Unlisted L 170,632 174,088 170,632 174,088
170,632 174,088 170,632 174,088
Equity Securities A S
Listed sty
in Hong Kong H=EE 251,607 231,117 95,627 82,373
Overseas =igst 754,258 658,959|  749,474| | 658,794
1,005,865 890,076 845,101 741,167
Unit Trusts BhEEES
Unlisted L 584,432|| 515,842| 584,432 515,842
Listed L
in Hong Kong TEE 1,065 997 - -
Overseas =g 46,5781 46,799 46,578 46,799
632,075 563,638 631,010 562,641
1,808,572 1,627,802 1,646,743 1,477,896
Current Investments mEnsE 2,450,176 2,314,824 2243115 2,062,023

Total Held-to-maturity Debt Securities (Including Non-Current and Current Investments) :

FEENMRREESAE(EEFRBAREIRE)

The Group The University
AR K
2013 2012 2013 2012
At amortised cost RIS A 2,971,623 3,632,605 2,913,795 3,474,871
At fair value BAREE 3,039,931 3,677,056 2,981,685 3,516,805

e
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16.1 Defined Benefit Scheme and Employee Retirement Benefit Assets REFZHEIRESERAGEHEE

The Group operates a defined benefit scheme for staff under Terms of Service (C), The Chinese University
of Hong Kong Terms of Service (C) Staff Terminal Gratuity Scheme (“the TGS Scheme”). The TGS Scheme
was registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance on 15 November 1995. Since the
establishment of a MPF Scheme on 1 December 2000, the TGS Scheme has been closed to new members.
REBERS(R)ERB RGN ESRMH—EFREHZETE - Bl "&EBPXKER)ERB RO ESLAEINEEE,
EFEIZRBRFERMET SRR —WNAAE+—B+A M - BB EEAR ST F+"F—HMIL
% WRENZABEFABEZMKE -
As of 30 June 2013, the asset allocation of the TGS Scheme comprised Cash and Bank Deposit of $44 million
(2012 : $41.1 million) and Bonds with market value of $48.3 million (2012 : $58.6 million), approximately 48%
and 52% of the total asset value.
RIZ—Z=F7A=1H ' FEBPXKE(R)ERBIFRGIESZIBEIIMESTENEERRIRELRITEFRNTNE
BR(C®:——F : @F—B8—18Rx) AEENFTFNE=TER(CE—ZF : AFN\BRTER)NES - 25G
BREEHNEIZNTNARA+Z -
(i) The amount recognised in the Balance Sheet is as follows:

BERBRAERZHEAT :

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LA&#EFIToIm)
The Group and the University

REERERAE
2012
Present Value of Funded Obligations HREEZIRE (95,718)
Fair Value of Scheme Assets sEIRNEE AREE 99,692
Net Unrecognised Actuarial Loss IRIERZEIEEEE 18,891
Net Assets FEE 22,865

A portion of the above assets is expected to be recovered in the next twelve months. However, it is not
practicable to segregate this amount from the amount recoverable after more than one year, as future
reductions in contributions will also relate to future services rendered and future changes in actuarial
assumptions and market conditions.

G B EESTREIRART ZEARWE - ERRASBHHERERBECRZAEEMEN © HIUSRESR
HEVIRTS ~ BERRATSRREE - AILER EFREISER—FE71 AR ENEESRSIR -

(i) Scheme assets consist of the following:
FHEIEESRE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT It5IT)
The Group and the University

FREREZRE N RER
2012
Bonds (EE= 58,818
Cash and bank deposits IREMIRITIEM 40,874

99,692



(i) Movements in the net assets recognised in the Balance Sheet are as follows:
TEEARBRABRCFEELEEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAEHETFT5IT)
The Group and the University

REERRKE
2013 2012
Balance - Beginning of Year FAEEE 22,865 22,245
Contributions paid to the Scheme STEIHEER 868 939
Current Service Cost REFERRIEA A (1,215) (1,243)
Interest Cost M2z (435) (1,420)
Expected Return on Scheme Assets stEIREEZ TR 2,288 2,495
Amortisation of unrecognised Actuarial Loss 0 RiERAIIEEEE (1,338) (151)
Net Expense recognised in the FXHERER (700) (319)
Statement of Comprehensive W= FRPiER
Income and Expenditure
Balance - End of Year TFRRIEER 23,033 22,865

The net expense/income was recognised in the line item of staff cost and benefits under Management and
General in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

BXHMWAREAWRZRPHEE R —REEANE TEHM R EF PR

The actual return on plan assets of the Group and the University (taking into account all changes in the fair value
of the plan assets excluding contributions paid and received) was net expense of $2.8 million (2012: $2.4 million).
REBELABRAGTEINEENERER (BFEFREERNEENAREESZD - EFEEEREINHRAERM
#FlE) - BEXHATBENTERCE -4 “80+ERT) °

(iv) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations:

REFRTEBRENEZD)
The Group and the University
REBERERAE
2013 2012
Balance - Beginning of Year FEVHEER 95,718 97,630
Benefits paid by the Scheme EstEIPZ I Fls= (11,028) (11,790)
Current service cost NEERIEH A 1,215 1,243
Interest cost LS 435 1,420
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss EE(BER)/E5E (4,065) 7,215
(2,415) 9,878
Balance - End of Year R 82,275 95,718
(v) Movements in fair value of scheme assets:
FEINEE AT ENES)
The Group and the University
REERRKE
2013 2012
Balance - Beginning of Year FHEER 99,692 108,146
Contributions paid to the Scheme RENGEN 868 939
Benefits paid by the Scheme fEFtElP R (Il (11,028) (11,790)
Expected return on plan assets BN E ERFRRAEIR 2,288 2,495
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) FEERER/(B518) 535 (98)
Balance - End of Year TR 92,355 99,692

@



(vi) Expenses recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive and expenditure, and statement of

comprehensive income and expenditure are as follows:

EREEHEIRAEER I RAER BT

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LA #TFTTHITR)
The Group and the University

KRR AER
2013 2012
Current service cost NEEREH A 1,215 1,243
Interest cost M2z 435 1,420
Expected return on scheme assets stElRE EZ FEHRETR (2,288) (2,495)
Net actuarial losses recognised EREEEEE 1,338 151
during the year

700 319

The actual return on scheme assets of the Group and the University (taking into account all changes in
the fair value of the scheme assets excluding contributions paid and received) was net gain of $535,000
(2012: net loss of $98,000)

ABRERABRNRGTEIAEENERDR (SEMEEREENAABEES - EF2ECHENHREE
XfIFlsE) - BENEAAT=8ATRCE—ZF: FBEAENTT) -

(vii) The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 30 June 2013 are as follows:

REF—=FA=THREEMFEAZEERRAT -
The Group and the University

REERERAE
2013 2012
(% p.a.) (% p.a.)
Discount Rate at 30 June AA=THEZIFIRE 1.30 0.50
Expected Rate of Return on Scheme Assets FEIAEEZ FEHAEIRE 2.50 2.50
Interest Credited on Plan Accounts REAGTEIRBEZFIR 5.00 5.00

Average Future Salary Increase R FHIFh R FHIEIEE

Over 5 years hFA 3.00 3.00
Thereafter Hig 3.00 3.00

The expected rate of return on scheme assets is determined by reference to the long term market expectation
of the rate of investment return allowing for the scheme’s target asset allocation. It is set at the year end
but is applicable to the following year. The resulting “expected return on scheme assets” is an offsetting
item for the recognised annual expense (see note 16(vi) above). Effective from 1 July 2013, the expected
return on assets assumption will no longer be required.

FEINEEC RHLNHRES R BNEREES HINRARGHSRELORRAE < WOHRRREEETEL
BRRT—EFE - SEAEECFRRORZIEHEFEDNZL (RMEE16(vi) - B=F—=FtA—HE ' &
RNEEZRHLHEEABEER



Historical Information @F&E#

The Group and the University

REBEERAEB
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Present value of the HMREEIRE (82,275) (95,718) (97,630) (102,024) (104,764)
defined benefit obligations
Fair value of the Scheme sTElIREEY 92,355 99,692 108,146 113,743 118,992
Assets AREE
Surplus in the Scheme sTEIZER 10,080 3,974 10,516 11,719 14,228
Experience adjustments arising stEIEEZ &R (357) (918) (283) 663 397
on scheme liabilities (B18)/= e
Experience adjustments arising EtEIEEZEH (535) 98 (688) 1,626 510
on scheme assets (E518)/2 84

16.2 Defined Contribution Scheme FREMHFTE

In addition to the defined benefit scheme disclosed in Note 16.1, the Group operates two defined contribution
schemes, i.e. The Chinese University of Hong Kong Staff Superannuation Scheme (1995) (“the 1995 Scheme”)
and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”). The 1995 Scheme is registered under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance. Employer contributions to these defined contribution schemes
are as follows:

ERBftzE16.1 FRIR AR EFmETE » KEBENTRHEMESRE TMERRNFEHREE  MEBPIABHEE
DEREE (—HANR) ( "—HAAAEEL ) FSEHMAEERE ( TEESEEL ) o —AAAREIRIRERRINGTE
RGITEEM o AT 2RMIESTEHRETEIFELAREEHM

17.

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB IT5ITR)
The Group The University
REERE K&
2013 2012 2013 2012
The 1995 Scheme —hAAEEl 158,065 152,105 157,058 150,866
The MPF Scheme MEEETE 99,043 82,835 98,292 82,181
Total Contributions AR 257,108 255,350

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND

OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(UBETFTIT)

234,940

FEUIRER ~ FRITFRIA R H fth FE W FRIE

233,047

The Group The University
REREERS REE
2013 2012 2013 2012
Loan to Subsidiary ERFHBLE 53,490 53,490 53,490 53,490
Other Loan Receivable HithFRW &R 500 500 - -
Accounts Receivable FEUTIRTR 185,934 176,935 177,287 171,028
Sundry Deposits, Prepayments and HIERE - EMNRER 164,971 97,267 160,283 91,450
Other Receivables H{thFEYWR
Student Loans BEEM 3,824 5,183 2,572 3,905
Current Accounts with Subsidiaries Pt AEERIR 5,823 5,309 5,823 5,309
Amount due from UGC HEZERIR 128,597 184,862 128,597 184,862
543,139 523,546 528,052 510,044
Less: Non-Current portion of Accounts i : FEWIRFR R FERT
Receivable and Prepayments FIBEIETRENER S 167,754 53,990 167,254 53,490
Current portion of Accounts FEWIRFR R TR FIE
Receivables and Prepayments mEnE s 375,385 469,556 360,798

456,554 '
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At 30 June 2013, Non-current Accounts Receivable and Prepayments include an unsecured and interest-free
loan of $53.49 million (2012: $53.49 million) to a subsidiary repayable in January 2021. The remaining amount
of $113.76 million (2012: Nil) represents cash advanced to business unit for long-term developments in the
People’s Republic of China.

REF—Z=F A=+ HIFRBEBRIERERARIESE - SR T80 +NEXCE-ZF: AT=80+IER)
BIEHRERNERTHBEAS  ZERBRZ2F—F—AEE - % ' —B—TF=8t+ " BnRE2R TR
HWEEEMFREAMNRERE -

Student loans are granted to local undergraduate and postgraduate students of the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. The amount of the loan depends on the student’s financial hardship and/or the loan received from the
“Tertiary Students Finance Scheme-Publicly-Funded Programmes” or the terms of the respective loan schemes.
All student loans are interest-free and repaid by instalments within a stipulated period or upon graduation. If the
borrower ceased to be a student of the University, all loans are then repayable immediately.

BEERZENTEEPNABNARR LMK REZ HHINAEBEE - BHEHERFEENMBRZEN/AZEER

"EBNE LEREEEEMEE, PARESHNERE - MENBEERNBERER  BEEFREENBREAS 1
fEIE - MEEAER TRILBENSG - FRAEREILEEE -

The current accounts with Colleges and Subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and without fixed terms of
repayment. Other than part of Student Loans, all of the other accounts receivable and prepayments are expected
to be recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

Sl &HBASHERIRRDRIER - RELERNERERR - REOBEERI - HBKIRMRERSE—F AN
OskfER R ©

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AGEING ANALYSIS FRULIRFRIRER 2 4R

The balance of accounts receivable mainly comprises bills receivable and interest receivable, with the following
ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date :

FEMUIRFRADER RE = B EIERWIRE VA M EFI 2 - EEEEBREERMIRR ST :
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TT5IR)

The Group The University
REAEZED XE

2012 2012
Current AREIHA 90,879 86,174
Less than 1 month past due PR—ER 63,550 62,419
1to 3 months past due —EBRE=EA 6,123 6,112
More than 3 months but less than 12 =EAZE+=EA 16,269 16,269

months past due

More than 12 months past due +=@AM L 114 54
Amount past due [ 86,056 84,854
Total FEWIR R4S EE 176,935 171,028

The Group and the University are satisfied that the past due amount is likely to be recoverable. No impairment
loss is provided for the year.
ARBEERABITERERNEEIMERTEWE - FLt - FERFTEEATEREERER



18. CASH AND SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS WITH BANKS IR K IR1TIEHER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (M &HEFIT5IT)

The Group The University
RERERRS RE
2013 2012 2013 2012
Cash in Hand and with Banks and RE ~ RITREM 48,634 73,972 46,718 53,091
Other Financial Institutions HATS BT
Time Deposits EHATERR 7,393,784 4,466,339 6,603,777 3,846,255
Cash and Short-term Deposits inthe ~ BEBEBERAIRER 7,442,418 4,540,311 6,650,495 3,899,346
Balance Sheet IRITHEHAER
Less: Time Deposits with Original B EREBBR=EA
Maturity over Three Months HIEHRTERR 6,650,384 3,772,659 5,926,342 3,261,464
Cash and Cash Equivalents in the IRERERANIRE
Cash Flow Statement MREEEY 792,034 767,652 724153 637,882

Cash and Cash Equivalents included the following amounts denominated in foreign currency:
REMREEFEVINIREEEE - BFETISMNEEREE:

(Expressed in thousands)  (LAFf15iR)

The Group The University
REAREED REB
2013 2012 2013 2012
Australian Dollars AUD BT 432 333 432 333
Pounds Sterling GBP REE 959 1,073 159 273
Renminbi RMB ARHE 278,035 183,377 112,540 55,024
United States Dollars USD E=yIn 31,376 22,923 6,018 1,198

Note: Time Deposits of $51.4 million (2012: $13.6 million) were pledged to secure two loans from the Government
(Note 21(b)).
Mzt BEAT—BNTET(CES——F: — T8 TER) ZEREREIER T BRERERZIER(FIEE21 (b)) ©

19. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS [E{tiRsRESTEH

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUBHETFTT5IR)
The Group The University

REEEE K&
2013 2012 2013 2012

Student Fees Received in Advance AU ERAE R Lt & 345,823 299,235 345,823 299,235
Accounts Payable FEfTRFR 167,066 212,585 149,298 201,463
Other Creditors and Accruals HEMRARESTER 76,050 85,599 76,050 85,599
Deposits and Caution Money Received 1&& MIRIEE 151,898 227,482 151,808 227,482
Current Accounts with Colleges ERRERIE - - 175194 162,575
Current Accounts with Subsidiaries Pt BB A EIERIR 72,322 66,342 72,322 66,342

813,159 891,243 970,585 1,042,696

The Group and the University will settle the accounts payable and loans according to payment due date. For
the ageing analysis of the accounts payable, please refer note 30.1(ii).

ARERERABSRBRBELERER - AIEREEE - BAIRFIRERNDHT - HSRMEE30.1(i)

@



20. PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EESREM%E
E d in th ds of H K doll LB T5lm
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  ( ) The Group The University
KEEERE KREE
2013 2012 2013 2012
Staff Leave Entitlements EEFREATEF 379,923 332,310 378,620 332,204
Contract-end Gratuity and Long Service KimE AR 149,606 141,277 148,627 139,223
Payments IR &
Retirement Benefit Scheme Contributions RINEFIHEER 14,435 13,965 14,435 13,965
Salaries and Wages HFERTE 36,500 49,762 36,500 49,762
580,464 537,314 578,182 535,154
Payable: FEf
Within 1 year R—FERA 382,227 337,044 380,869 335,588
After 1 year R—F& 198,237 200,270 197,313 199,566
580,464 537,314 578,182 535,154
21. LOANS AND BORROWINGS {8
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (M &HEFIT5IT) The Group and the University
REARZRE T K ER
2013 2012
Bank Loans for On-Lending to Staff (Note a) EETHEE 2 RITEM(MiEEa)
Within One Year —FA 78,000 81,000
Secured Loans (Note b) BIRBER (D)
Within One Year —FR 6,274 15,801
Between One and Two Years —FZ 6,275 2,274
Between Two and Five Years “ERF 18,823 6,823
Over Five Years AFEPE 20,000 2,275
51,372 27,173
Total Loans and Borrowings [ EEE] 129,372 108,173
Less: Repayable within One Year and B —ERREEZ 84,274 96,801
Included in Current Liabilities piE/I=L=
Amount included in Non-current Liabilities —FREECIERIEE 45,098 11,372
Notes FfizE:

(@)

The bank loans for on-lending to staff are repayable within twelve months and renewable annually subject to
the bank’s consent. At present, the loans bear interest at 2.5 percentage points below the lending bank’s best
lending rate.

BEFPHHERITEMNERRR—F - MEXRTER - BEIITEYN - REMSAEMRTEREEERFRRE
—HAE-

The secured loans comprise two start-up loans from the Government to provide self-financing full time accredited
post-secondary programmes. The loans are interest-free, repayable in equal annual instalments over 10 years
starting from November 2008 and February 2014 respectively. One of the loans with an outstanding amount
of HK$11.4 million (2012: $13.6 million), and the other loan which was drawn down in February 2013 of $40
million are secured by time deposits of the same amount.

BEAEREEMERBAEHNORE - LAEFEREAFBa2E RIS LRE - EMEERIISREER 2
At =FFNF+—AR=F—NF-BRE7+FFEE - HP—ERE—T BN+ ExCE—=F —F=8
ATER)NER - AB—EBEE=F-ZF-AXANERR/EENTER - ABHLHRHENEHEFRERER -



22. DEFERRED INCOME

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (WA &HEFIT5IT)
The Group and the University
REBERRAEB
Earmarked Grants Capital Grants Grants from  Others Total
fEERAEMENE and Government
AA&I Block Agencies
Allocation Funds
HiEmphgsm
P2 ~ I - g
Research  Others RETR BATtE
LS Hith BRI B Hifth iz
2013
Balance - Beginning  HA¥I4EES 297,054 207,542 (92,062) 30,985 1,886 445,405
of Year
Subventions Received/ BYU/EY 197,303 77,143 621,284 42,516 249 938,495
Receivable &hn
Recognised as income ZARFRMER  (175643)  (91,456) (42,816) (43,698) (1,474) (355,087)
in the year HIYA
Transferred (to)/from  B(E)BIEE (3414)  (6,941) (392,911) (2,102) (39) (405,407)
Deferred Capital Funds BAEE
Balance - End of Year HR#R#EER 315,300 186,288 93,495 27,701 622 623,406
To be recognised: IS RERRTE ¢
Within 1 year —FRN 179,852 22,058 93,495 27,701 622 323,728
After 1 year —Fi& 135,448 164,230 - - - 299,678
315,300 186,288 93,495 27,701 622 623,406
2012
Balance - Beginning HAWN&EER 276,555 212,386 34,402 32,814 6,311 562,468
of Year
Subventions Received/ BYU/EY 201,109 184,493 1,027,881 56,489 1,381 1,471,353
Receivable &hn
Recognised as income ZAERER  (177,027) (187,607) (45,004)  (23,751)  (6,380)  (439,859)
in the year HIYA
Transferred (to)/from  B(Z)ENEE  (3,583) (1,730) (1,109,251)  (34,567) 574  (1,148,557)
Deferred Capital Funds BAEE
Balance - End of Year HR#&#56R 297,054 207,542 (92,062) 30,985 1,886 445,405
To be recognised: IS RERRTE :
Within 1 year —FR 183,460 49,470 (92,062) 30,985 1,886 173,739
After 1 year —F& 113,594 158,072 - - - 271,666
297,054 207,542 (92,062) 30,985 1,886 445,405

T8



23. DEFERRED CAPITAL FUNDS BEEREE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (WA &HEFIT5IT)

The Group and the University

REEE N AE
Earmarked Grants Capital Grants Grants from Others Total
IEERA&®EEE and Government
AA&I Block  Agencies
Allocation Funds
Higmpham

DGR - I8 - 4
Research Others REETHE BT AR
Rlar Hith M B Hith b

Balance - 1 July 2011 —s— —F
tHA—H4&8% 9,485 36,490 2,326,617 (3,935) 21,453 2,390,110

Transfer from/(to) Deferred ~ HBE/(E)IEE 3,583 1,730 1,109,251 34,567 (574) 1,148,557
Income g

Transfer to the Statement of BEZEWZR (6,489) (11,519) (98,487) (20,768) (20,782) (158,045)
Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure

Balance - 30 June 2012 =—FT—=%

~A=1TRA%&8k 6,579 26,701 3,337,381 9,864 97 3,380,622

Transfer from/(to) Deferred BE/(E)RE 3,414 6,941 392,911 2,102 39 405,407
Income Wz

Transfer to the Statement of BWEZEWZFR (4.846) (12628) (126,249)  (3,823) (55) (147,601)

Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure

Balance - 30 June 2013 =—F—=%
~B=1TA%&S 5147 21,014 3,604,043 8,143 81 3,638,428




24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Due to the publicly funded nature of the University
and its nine Colleges and the composition of their
Council (being drawn from private and public
organisations), the University and its nine Colleges
have received from time to time donations from
University Council members, key management
personnel and companies controlled or significantly
influenced by them. The receipts of such donations
have all been individually reported to the Council
and approved in accordance with the University’s
financial regulations.

All transactions relating to the purchases of
goods and services and capital projects involving
organisations in which a member of the University’s
Council may have an interest are conducted during
the normal course of business and in accordance
with the University’s financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures.

In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
there are the following material related party
transactions:

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24.

KBS R 5

AABRENEERDBAEER, FILEREENS
EEEBNERAEWE - KBRHERMMERES N
8 ABXEEEAS » MHEFNASSZHEAR
ERNSWEMER - ELIBRED Al EIRABRER
WARIBABEAFRAUHL R UL -

ABEEREFEBRETRENRERS LERIEE 6
MTHEABREGHESBFERARIEEN - (BI5L
RBRRABHNAE R IEBARBERET -

FRESMBREEMMORKENRS REGER - I
BUTHEESRS:

(BT TIT)

The University

PAL-]
2013 2012
(i) Income received from Subsidiaries (i) RMBLARBMEATESH
and Associate g
Service fees and rental charges RFZE NEE 16,556 21,249
The Group and the
University
REERERAE
2013 2012
(i) Key Management Personnel (i) FEEBASHEE
Compensation
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits e AHMERESET 35,381 37,490
Post-employment benefits RIREF 3,904 4,083
39,285 41,573
The Group and the
University
KRB AL
2013 2012
(iii) Loans to Related Parties (ili) HRFEARS
Loans to key management under the AREBHRERSEHETET
University’s Staff Loan Scheme (Note 25) TERERAR(FRE25)
Beginning of the year REN) 5,250 6,150
Net loans repaid during the year NERZFBEE (150) (900)
End of the year RE# 5,100 5,250




25.

26.

27.

STAFF LOANS 25.

Staff loans, with interest at prime rate minus 2.5%
at present, are available to eligible staff members of
the retirement scheme(s) operated by the University.
The loan is repayable upon demand or at the expiry
of loan term due at the end of each calendar year
unless renewed by the University.

COMMITMENTS RiE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

HESER

ABRAEMFEERABRAESHEINNHBREE
RIFHEAREENRB_BAE - FRIEREBRHE
SEMER - BRIRERERBFEENEREIHE
BERBERTEE °

(UEBEETTIT)

Commitments outstanding at 30 June 2013 not provided for in the financial statements are as follows:

RES—Z=F/A=1H » REMBHRRBHERREIFTAOT

The Group The University
NEAREED KRER
2013 2012 2013 2012
Capital Expenditure Commitments ~ BE7REIE
Contracted for B4 360,796 670,101 360,796 668,607
Authorised but not Contracted for EREELREL 591,183 921,017 579,937 909,829
951,979 1,591,118 940,732 1,578,436
Operating Expenditure Commitments & F&IE
Contracted for B4 249,894 247,674 249,894 247,674
Other Financial Commitments HhBATSEIE
Contracted for B4
Investments in Subsidiaries HBATIRE - 12,260 - 12,260
Others Hifth 37,908 104,210 37,908 104,210
1,239,781 1,955,262 1,228,535 1,942,580
OPERATING LEASE RECEIVABLES [EBE&iAS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(MUBBTFTIIR)

At 30 June 2013, the total future minimum lease income under non-cancellable operating leases is as follows:

REB—ZF/A=1H ' REFURRNEERE - REUNSEREWABBEZFTAT

The Group The University
REERE RE
2013 2012 2013 2012
Within one year —FA 11,031 10,200 8,882 8,244
Two to five years —ERfF 7,151 5,163 6,892 5,160
18,182 15,363 15,774 13,404




(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LT TT5IR)

At 30 June 2013, the total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases is as follows:
RIB—Z=FA=1H » RIEFOIBERINEERS » [SREBMNWREHERBEEHSWAOT :

Within one year —FR
Two to five years “EhRE

Operating lease charges for the year ZNFEZLEH

The University is a government subvented tertiary
education institution established under the laws
of HKSAR which objects are to provide learning
and research in wide range of undergraduate and
postgraduate programmes in technology, science,
commerce, arts and other areas. Its activities are
mainly funded by government grants, tuition fees,
donations, income generated from self-financing
activities and investment income.

The University defines capital as including various
general and restricted funds balances. The various
funds of the University represent the accumulated
unspent balance of subventions, fees income,
donations and investment returns. These funds are
managed according to the relevant grant and funding
conditions, where applicable, and the University’s
investment and financial management guidelines
and procedures are established in accordance
with the relevant statues of the University with the
view of meeting the objects of the University and
safeguarding the University’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

There has been no change in the University’s
capital management practices as compared to prior
year. The University is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements, except for the
balance of GDRF as disclosed in note 11.

The Group The University
REER RE
2012 2012
12,854 12,808
2,828 2,828
15,682 15,636

19,909 19,633

FARBEETEEIITEREEE TN —FIEBRE
BIVE FHEKIE - STERETHRERMRRRER
M~ B2 - BF - XBREMEENHE RG] - X
BREBTERHBANMHEE - BE - BENE - 8
BEBEBNRARREOHREER

ABNEFAEREBE—RESNERAESE - KEMNF
IBEEHETREANERNHEE - WE - BER
AR EWEHFTEN - ZEFEEERIEHEELERN
BN RIEMVIFIEE » THRE - MBEEEESIN
EFEREABHERANRETEUHERABNER
RAEERBAHEEEES -

PRETEE 11 PARIEEM — R R B REREE I - KB
EFXEEBREEFNER - WRHNE - MALEARR
HIRERISFRIEMBVERZER o
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30.1

Financial instruments of the Group and the University
include bank deposits, investment in debt securities,
equity securities, unit trusts, limited partnerships
and alternative investments, which have exposure
to credit, liquidity, interest rate, foreign currency
and equity price risks arising in the normal course
of the Group’s and the University’s operations.
These risks are managed by the Group’s and the
University’s financial management policies and
practices described below.

Bank deposits, investment in debt securities,
equity securities and unit trusts

(i) Credit risk

The Group’s and the University’s exposure to
credit risk is mainly attributable to the deposits
they maintained with various financial institutions
and investment securities held by fund managers,
including held-to-maturity debt securities and
trading securities. The Group and the University
established their guidelines to minimise the credit
risk associated with these financial assets. Held-
to-maturity debt securities are predominantly
with minimum credit ratings of “Aa3” / “AA” as
assigned by international credit rating agencies
at the time of purchase. Trading securities
are all of good investment grade and are held
through appointed professional investment
managers who would manage the portfolios
through comprehensive monitoring systems.
The Group and the University have no significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread
over a large number of counterparties.

Internal policies have also been set up to reduce
credit risk associated with bank deposits. Such
policies do not only restrict deposits to be placed
at Authorised Institutions (Note) of good credit
ratings but also address concentration risk by
limiting the total amount deposited with each
institution.

Credit risk associated with loans and other
receivables is immaterial to the Group and
the University and all doubtful receivables are
adequately provided for.

(Note: Authorised Institutions are deposit-taking
institutions that are licensed by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority to operate in Hong Kong.)

AREBEERABNEMTHEOUERTER - BFE5 -
RAES - BUfSREENRE - RESBREASHE
1524 - ZAREFTD  BLERTRMEHNERERE
EERR - REERER - FIRER - SNERSR KRR
BRER - AEBIERABERATIINERMEERRK
HEREE I LU S B

30.1 SRITERM - BHES - RAESRBEUEREZNRE

(i) EEREMRE

ABRERASHEHNEERRERZRBFHRR
FRMBHENTEREESRECERFNESR
& afERAENMAEHRESATEERES - K
BRELABEHTHEERES SRR EEHREN
FEEEERERE - BAMGHEEINPEHESE
BARNIRERFIREREREETREBITE
B9 “Aa3” / "AA” &R ; BRI EERFIIBRIFR
EfRl - IS BERINERRELEERFEREZEN
BERREE - AERENABNEE R RES
MERPIRELERE - MESHRRZHNRSZT °

DRERTEREERR - KEEERABHIRER
BERRBIHSRIEFR B RIFEETRATR I HE(
i) ' ARREREFFEESFHER - SRS
HITF AR BRI AR -

ERERLEtMBRIRFIRERIENEERET 7
W REBELAKBHAEOWNERNCHELE
S5 o

G RORBRERTEEENERRRZLIEEE
EEMRATERIES <)



(i) Liquidity risk

The Group and the University have sufficient
funds to finance its ongoing working capital
requirements. Measures are implemented to
regularly monitor the current and expected
liquidity requirements of the Group and the

(i) MBVEZ R

AERERABTEANRBES URHHEZEMN
B URAHIIEHERRENRRRBDESNS
2 DEREAEARDES ROIRERERNTES
2% LIBEAREZE -

University, ensuring that sufficient cash reserves
and readily realisable marketable securities are
maintained to meet its liquidity requirements.

The following table presents the earliest
settlement dates of the Group’s and the
University’s financial liabilities at the balance
sheet date, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest

UT—BRILABEERABEEABRACE
BERPEAXMHS  WHESHKRITRESRE

(BEMESHARAENFEZL - MEHFIRE
FRANRFAENR - IRREESERENZEF

. EEH)
payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on current rates at the balance
sheet date):
(@) The Group ~ REEEES
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LE#EFITHIR)

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BREHNZARITRRERHE

2013
Balance  Within 1 Year More than More than2 5 Years Total
Sheet or 1 Year but Years butless and Amount
carrying on Demand less than than More
amount 2 Years 5 Years
BEAER —5R wE—F ®@Be—F IF
EEeE  WEER  EoR-E EdRAEFE MUE @
Accounts Payable and  FE{IIRFR A FEST 813,159 813,159 - 813,159
Accruals =R
Provision for Employee (g5 f&#%Efi 580,464 382,227 130,061 68,103 73 580,464
Benefits
Loans and Borrowings  f&&R 129,372 86,224 6,275 18,823 20,000 131,322
Deferred Income B 623,406 323,728 299,678 623,406
2,146,401 1,605,338 436,014 86,926 20,073 2,148,351
2012
Balance  Within 1 Year More than More than2 5 Years Total
Sheet or 1 Year but Years butless and Amount
carrying on Demand less than than More
amount 2 Years 5 Years
BESGBR —&R BE—-F EECF hf
EESE  SEER  Eon-F EsREE NE 8
Accounts Payable and FE{TIRFR & FEET 891,243 891,243 - - - 891,243
Accruals &H
Provision for Employee {EE{EFI#fHE 537,314 337,044 118,990 81,280 - 537,314
Benefits
Loans and Borrowings &k 108,173 98,826 2,274 6,823 2,275 110,198
Deferred Income IEFEW R 445,405 173,739 271,666 - - 445,405
1,500,852 392,930

1,982,135

88,103

2,275

1,984,160

e



(b) The University KE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAEHSTFITHITR)
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BREHAZKRINRREREE
2013
Balance Within 1 Year More than More than 2 5 Years Total
Sheet or 1 Year but Years butless and Amount
carrying on Demand less than than More
amount 2 Years 5 Years
aEafmsx —FA  @A—F @AZF 1F
RESE  WRER  EYR-E EvREE ME as
Accounts Payable and FE{IIRFR K FEST 970,585 970,585 - - - 970,585
Accruals &R
Provision for Employee {ES &% 578,182 380,869 129,137 68,103 73 578,182
Benefits
Loans and Borrowings &k 129,372 86,224 6,275 18,823 20,000 131,322
Deferred Income IEEW 623,406 323,728 299,678 - - 623,406
2,301,545 1,761,406 435,090 86,926 20,073 2,303,495
2012
Balance  Within 1 Year More than Morethan2 5 Years Total
Sheet or 1 Year but Years butless and amount
carrying on Demand less than than More
amount 2 Years 5 Years
BEARER —HFR BBR—F BECF Fitcd
IREEEE REBBR  EOR=E EIREE ML ]
Accounts Payable and FETIRFRFEETER 1,042,696 1,042,696 - - - 1,042,696
Accruals
Provision for Employee {EE{EF%fH 535,154 335,588 118,415 81,151 - 535154
Benefits
Loans and Borrowings &R 108,173 98,826 2,274 6,823 2,275 110,198
Deferred Income IEFEW 445,405 173,739 271,666 - - 445,405
2,131,428 1,650,849 392,355 87,974 2,275 2,133,453
(iii) Interest rate risk (iii) FIRRE

As to interest-bearing financial assets, the Group
and the University hold fixed-rate bank deposits
and debt securities.

The Group’s interest-bearing financial liabilities
at the balance sheet date are not significant. The
Group does not expect short-term fluctuations in
market interest rates will have significant impact
to the Group’s results of operations.

HREEFNSWENERMEE - KEBRRAES
AAERIRITERIERES

AREBEREERBRALSEEANTEEENE
& - REREEPMSARSHRENI A ZHA
BEENEBERBNEANTE -



During the year under review, the Group and the
University have no interest rate risk from interest-
bearing loan since the only interest-bearing
loan taken out by the University is for the sole
purpose of operating a staff loan scheme and any
fluctuations in market interest rates only affect
the staff loan borrowers.

The following tables indicate the effective interest

rates of these interest-bearing financial assets:

(a) The Group FoEAERpE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

RAMBFE - KEEERABRBREEEMRM
REFRRBNFE ARELTREREARET
faE&TEl - MERNFIRERZHMERIE THIE -

MUT—ERF BRI SWA SRS E 2 BIFFIER :

(LB T TT5IR)
2013 2012
Effective Carrying Effective  Carrying
Interest Amount Interest Amount
Rate Rate
% p.a. % p.a.

BRFENR  IRESH

BIRFMNR RESHE

Fixed Rate Notes and Deposits

(b) The University XE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

EEEBATER 2.1 10,365,197 2.39 8,110,488
(BT TT5IR)
2013 2012
Effective Carrying Effective  Carrying
Interest Amount Interest Amount
Rate Rate
% p.a. % p.a.

BRFENR  IRESH

BERFMNR RESHE

Fixed Rate Notes and Deposits

EEEBENEMN 2.13 9,517,572

2.44 7,321,126
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(iv)

As at 30 June 2013, itis estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have increased/decreased the Group’s
surplus by approximately $36,772,000 (2012:
$22,377,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the balance sheet date
and had been applied to interest rate risk for
investments in short-term time deposits in
existence at that date. The Group may be
exposed to interest rate risk indirectly via its
holding in the investment portfolios which
hold debt instruments. Increase/Decrease
in investment income from these investment
portfolios arising from interest rate change
however is not considered in the sensitivity
analysis above due to insufficient information
provided by fund managers. The 50 basis points
increase/decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual
balance sheet date.

Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of the Group and the
University is Hong Kong dollars (HKD). Both the
Group’s and the University’s monetary assets are
denominated mainly in HKD and United States
dollars (USD) while their monetary liabilities
are predominantly in HKD. Those assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than
HKD and USD are not material.

About 25% of the Group’s and 26% of the
University’s financial assets (including cash,
bank deposits with banks, debt, equity securities
and investments) are denominated in USD,
but it is considered that risk of movement in
exchange rate between the HKD and the USD
is insignificant as the HKD is currently pegged to
the USD under the linked exchange rate system
adopted by the Government.

The following tables show the amounts of
financial assets (including cash, bank deposits
with banks, debt and investments) denominated
in various currencies at the balance sheet
date:
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REARE  MERARASERIEIRZX BRI TR
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e - AR BEERUEASIRES S o 1B/
BOA+THFEREEERHEETEFEEEAR
A LLERRF R S I O] e S ENRIETAL ©
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(BT TIIT)

(@) The Group RERERE
2013 2012
Amount % of total Amount % of total
value of value of
financial financial
assets assets
=8 LARERE =8 LARERE
Currency &EHg ENESL ENBSL
HKD i 8,466,817 60 6,425,515 54
uUsD ESw 3,602,911 25 3,409,539 30
RMB AR 1,689,406 12 1,399,458 12
Euro 7T 45,631 0 40,448 1
Japanese Yen =7 52,805 1 37,700 1
Pounds Sterling REE 76,890 1 67,982 1
Others Hith 66,101 1 81,777 1
14,000,561 100 11,462,419 100
(b) The University RE
2013 2012
Amount % of total Amount % of total
value of value of
financial financial
assets assets
=8 LRERE =8 IhESEE
Currency &g EMNBaLL EMNBaLL
HKD a1 7,555,634 60 5,562,236 53
uUsD ESn 3,343,990 26 3,117,217 31
RMB AR 1,461,322 1 1,242,836 12
Euro 7T 44,991 0 39,780 1
Japanese Yen Hit 52,057 1 37,075 1
Pounds Sterling REE 66,526 1 57,352 1
Others Hith 60,363 1 80,465 1
12,584,883 100 10,136,961 100

About 12% of the Group’s and 11% of the
University’s financial assets are denominated
in RMB. As the percentages of financial assets
denominated in currencies other than HKD,
RMB and USD to the total financial assets of the
Group and the University were both 3% as at 30
June 2013 (2012: both 4%), exposure to foreign
currency risk is not significant.
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(v) Equity price risk

The Group and the University are exposed to
equity price risk arising primarily from equity
investments and unit trusts classified under
trading securities (see note 15). The equity
price risk of the investments is managed by
professional managers through their own risk
management and assessment policies. The
investment managers’ investment strategies
are governed by the University’s investment
and asset allocation guidelines. The Group and
the University also monitor the risk exposure by
reviewing periodic reports from the custodians
and investment managers. The Group’s and the
University’s investments in equity securities are
spread over major stock markets in the world.

At the balance sheet date, if the prices of the
respective listed equity securities and unit
trusts had been 5% higher/lower, with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s and the
University’s surplus for the year would have
been increased/decreased by $64,627,000
(2012: $57,787,000) and $43,740,000 (2012:
$38,530,000) respectively as a result of the
changes in fair value of the listed equity securities
and unit trusts.

The following tables show the breakdown of
the values of the Group’s and the University’s
investments in listed equity securities and unit
trusts by trading market at the balance sheet
date:

(@) The Group REEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(v)

MR R ERERE

AREEELASEHNERESRREERE D
BRUEEESF THREESREMETES (M
#15) - REEREMREFRIGELEEB M
IR R EEBURESERE - MEREEE
HIET IR E RS AIREABFRHETNRENREE
DEIES| - AEBERABNEERTERBRIR
BEIBMERR S LETHE R - KBRS
FENRTESLREVERESAMRIERSER
(e

REEAERH  EREIBSLKEMEEETNE
BLATHES L » TEMM—TIOIE8RRIYER
TENBERT » ABEBEMABRERNNZLS &
A EHRERESREMEAETNATEEES
AEBENRD STFEEARTZBEtF (=
F: AFtEtTN\EtFR)AOT=E8t1THEE
T(CE—ZF =FN\BAE+T=8R)-

UT—EBRIHEERERAARBRERASRE
EERGMEZ LHREREMETESNERE -

(BT TIR)

2012

Equities  Unit Trusts
EAES BiEFER

Market tHiZ

Total Equities Unit Trusts Total
#agE feAESE EBfEtEE: A8

United States  EE
Hong Kong &

Europe &R

Japan A7

Asia Pacific EEKE »
excluding BEER
Hong Kong BABRSE
and Japan

Others Hith

454,062 46,799 500,861

448,992 997 449,989
122,353 - 122,353
37,563 - 37,563
30,971 - 30,971
14,010 - 14,010
1,107,951 47,796 1,155,747




(b) The University KRE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(BT IIT)

2013 2012

Equities  Unit Trusts Total

Equities  Unit Trusts Total

Market 5 EAES BEERE: 0 BAESE BuEREE: 8%
United States = 538,857 46,578 585,435 454,062 46,799 500,861
Hong Kong &5 95,627 - 95,627 82,373 - 82,373
Europe &R 125,130 - 125,130 122,353 - 122,353
Japan Bz 52,728 - 52,728 37,563 - 37,563
Asia Pacific BKE > 18,664 - 18,664 30,806 - 30,806

excluding B5ER

Hong Kong BHABRSE

and Japan
Others Hfth 14,095 - 14,095 14,010 - 14,010

845,101 46,578 891,679

741,167 46,799 787,966

30.2 Limited partnerships and alternative

investments

There may be frequent short-term fluctuations in the
value of the limited partnerships and the alternative
investments during the durations of the investment
horizons. Both types of investments are under
the close scrutiny of the University Administration
and the University’s Finance Committee and
Investment Sub-committee. Professional fund
managers handling these investments have ample
experience in administering endowment funds of
prestigious private universities in the United States.
They manage the investment portfolios by using
comprehensive monitoring systems to minimise
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, foreign
currency risk and equity price risk, where applicable,
of the underlying assets through diversifications
of their investment portfolios, frequent on-site due
diligence visits, proprietary quantitative analyses
and other relevant measures. The funds deployed
for these two categories of investment are of
non-UGC source, mainly comprising donations
and University’s own cash reserves. Short-term
diminution in the fair values of these investments
will not have significant impact on the University’s
daily operations.
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(i) The following table shows the amounts of asset
allocation in the limited partnerships at the SECIEEE -

balance sheet date:

(i) MT—BRIHNREEABROARBEEBIREEE

The Group and the University REBEERAEB
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MABHETFTToIT)
2013 2012

&8 % Frll %
Hedge Funds RS 286,478 23 245,592 21
Cash RE 11,459 1 53,390 5
Private Equity TERRE 302,412 25 285,658 25
Real Estate EithE 132,979 11 122,209 11
Fixed Income TERWA 114,591 9 96,101 8
International Equity IREIE 252,100 20 138,813 12
Natural Resources RAER 120,828 10 90,968 8
Others Hith 12,497 1 125,788 10
Total e 1,233,344 100 1,158,519 100

(if) The following table shows the amounts of

(i) MTFT—BRIILREERRRASEREEED

asset allocation in alternative investments FCEEEE -
at the balance sheet date:
The Group and the University RERERAEA
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MA&#EFITHITR)
2013 2012

ErLl % Er L %
Hedge Funds HinEE 202,462 66 201,981 70
Real Estate EithE 46,162 15 38,671 14
Private Equity ThAERRE 56,936 19 44,656 16
Total e 305,560 100 285,308 100




30.3 Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 30
June 2013 and 2012.

The fair values of listed equity, debt securities and
unit trusts are based on quoted market bid prices
at the balance sheet date.

The fair values of unlisted equity-linked notes are
based on the valuations provided by the counterparty
financial institutions.

Fair values for held-to-maturity debt securities are
based on their trading values in the secondary
market on or nearest to the balance sheet date.

Since the limited partnership investments and the
alternative investments are not readily marketable,
the University management determines their fair
values based on the capital account statements
provided by General Partner of the Partnerships and
the administrators or investment managers of the
alternative investments, respectively. However, such
estimated fair values may differ from the values that
would have been determined had an open market
for these investments existed.

HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, require
disclosures relating to fair value measurements of
financial instruments across three levels of a “fair
value hierarchy”. The fair value of each financial
instrument is categorised in its entirety based on
the lowest level of input that is significant to that
fair value measurement. The levels are defined as
follow:

- Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments

- Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices
in active markets for similar financial instruments,
or using valuation techniques in which all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly based
on observable market data

- Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant input
is not based on observable market data

The table below analyses financial instruments,
measured at fair values as at the respective
balance sheet dates, by the level in the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements
are categorised:
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(a) The Group REAEERE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (B EEFITHIR)
2013
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Elh— FiR= EH= g
Trading Securities R 1,687,591 120,981 - 1,808,572
Available-for-sale Securities ot EES 239,042 - - 239,042
Limited Partnership Investments [RE&BILE - - 1,233,344 1,233,344
Alternative Investments BEERE - - 305,560 305,560
Total Pt 1,926,633 120,981 1,538,904 3,586,518
2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
El— S EHh= ]
Trading Securities o BE&EES 1,513,381 114,421 - 1,627,802
Available-for-sale Securities ot HEEAs 217,875 - - 217,875
Limited Partnership Investments [RE&BLE - - 1,158,519 1,158,519
Alternative Investments BIEIRE - - 285,308 285,308
Total Pt 1,731,256 114,421 1,443,827 3,289,504
(b) The University K2
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB TTHT)
2013
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EH— - Fih= o E
Trading Securities O ESES 1,525,762 120,981 - 1,646,743
Limited Partnership Investments [RESBIZE - - 1,233,344 1,233,344
Alternative Investments BEERE - - 305,560 305,560
Total Fobe) 1,525,762 120,981 1,538,904 3,185,647
2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EH— E2 1 Fih= B
Trading Securities O EEES 1,363,475 114,421 - 1,477,896
Limited Partnership Investments [RESIEE - - 1,158,519 1,158,519
Alternative Investments BHEgE - - 285,308 285,308
Total Fob ] 1,363,475 114,421 1,443,827 2,921,723




During the year there were no transfers between
financial instruments in Level 1 and Level 2.

The following table shows a reconciliation from

FREAEETESR—BERZCEZE -

UT—BRITABRERABRERAABESFR=NE

the beginning balances to the ending balances FITEZEVEFLLERET)
as for the fair value measurements in Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy for both the Group and
the University:
The Group and the University REEE R AE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TTHIR)
2013
Opening balance as at 1 July 2012 HAfDALES 1,443,827
Total gain included in the Statement of EaeEEEERZRTD 135,191
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure RO #
Additions prech 3,248
Disposals HeE (43,362)
Closing balance as at 30 June 2013 HARAEER 1,538,904
2012
Opening balance as at 1 July 2011 B A5 aR 1,388,707
Total loss included in the Statement of EEEEREKRERD (14,480)
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure R ES R
Additions prech 106,853
Disposals HE (37,253)
Closing balance as at 30 June 2012 HARAEER 1,443,827
All gains and losses for the fair value measurements K

in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy were
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure for both the Group and
the University for the year ended 30 June 2013.
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The Level 3 financial assets of the Group and the
University are the investments in the three limited
partnerships and the alternative investments
arranged by an investment consultant in the United
States as detailed in Note 30.2.

Although the Group and the University are of
the view that fair value measurements in Level
3 financial assets based on the capital account
statements provided by the General Partner of the
three limited partnerships and the administrators or
investment managers of the alternative investments
are appropriate, the use of different methodologies
or assumptions by the underlying investment
managers engaged by the limited partnerships and
the University could lead to different measurements
of the fair values. Because of the vast number of
investment managers managing a wide spectrum
of investment vehicles, changing one or more
of the unobservable inputs used by any one of
these investment managers to certain reasonably
alternative assumptions would have different
degrees of impact on the fair value of the respective
investment vehicles. The US-based investment
consultant’s advice has been sought and its
analysis of returns of widely-used market indices for
alternative investments (i.e. funds of hedge funds,
private equity funds, real estate funds and natural
resources funds) against general conditions of
investment markets suggests that while the returns
of these indices are historical and past performance
is not a guarantee of future results, these indices
can be applied to a simple overall quantitative
sensitivity analysis relating to the fair values of
major alternative investments in the Group’s and
the University’s Level 3 financial assets.

Assuming that

(i) the widely-used market indices for funds of hedge
funds, private equity funds, real estate funds
and natural resources funds had increased/
decreased by 5% and the fair values of assets
under “Fixed Income” and “Others” of the Level
3 financial assets had increased/decreased by
5% and

(i) the prices of international markets equities had
been 5% higher/lower,

with all other variables held unchanged, the fair
values of the Group’s and the University’s Level
3 financial assets, and hence the Group’s and
the University’s surplus would have increased/
decreased by approximately $76,372,000 (2012 :
$69,522,000).
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31.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group’s and the University’s fixed assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into
account their estimated residual value. The Group
and the University review the estimated useful
lives and residual values of the assets annually
in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expense to be recorded during any reporting period.
The useful lives and residual values are based on
management’s historical experience with similar
assets and, where applicable, taking into account
anticipated equipment upgrade and replacement.
The depreciation charges for future periods are
adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.

The split between current and non-current portions
of the balance of Deferred Income is based on the
expenditure spent in the current year or the unspent
balance of the grants, whichever is lesser.

Notes 15 and 16 contain information on the
assumptions and risk factors relating to financial
instruments and defined benefit retirement
obligations.
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32. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has pronounced a number of
amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 30
June 2013 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. Those that may be
relevant to the group are as follows:

32. BE-F-=FRA=STHLFECHMEMNHREN

HMBET ~ METER R B REENE

HETHMBERRELE EESFAASRHIIEE
5] ~ FETERIR R - ZFIBET - METERIRERER
HECE-=FXA=THILFEMNREN - MAD
REFAMBHRRPER - ZFATEARKBEEN
FRIFIANT

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011)

HKAS 28, Investments in associates and joint ventures

Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures
— Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation
— Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011) — Investment entities

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013

1 January 2014

1 January 2014
1 January 2015

RT5I B2 EERAY

SEHIRAEX
EHEVBHRELEAEHE " KEMBRR, 2013%181H
HEUBRELASE TR " SERH. 2013%181H
EEMBREEAE TR " EtERERIRE. 2013%181H
HEUBHRESEAE =R " AnBEEFE. 2013181
FEGREANET TR " BiuMBER, (2011F) 2013181
FEGREANET T\ " MEAIRGELTRE., 2013%181H
HEEGHEAE TN 23] "EERE. 2013%F181H
BB ISR EERI2009-2011 F B FEBGE 2013%F181H
EEMBHEREAE LR 5] "EMIA  KE — BEEREELREMAR. 2013%F181H
BEEGFTERE=T5 25] "EMIE 2R — BEEREENRERMARE. 20141818
EEMBHREFEAETETZREFEGEE TR (2011F) 85T — " REERE. 20141818
BEMBHREEAENG " ERIA, 2015181



The Group is in the process of making an assessment AEEHBITEERERZEEET
of what the impact of these amendments is expected
to be in the period of initial application.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

F HONG KONG

HERAPXKREBREER

We have audited the financial statements of the Trustees of
Chung Chi College (the “College”) set out on pages 2 to 28,
which comprise the balance sheet as at 30 June 2013, and
the statement of comprehensive income and expenditure, the
statement of changes in funds and the cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

The Board of Trustees is responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and for such
internal control as the Board of Trustees determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Statue 12(7) of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong Ordinance (Cap. 1109), and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Board of Trustees, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the College as at 30 June 2013 and of
its surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

8 October 2013

OF TRUSTEES OF CHUNG CHI COLLEGE

FEHBEIATERE "BMA. ) BEMINEREEEE_+NER
B8R "E8kR" RETNMBERER - WMBRREER=S—
= A=t+HNEEEEREEEZALFENERNRZR - &
SEHRIMRAERER @ ULREESFTBERMZEREHMIEEER -

REGHEEHRETESEASEMGN (FEMBRSEN) &
HUHHER - USHBRRMEEEEMATHNRRAEEER DR
R HRFANENNEES - DEMBRRAFERRREENE
RMEHAIE A SRR -

EMNEIERRERMNSHHEZRSUBERRERER - HIERE

CEBPIARBEA) (3E11095)R1212(7) WRTE » EOEERE
BIRE o RRILLLSH - HFMHEEFCTREEMAR - HFISRRA
HESHAE - HEAHMATESRRIEETESIE -

HMERESESMADEMN (FBBERD ETHEH - B
LEERERBMIETIERRE - WREIRMITES - USEEEL
FUBHRES A FEEOEASERBRL -

Bt R TR I EN AR RS SN EEHNERT R
72 o FMEEATE PHURIRZBIRTAVFIER - EHET ARG EEERT
BYMBRRFEE RS - TGRSR » %A
ERESERERMHEHRRUEEEEMATHRRARFAEIE
&l - LIRREHEEMETER - BB RH S B AR EFIA
BRNMRRER - EFITEETERESRRASHERRNGENR
RFREHEEHMERTIEIEY - DU EMEHRVERIIHSH -

BMAEE - BMMEGHEIRERRRNEEMSRMANEIE
RIZHER -

MRS ZEMBRRORE (FBMBREER) EEMATF
WRRESRN —F—=FA=+TENMBEIRR REBEZB LLE
ENRBIRAERE -

EEAE SR
HEEETED
EEPIREITE103
RFARE8E

—s—=#+ANA



CC2

THE TRUSTEES OF CHUNG CHI COLLEGE

FOR THE YEA

BE_B-=FRA=+THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LA#E#FT5ITR)

E CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

2013

PREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ZH&Z &R

2012
Pommerenke Other Pommerenke  Other
Trust Funds Trust Funds
Fund Fund
Note EEE R Hth R Hith
Mtk 2 B2 g2 2
Income KA
Subsidy from Pommerenke EEREESEN - 20,116
Trust Fund
Tuition, Programmes and Other BE - REENHM 3 - 3,203
Fees W&
Interest and Investment Income BRI E WS 4 1,927 4,523
Donations and Benefactions LY SESEN 5 - 7,018
Ancillary Services Income EHENRRFS A 6 3,736 1,756
Other Income HAgA 7 - 5,817
5663 42,433
Expenditure ZiH
Learning and Research E3fif R H5E 8
Other Academic Services H {th M EARR 75 - 10,303
Institutional Support EApREH B AR 75 8
Management and General EEN—MREIR 12 -
Premises and Related Expenses BFNEREXE 1,902 2,299
Student and General Education B L—KHE - 30,370
Services =y
Other Activities H =75 - 3,579
Subsidy to College Academic B RNEAREAT 20,116 -
Activities EE
22,030 46,551
Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year REERR(EIR) (16,367) (4,118)
Other Comprehensive Income HittZmizs
ltem that may be Reclassified HEguSHMoEER
Subsequently to Surplus or Deficit EBREEIEZIEE
Change in Fair Value of Available- ot ERAES - (2,820)
for-sale Equity Securities DABEZEE
Total Comprehensive Income AEEEZmINEEEE (16,367)  (6,938)
for the Year - =
Transfers to/(from): HIRE/(H) :
Endowment Trust Funds BiiiEtEs - (520)
College Head’s Discretionary RRXEEIES - 300
Trust Fund
College Development Trust Fund BiRERETES - (1,555)
Student Welfare Trust Fund BLEENETESR - 654
Divinity School Fund HERREE - (40,927)
Investment Revaluation Reserve BRESEhHERE - (2,820)
Pommerenke Trust Fund EERES (16,361) -
Capital Fund EEES (6) 37,930

The notes set out on pages 6 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LA#E#FT5TR)

Note 2013 2012
PitcE
Non-Current Assets EREEE
Investment Properties BEME 10 - -
Fixed Assets EEEE 11 74,389 65,429
Investments Eita=1 12 34,991 70,911
109,380 136,340
Current Assets MENEE
Investments Eit= 12 168,863 225,694
Amount due from The Chinese University RIS BP X AEIRIE 13 3,184 654
of Hong Kong
Student Loans B4 ER 375 340
Inventories =zE 432 454
Deposits and Payments in Advance RERFEMNRIE 13 1,716 2,106
Accounts Receivable FEUTIRTR 13 7,200 4,542
Cash and Time Deposits IRE RIRTERRFEMN 14 670,171 545,129
851,941 778,919
Current Liabilities mENaE
Creditors and Deposits FEfTIRR R IRE 15 10,218 3,269
Provision for Employee Benefits EEEF2E R 1,162 1,340
11,380 4,609
Net Current Assets mENEEFE 840,561 774,310
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities HEERRHEE 949,941 910,650
Non-Current Liability JERBIE(E
Provision for Employee Benefits EEEF £ 735 600
NET ASSETS BEERE 949,206 910,050
Endowment Trust Funds EfiiEtES 42,181 37,196
College Head’s Discretionary Trust Fund RRXEEEESE 4,674 6,205
College Development Trust Fund BRERERES 66,788 63,212
Student Welfare Trust Fund BLEERER 18,498 15,883
Divinity School Fund fHEREE 58,350 60,113
Investment Revaluation Reserve RESHHEE 13,987 11,211
204,478 193,820
Pommerenke Trust Fund EEREE 670,339 650,801
Capital Fund BEES 74,389 65,429
TOTAL FUNDS BERE 16

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Trustees on 8 October 2013

SEERREGNR-_F—=F1+ AN\ B ERREERILITEERR

949,206

910,050

Karl C. Kwok Chairman, Board of Trustees
SRR RESEE

Aubrey K.S. Li Chairman, Finance Committee
TEE RESUMZEEEXRE

Leung Yuen Sang Member, Board of Trustees
Rt RESES
The notes set out on pages 6 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LA#E#FT5T)

College
Head'’s College Student
Endowment Discretionary Development Welfare Divinity Investment Pommerenke
Trust Trust Trust Trust School  Revaluation Trust Capital
Funds Fund Fund Fund Fund Reserve Fund Fund
EBiS5T FRRXES BiriR BEEN a8k RESERG BEER BE
E=5 EEE =tEE GERE: ES faifie 2E H2:
Balance at 1 July 2011 37,518 6,103 64,767 15,229 101,040 14,031 667,162 27,505
Transfers from/(to) Statement BEE/(E)ZEWZZ (520) 300 (1,555) 654 (40,927) (2,820) (16,361) 37,924
of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure
Transfer between Funds 198 (198) - - - _ - -
Balance at 30 June 2012 37,196 6,205 63,212 15,883 60,113 11,211 650,801 65,429
~A=tB&® - - - - - Y Y
Balance at 1 July 2012 37,196 6,205 63,212 15,883 60,113 11,211 650,801 65,429
Transfers from/(to) Statement EER/(E)ZENZR 4,985 (1,531) 3,576 2,615 (1,763) 2,776 19,538 8,960
of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure
Transfer between Funds - - - - - _ - _
Balance at 30 June 2013 42,181 4,674 66,788 18,498 58,350 13,987 670,339

AA=tA&R%

The notes set out on pages 6 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE TRUSTEES OF CHUNG CHI COLLEGE
E CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BREORKRED
ENT HEFRER
2013

CAS
FOR THE YEA

BE_T-=FRA=1THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LA#E#FT5TR)

Note 2012
hEE
Operating Activities seEEE
Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year NEERER/(E18)
Pommerenke Trust Fund EERES (16,367)
Other Funds HihE® (4,118)
Adjustments for: HAEIER:
Depreciation g 1,360
Interest and Investment Income BRI E W=
Pommerenke Trust Fund EERES (1,927)
Other Funds HittE& (4,523)
Operating Deficit before changes in SEATEHRIEEEE (25,575)
Working Capital
Increase in Amount due from FEWE BT AREBIRIEZ (654)
The Chinese University of Hong Kong byl
(Increase)/Decrease in Student Loans BAERZ(gm)im 72
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories FEZIBD(3E) (89)
Decrease/(Increase) in Deposits and Payments RE RIRMFRIEZ R (3EN0) (208)
in Advance
(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable FEMUIRFRZ (3G H0)im D 20
Decrease in Amount due to FEfT & B P SIARBIRIEZ D (536)
The Chinese University of Hong Kong
Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors and Deposits FETIRTFR R IRE R 3B NN/ (GRS (351)
(Decrease)/Increase in Provision for Employee EE @R (D)8 646
Benefits
Net Cash Used in Operating REFEFMANRE RN (26,675)
Activities -
Investing Activities 1B EH)
Increase in Time Deposits with Original EEEBBE = B BWEEATEXR (102,129)
Maturity over Three Months oy |
Payment for Purchase of Fixed Assets EREEEE (37,689)
Payment for Purchase of Investments i A (37,267)
Proceeds from Sales of Investments H LB EREZIE 92,638
Interest Received EWFE 16,137
Dividend Received SRS 5,182
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities NS ESFRANRASEE m
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents REMBESEMZBRD (89,803)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year REMREEZEY - FNEEF 160,099
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year REFRETEEY - FREF 14 70,296

The notes set out on pages 6 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CC6

NOTES TO

HE TRUSTEES OF CHUNG CHI COLLEGE

INESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

The financial statements of The Trustees of Chung Chi
College (the “College”) reflect the state of affairs of all the
funds of the College at 30 June 2013 and the College’s
results and cash flows for the year then ended. The
assets of the College are vested in the Board of Trustees
of Chung Chi College under The Chinese University of
Hong Kong Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASSs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the College. Of these, “Amendments to
HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements -
Presentation of items of other comprehensive income”
is the development relevant to the College’s Financial
Statements.

The amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to present
the items of other comprehensive income that would
be reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain
conditions are met separately from those that would
never be reclassified to profit or loss. The College’s
presentation of other comprehensive income in these
financial statements has been modified accordingly.

The College has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 22).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
otherwise stated in the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted
by the College is set out below.
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2.2

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets, other than construction in progress and
art collections, are stated in the Balance Sheet at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 2.4).

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction, is stated at cost less any impairment
losses (see note 2.4) and is not depreciated.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of fixed assets when completed
and ready for use.

Art collections are stated at cost less any impairment
losses (see note 2.4). The residual value of art
collections is expected to be equal to or greater than
the carrying amount, and therefore art collections are
not depreciated.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
assets to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Where it can be clearly demonstrated
that subsequent expenditure on an asset has resulted
in an increase in its future economic benefit, such
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of
that asset.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
fixed assets, less their estimated residual value,
if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Interest in Leasehold Land Over the
Held for Own Use Under remaining lease
Operating Leases term

Buildings Shorter of remaining
lease term and 40
years

Equipment, Furniture, 3 -10 years

Fixtures and Fittings

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed
asset is determined as the difference between
the net proceeds and the carrying amount of the
fixed asset and is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Investment Properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use.
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Investment properties are stated in the Balance
Sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2.4). Any gain or
loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an
investment property is recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. Rental
income from investment properties is accounted for
as described in note 2.8(v).

Investments

The College’s policies for investments in securities
are as follows:

(i) Dated debt securities that the College has
the ability and intention to hold to maturity are
classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-
to-maturity securities are initially recognised in
the Balance Sheet at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are stated in
the Balance Sheet at amortised cost less
impairment losses (see note 2.4).

(i) Investments in securities held for trading are
classified as current assets and are initially
stated at fair value. At each Balance Sheet
date the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure.

(iii) Other investments in securities are classified
as available-for-sale securities and are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs. At each balance sheet date, the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised directly in
investment revaluation reserve, except for
impairment losses (see note 2.4) and, in the
case of monetary items such as debt securities,
foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised directly in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
Where these investments are interest-bearing,
interest calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
When these investments are derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
directly in the investment revaluation reserve is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure.
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(iv) Investments are recognised/derecognised on

the date the College commits to purchase/sell
the investments or they expire.

Impairment of Assets

(i) Impairment of Investments in Debt and

Equity Securities and Receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost or are classified as available-for-sale
securities are reviewed at each balance sheet
date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the College about one or more
of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- itbecoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised as follows:

- For receivables that are carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount
of the financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial
asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for receivables
are reversed if in a subsequent period the
amount of the impairment loss decreases.

- For financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets).
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(i)

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

- For available-for-sale securities, the
cumulative loss that had been recognised
directly in investment revaluation reserve
is removed and is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure. The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
is the difference between the acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Impairment losses recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure in respect of available-for-
sale equity securities are not reversed
through the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets
is recognised directly in the investment
revaluation reserve.

Impairment of Fixed Assets and Investment
Properties

An impairment loss is recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, is more
than its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount of an asset, or of the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, is the greater of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the assets.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.
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2.6

2.7

2.8

Inventories

Inventories represent souvenirs held by the College
for resale. They are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the College has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as
a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Income Recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the College and the income and expenditure,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, income is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure as follows:

(i) Interest Income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.
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(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Dividends

Dividend income from listed securities is
recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees

Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees are
recognised on an accrual basis and unearned
fees are treated as receipts in advance.

Donations and Benefactions

Donations and benefactions are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure when the College becomes
entitled to the donations and benefactions and
it is probable that they will be received.

Rental Income from Operating Leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in
equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the non-cancellable lease term.

Other Service Income

Other service income is recognised when the
related service is rendered.

Employee Benefits

V)

Salaries, paid annual leave, housing allowances
and the cost to the College of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees of the College.

Contract-end gratuity is payable on completion
of a contract appointment of not less than two
years. The gratuity, together with the total
amount of the College’s contributions to a
particular retirement scheme, will add up to
10% or 15% of the appointee’s basic salary
drawn during the contract period.
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(iii)  Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans, including Mandatory Provident Funds
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are
recognised as an expenditure in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure as
incurred.

(iv) Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the College demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the
balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses
on foreign currency translation are dealt with in the
relevant fund account through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Related Parties

(i)  Aperson, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the College if that person:

()  has control or joint control over the
College;

(I hassignificantinfluence over the College;
or

(1) is @ member of the key management
personnel of the College or the College’s
parent.

(i)  An entity is related to the College if any of the
following conditions applies:

(I)  The entity and the College are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(I)  One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

(1) Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(i) SREHRFBRMETEIZHR - SERAERIFRGIE
HAGEHEIMEHERR - RBERERTEEEKER
RERBXZH -

(iv) BHRIEHBERSESBREMREN -F44- 8
FATTHEMCIATA IERE S AIRTEIRT - SUiRIEX
FTEIERRERREMA LS XN (E L HIER - 7
HERR
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(IV) One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(V) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the College or an entity related to the
College.

(VI) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i).

(VI) Aperson identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

(V) ZEBRE=FNSEAQT]  MB—HE
RE=FHBEAQT -

(V) RAEBERHET TR AR R b
BEISMESARERRAEFIETE

(VI)  ERtEABS2EILLE ()Pt A D1 S RE
il e

(Vi) RR()DFFRA LT HZEBETEATEN
ERZIEEEHDHE)RREEAS -

BARERKENRSZEFERMMNELERBRNRZS
4 OREEREZBEAARRTEEENKENS -

TUITION, PROGRAMMES AND OTHER FEES BE - RERHMMNE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (WI#EH#EFT5m)
2013 2012
Non-CUHK Degree Programmes FEh S KBRS
Tuition Fees BE 3,510 3,112
Programmes and Other Fees R M HE M E 39 91
3,549 3,203
INTEREST AND INVESTMENT INCOME FIE R IRE R
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB YEFTHlm)
Pommerenke Other
Trust Fund Funds
EERES HittEE
2013 2012 2013 2012
Net Realised and Unrealised Gains/ BEBESEIRNKRE 13,038 (14,876) - -
(Loss) on Trading Securities RFz/(B518) S8R
Interest Income from Debt BEFEENRWA 3,211 5,674 464 538
Securities
Dividends from Listed Securities ~ EHzEHRE 5,517 4,815 796 737
Interest Income from Bank RITEIEMAE 7,840 5,616 3,274 2,787
Deposits N
Net Realised and Unrealised RITEREREEIR 3,859 698 1,665 461
Exchange Gain from Bank RAREIR 2 HMNE
Deposits iR

33,465

1,927 6,199 4,523



DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS LS ECEN

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT T5IT)
2013 2012
Capital Projects BEZER 8,013 2,845
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries BEBE - BENPEE 8,161 1,720
Others Hith 17,793 2,453
33,967 7,018
ANCILLARY SERVICES INCOME EHBNARFEIA
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TTIT)
Pommerenke Other
Trust Fund Funds
EERES HinEE
2013 2012 2013 2012
Residence Halls BEEE - - 1,164 868
Rental Income HEWA 4,590 3,736 1,040 888
4,590 3,736 2,204 1,756
OTHER INCOME Hthlgr A
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT T5Im)
2013 2012
Service Income BRFSWIA 1,187 1,496
Contract Research BHAEH 281 70
Miscellaneous Hfh 1,252 4,251
2,720 5,817




8.

EXPENDITURE

£

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LI 7THIT)
Staff Cost Operating Depreciation Total
and Expenses
Benefits
B T HEM
KAgEFl KERER e 4858
Learning and Research Bafig KR T
Other Academic Services H{thZEBARTS 8,307 2,057 35 10,399
Institutional Support (Note 8.1) EAPR G BN AR 75 (Pt 3E8.1)
Management and General EENL—HEIR - 13 - 13
Premises and Related Expenses BFRER%ZH 529 2,522 1,911 4,962
Student and General Education BEN—BHE 10,165 22,815 50 33,030
Services =t
Other Activities HAths75 866 1,039 5 1,910
11,560 26,389 1,966 39,915
Total Expenditure 2013 —E-=FELH 19,867 28,446 2,001 50,314
Learning and Research Bl R i%
Other Academic Services H{thFEBARTS 9,203 1,077 23 10,303
Institutional Support (Note 8.1) EAP B BN AR 75 (it 5E8.1)
Management and General BER—MREIR - 12 - 12
Premises and Related Expenses BFEEE%H 485 2,465 1,251 4,201
Student and General Education BEN—BHE 10,231 20,056 83 30,370
Services 4
Other Activities HithE=# 462 3,114 3 3,579
11,178 25,647 1,337 38,162
Total Expenditure 2012 —E-—FETH 20,381 26,724 1,360 48,465

The above analysis represents all expenditures incurred by the College as a whole. It does not include the subsidy

provided by Pommerenke Trust Fund to the University or other funds within the College.

LR ESEEBRNZL - EFEERERGESHABHS R EMESHNED



8.1 Analysis of Operating Expenses on Institutional Support

BRI EERZ 2

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (T 7T5IT)
2013 2012
Management and General EER—REIE
Legal and Other Professional Fees HEREEEAER 13 12
Premises and Related Expenses BFABREXH
Minor Works AETTE 942 138
Repair and Renovation Works HIEMEETRE 599 612
Government Rent and Rates = A R iR 139 163
Management Fees EEEA 585 585
Property Insurance RIGERA 8 7
Others Hifth 249 960
2,522 2,465
Student and General Education Services B —RBESHE
Residence Halls Expenses BEESHX 1,102 1,164
Scholarships, Bursaries and Prizes REE - PEBENIES 11,908 9,636
Student Exchange Programme BARIBETEl 43 42
Student Financial Aids BAETE &R 593 529
Student Development Programme B RERE 3,877 3,657
Others Hith 5,292 5,028
22,815 20,056
Other Activities HAE 1,039 3,114
26,389 25,647




(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(AT T

The College’s total future minimum lease income receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

REFATERNEERE - BEREORBUNREESRARBESTNT -

2012
Within 1 year —FR 1,956
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEMEA 3

1,959

The College is the lessor in respect of a number of properties held under operating leases. The leases typically last
for an initial period of 1 to 2 years, with an option to renew the lease under which all terms are negotiable. None of

these leases includes contingent rentals.

AERRESHEFLA TR —EMRNLAA - —REEFHENTF—EME - REER - FRARROIRERFERR

BE - BLEEERNRFEE "AHEAE, o

Investment properties originate from a land gift
at Siu Tao Fung Shan, Shatin from Reverend and
Mrs. Pommerenke to the College in 1970 (see also
Note 16). The College subsequently entered into an
agreement with a developer under which it agreed
to exchange its interest in the land for 36 flats and
57 carparking spaces in the completed development
together with a proportion of certain proceeds from the
development. Since completion of the development
in 1996, the College has been holding the exchanged
flats/carparking spaces for renting purpose. The above
exchanged properties are classified as investment
properties and stated at zero cost in the Balance
Sheet. Starting from 2006/2007, the College has been
selling part of the properties. The College’s investment
properties were revalued as at 30 June 2013 by
CBRE HK Limited, an independent firm of property
consultants, who has appropriate qualifications and
experience in the valuation of properties, on an open
market value basis, after taking into consideration the
net rental income allowing for reversionary potential.
Pursuant to the consultant’s valuation, market value
for the investment properties still in hand at the end of
the financial year was approximately HK$156.6 million
(2012: HK$136.8 million).

REMERERERBEARERAR— N LS FEH
AR EMER L2 L 3(RHIEE16) - HiEAERR
M—RtEZRGIIGE - ARG Ll itz
REDATRED  URBEBREERZ=1TE
BFEMRAHHESEMZER RSB GHHEWA -
BREAEE—NNAETHE - KIBFRAEFEMN
REMIIEERE - B RIBYERFRERINEY
(RUEHARAEBESER - B2STN_"FFt
FERME » TERHEAIME - NERRAIZEYSE
R - —=FRA=THARBIASERIFEAS]
CBRE HK Limited {Eift1E  LHEERIRARMES
FHEFHESWARZRENELESHEMER © 1R
BRIEERME - EESFENIREYE T ERAE
BEEAENARBE—ERTAEATERT(CES—
Z BE—-E=FRENTETR)



11. FIXED ASSETS EE&EE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT 7Tolm)

Equipment,
Construction Furniture,
in Fixtures Art

Buildings Progress and Fittings Collections Total

= "HBIRE -8 Zmkm 00

K EER
Cost RAE
At 1 July 2011 —F—%tB—H - 27,183 4,397 32 31,612
Additions b=y I} 19,169 17,520 1,610 985 39,284
Transfers E3 44,703 (44,703) - - -
Disposals HE - - (41) - (41)
At 30 June 2012 —s——F 63,872 - 5,966 1,017 70,855
ANA=1TB%
Accumulated Depreciation Rt
At 1 July 2011 —8—%FtHB—H - - 4,107 - 4,107
Charge for the Year REEITE 1,038 - 322 - 1,360
Written Back on Disposal HERER - - (41) - (41)
At 30 June 2012 == = 1,038 - 4,388 - 5,426
ABA=1TB%%
Net Book Value at —EF—-F7xB=1+H 62,834 - 1,578 1,017 65,429
30 June 2012 IRERE - - - =
Cost RAE
At 1 July 2012 —E——Ft+8—H 63,872 - 5,966 1,017 70,855
Additions b=l 10,571 - 142 248 10,961
Disposals HE - - (345) - (345)
At 30 June 2013 —5—-=F 74,443 - 5,763 1,265 81,471
ANA=1TB%
Accumulated Depreciation ZEHfE
At 1 July 2012 —S——FtHB—H 1,038 - 4,388 - 5,426
Charge for the Year REERE 1,569 - 432 - 2,001
Written Back on Disposal HERER - - (345) - (345)
At 30 June 2013 -5-=F 2,607 - 4,475 - 7,082
ANBA=1TB%
Net Book Value at —E—-=%7xB=1+H 71,836 - 1,288 1,265 74,389
30 June 2013 IREFE



12. INVESTMENTS #&#&

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LT 5T5IT)
2013 2012
Non-Current Investments FEREIRE
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities (Note) HEEIHHBEEES (M)
at Amortised Cost RIS IH R A
Unlisted LM 14,143 29,290
Listed ] - 23,549
14,143 52,839
Available-for-sale Securities oftHERS
Equity Securities Listed In Hong Kong, EEE LR AE
at Fair Value BRAoREE 20,848 18,072
34,991 70,911
Current Investments mERE
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities (Note) HEEIHHBEEES (M)
Amount Matured within One Year —FREIHA
at Amortised Cost RIS IH R A
Unlisted LM 15,004 75,240
Listed L 23,332 24,148
38,336 99,388
Trading Securities OE&ERE
Equity Securities B ANZE
Listed, at Fair Value L BAREE
in Hong Kong &5 125,743 126,141
outside Hong Kong EELIH 4,784 165
130,527 126,306
168,863 225,694
Total Investments mReE _203.,854_ _296.605

Note: The total fair value of held-to-maturity debt securities (including Non-Current and Current Portions) was
HK$52,883,657 (2012: HK$154,643,908) at the end of the financial year.

MizE: REMBEELER  SERIPEHEHRSFAABERR(EFEIERSRREEMD)REHE52,883,657

5T (2012 : ##5154,643,9087T) o



13.

14.

AMOUNT DUE FROM THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY 13. EBIREEPCKEIRIE - BINIRRR « T AFEMFRIE

OF HONG KONG, ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE,
DEPOSITS AND PAYMENTS IN ADVANCE

The outstanding balance with CUHK is unsecured BAh S KRB RIRA B AR R D EHE IR R E B 88
and has no fixed repayment terms. All of the 514 - FRERYIRRR ~ RS RFAMRIETREIE—FA
accounts receivable, deposits and payments in o EEEReEZH -

advance are expected to be recovered or recognised
as expenses within one year.

CASH AND TIME DEPOSITS RERIRITEMER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (BUEHSTFTTHITR)

2013 2012
Cash at Banks and Other Financial Institutions RIT R EMMEAFE AR 1,820 10,681
and in Hand EREIRE
Time Deposits TEHATERR 668,351 534,448
Cash and Time Deposits in the BEABBRAZRER 670,171 545,129
Balance Sheet IRITEHATER
Less: Time Deposits with Original Maturity B EREREE=EA (663,951) (474,833)
over Three Months ERRER
Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Cash Flow REREBRAZIRER 6,220 70,296
Statement HEEEY
Cash and time deposits included the following amounts denominated in foreign currency:
RERRITEREREETILIMESENIEEE :
(Expressed in thousands)  (LAFTTHITR)
2013 2012
Renminbi RVB AERHE 154,471 125,336
United States Dollars USsD ETT 24,007 20,591



All creditors and deposits are expected to be settled
or recognised as income within one year.

Pommerenke Trust Fund

The Pommerenke Trust Fund originates from a gift
of land donated in 1970 to the Chung Chi College by
the Reverend Herbert Henry Pommerenke and Mrs.
Jean Macpherson Pommerenke in commemoration
of Doctor Stewart and Julia Kunkle. The land gift
was outside the precincts of the University and, since
1976 and in accordance with The Chinese University
of Hong Kong Ordinance, has been vested in the
Board of Trustees of Chung Chi College on the same
trusts and subject to the same terms and conditions
on which the land gift was then held.

Endowment Trust Funds

Endowment Trust Funds represent donations
received by the College, usually with the stipulation
from the donors that the principal amounts should
remain intact in perpetuity or for a defined time
period for specific purposes.

College Head’s Discretionary Trust Fund

College Head'’s Discretionary Trust Fund originates
from donations, designated for supporting
educational programmes and other worthy activities
as determined by the Head of the College.

College Development Trust Fund

College Development Trust Fund is financed by
donations and subsidies, for use in programmes and
activities which are essential for the development of
students and the College as a whole.

Student Welfare Trust Fund

Student Welfare Trust Fund is financed by donations
and investment income, designated for student
welfare and bursary purposes.

FRERAIRR R IZERPE—FAIREZR RN
Ao

REREE

EERESRFEREERMAAERAR-—ALEE
B#2ZDoctor StewartKJulia Kunklefj %445
HEERM it o SIREESRMNL AR KEEHE
S B—RAEAREE - RIBEEBEDPXKREBFHFIR
BHESEAEREEZSEE I HRIRENAER
EREUAEEIRR MG - REREBRRES -

BifEREE

BififEAEEEERWEINBRRIE - BEHEEE
SEATEERFLH - BEFEREREHEA
{EYIERE -

RRXEEREE

RRIEEAESREMAER - TERARZHN
BEELEMRREREEENERES

BRERETES

BirRRETESIVEERBIRBNED - BARRE
EBERARRLSBRERZRNIEENES -

BEENERES

BERNGERESNEBEREBBERNRE WD & B
AREHMEBERNNIZESE -



Divinity School Fund

Divinity School Fund is financed by donations,
investment income and reserves generated from
self-financed programmes, with designated purpose
in carrying out theology education, research and
related activities.

Investment Revaluation Reserve

Investment Revaluation Reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-
for-sale equity securities held at the balance sheet
date and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies in note 2.3(iii).

Capital Fund

Capital Fund represents the balance of net book
value of the Fixed Assets which were financed by
funds with non-designated purpose.

The College is a not-for-profit organisation and
forms part of The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
It aims to provide higher education in accordance
with Christian traditions, using the Chinese language
as the primary medium of instruction. It seeks to
promote Christian faith, learning and research.
The College defines capital as including various
general and restricted funds balances. The
various funds represent the unspent balance of
donations, grants and income. These funds are
managed in accordance with the College’s financial
management procedures and the relevant funding
conditions, where applicable. The College’s primary
objective when managing capital is to safeguard the
College’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain a strong financial base to support the
development of the College. To achieve the above
capital management objective, the College follows
guidelines on investment and financial management
as set out in note 18.

There has been no change in the College’s capital
management practices as compared to prior year.
The College is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirement.

HEREE
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The College’s financial instruments mainly include
student loans, accounts receivable, bank deposits,
unit trust cash fund, investments in equity securities
and debt securities, which are exposed to credit,
foreign currency, interest rate and equity price
risks. The risks on financial assets are controlled
in accordance with the investment guidelines
approved by the Finance Committee under the
College’s Board of Trustees. This is achieved
through diversified asset allocation, rules governing
the selection and credit limits of investment
counterparties with reference to their credit ratings
and financial strength. The Finance Committee
reviews investment strategies and performance
periodically to ensure that the investment objectives
and performance targets are met. A sub-committee
under the Finance Committee meets regularly to
manage and monitor risk exposures associated
with respective financial assets to ensure that
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

(i) Credit Risk

The College’s investment guidelines control the
credit risk on bank deposits and debt securities
by limiting the counterparties to banks and
companies with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-ratings agencies. The
College has no significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over large
number of counterparties. Credit risk associated
with student loans and accounts receivable is
immaterial to the College and all doubtful
receivables are adequately provided for. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset
in the Balance Sheet.

FERNEMTETRETBEEN - IR - IR
1TFR - BUERREESE - RAESLEHESFR
& ELEEMBETYREE - IMNE - IRRIREE
BELE - MEEZERR  REGREMZEEEER
BHIERERES|  ESHEEREDE & FIER
AR EET AR RMBRRINIREHES - M
ZEEHERNRERBAERRERBIRER
RERER - MBZEIMRENRE/NMVEERHF
SEELERELSMEEMY KRR R (EHED
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(i) FEmES

FERAHREES| - MREFBRR S ZIRTRE
FRITRIBVARRBREETREBRTCEE
iR BIERISEREE - AERSERNES
REDHRSREHE - FHIEESPERILER
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(ii) Foreign Currency Risk

The functional currency of the College is the
Hong Kong dollar. The College is exposed
to currency risk primarily arising from bank
deposits and investments that are denominated
in United States dollars (USD) and Renminbi
(RMB). Those assets and liabilities denominated
in currencies other than HKD, USD and RMB
are not material.

About 24% of the College’s financial assets
(including cash, bank deposits with banks,
debt, equity securities and investments) are
denominated in USD, but it is considered that
the risk of movement in exchange rate between
the HKD and the USD is insignificant as the
HKD is currently pegged to the USD under
the linked exchange rate system adopted by
the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region.

The following table shows the amounts of
financial assets (including cash, bank deposits
with banks, debt and investments) denominated
in various currencies at the balance sheet date:

(i) SMERPFR

FERFARANERRET - Z2KRFAERSH
BEEEFERERZTNARBNERARE - &
BHEENMREMUEESE - RTRARBEEN
ERALAK -

FERFBEURTREEEBNEMEEALIG
TREESENEIZ=1TH (BFRE - 7
RIFTER - B - RERRE) - OGBS
AITHEB BRI ETEEER T RERS
ET  FBREEEIRITHBEEREZ
BRAREKX -

UT—-BRINHEEEBRAMSEERREES
BHNEMEECEHE (SFRE - FRREITHNE
R~ EBRRE)

2013 2012
Amount % of total Amount % of total
value of value of
financial financial
assets assets
] ILEERME ] LTS
Currency 5 EHESLL ENEAL
HKD IS 464,397 53 450,143 54
uUsD ETT 209,525 24 238,644 28
RMB AR 195,189 22 152,947 18
Others Hith 4,914 1 - -
874,025 100 100

841,734




About 22% of the College’s financial assets
are denominated in RMB, which is expected to
appreciate in the long run. As the percentages of
financial assets denominated in currencies other
than HKD, USD and RMB to the total financial
assets of the College was 1% as at 30 June
2013 (2012: nil), exposure to foreign currency
risk is not significant.

(iii) Interest Rate Risk

The College has exposure to interest rate risk
through the impact of the rate changes on
interest bearing financial assets, including bank
deposits. The College manages exposure to
interest rate risk through spreading fixed-rate
interest bearing financial assets into different
tenures.

As at 30 June 2013, itis estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in bank
deposit interest rate, with all other variable held
constant, would increase/decrease the College’s
surplus for the year and the College’s net assets
at the balance sheet date by approximately
HK$6.7 million (2012: decreaselincrease the
College’s deficit for the year and increase/
decrease the net assets at the balance sheet
date by approximately HK$5.5 million). This
analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the
balance sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for bank deposits
in existence at that date.

(iv) Equity Price Risk

The College is exposed to equity price risk arising
primarily from equity investments classified as
trading securities and available-for-sale equity
securities (see note 12). The majority of these
investments are blue chip shares listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and are included
in the Hang Seng Index. These investments
have been chosen based on their long term
growth potential. College management monitors
regularly the performance of the investments
to ensure its suitability as an investment for the
College.

FERFBEUARBRGEEBNEMEESAK
HETHEERBENBEOZ=1T= » FEREH
ARBREMSE8AE - E=F—=FA=1
B SERLUER - KT AARBUIMIERE
BEEHEEGAERNEEESERFEIC— (
ZE-THFRT)  MABRUERZNIMNER
R A FEE o

(i) FUZREBS

R FRE 2 7 R Em AR E E R B BREVF 2 WA
XEMEE - SFIRITER - FERBEBDEIFE
A ERRERNREHHESEHEEMN
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REF—=%FA=1+H - BRERFABEMTEE)
IHBREAE » (HERTFRAVFIRIBN/R 2100
B ABRREANBEBRAFENFEEES
EMEIHEEREtTERT (ZF—Z R
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(REEZ

(iv) EREERREE
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v)

Based on their carrying amounts at 30 June 2013,
it is estimated that a 10% increase/decrease in
the fair values of the equity investments, with all
other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the College’s surplus for the year
by approximately HK$13.05 million (2012:
decreaselincrease the College’s deficit for the
year by approximately HK$12.63 million) and
increase/decrease the College’s net assets
at the balance sheet date by approximately
HK$15.14 million (2012: HK$14.44 million).

Fair Values
Financial instruments carried at fair value

The amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, require disclosures
relating to fair value measurements of financial
instruments across three levels of a “fair value
hierarchy”. The fair value of each financial
instrument is categorised in its entirety based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to
that fair value measurement. The levels are
defined as follows:

* Level 1 (highestlevel): fair values measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instruments

* Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly
or indirectly based on observable market
data

* Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured
using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable
market data

At 30 June 2013, the financial instruments of
the College carried at fair value were available-
for-sale equity securities of HK$20.85 million
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
and trading equity securities of HK$125.74
million and HK$4.78 million listed in Hong Kong
and outside Hong Kong respectively. These
instruments fall into Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy described above.

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(v)
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Capital commitments outstanding at 30 June 2013, not provided for in the financial statements, were as follows:

REF—ZF7A=1H » REMBEBRRBBEMCERRESFTNT -

2012
Contracted for B4 1,494
Authorised but not Contracted for CIREENREL 10,000

11,494



(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(UEBTFTIT)

At 30 June 2013, the total of future minimum lease payment under non-cancellable operating leases is as follows:

REF—ZFA=1H ' REFURIRNEERE - SRECNRERERERBITAT -

2012

Within one year 46
Two to five years “EhRF _
46

Operating lease charges for the year IEERESHEER 276

Due to the not-for-profit nature of the College and
the composition of the Board of Trustees (being
drawn from private, public organisations and
local churches), the College has received from
time to time donations from its Trustee members,
key management and companies controlled or
significantly influenced by them. The receipts of
such donations have all been individually reported
to and approved in accordance with the financial
regulations of The Chinese University of Hong Kong
(the “University”) by the Board of Trustees and the
University Council.

All transactions relating to the purchases of
goods and services and capital projects involving
organisations in which a member of the Board of
Trustees may have an interest are conducted during
the normal course of business and in accordance
with the University’s financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures.

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments,
new standards and interpretations which are not yet
effective for the year ended 30 June 2013 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements.

The College is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these amendments,
new standards and new interpretations which is
expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significantimpact on the College’s
results of operations and financial position.
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EPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

HONG KONG
BERPXABHEERRED

We have audited the financial statements of the Trustees of
New Asia College (the “College”) set out on pages 2 to 21,
which comprise the balance sheet as at 30 June 2013, and
the statement of comprehensive income and expenditure, the
statement of changes in funds and the cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

The Board of Trustees is responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and for such
internal control as the Board of Trustees determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Statue 12(7) of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong Ordinance (Cap. 1109), and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Board of Trustees, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the College as at 30 June 2013 and of
its surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

4 October 2013
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LUEH#FT5TR)

Note 2013 2012
FiiEE
Income A
Interest and Investment Income/(Loss) AR IIZE W/ (B518) 3 4,279 (1,230)
Donations and Benefactions E=LEYSE b 4 26,050 7,322
Other Income EHIgA 163 96
30,492 6,188
Expenditure 2 5
Learning and Research Bifi &R
Instruction and Research HEB LR 547 649
Other Academic Services EL{h AR 92 105
Institutional Support ElREEBIARTS
Student and General Education Services BE N —RHEEE 9,022 7,442
Other Activities HEL{th=EF 511 256
10,172 8,452
Surplus/(Deficit) and Total Comprehensive TEERR/(E5E) R ~ 20320 (2,264)
Income for the Year AEERmKE

The notes set out on pages 7 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LUEH#FT57TR)

Note 2013 2012
FizE

Non-Current Assets EREEE
Fixed Assets BE&EE 7 567 567
Investments wE 8 3,453 2,000
Other Receivables H{thFEWRIE 500 500
4,520 3,067

Current Assets RENEE
Investments ®BE 8 28,333 22,399
Accounts Receivable and Prepayments FEWIIRFA K FE{I FRIE 9 5,907 2,666
Cash at Bank and Time Deposits RITREHER 10 62,757 52,912
96,997 77,977
Current Liability mENaE

Accounts Payable and Accruals FETIRFR R FEEtE R 11 4,505 4,371
Provision for Employee Benefits EEEF£EfE 31 -
4,536 4,371
Net Current Assets mENEERH 92,461 73,606
Total Assets Less Current Liability HEERRBAE 96,981 76,673

Non-Current Liability EnEEE
Provision for Employee Benefits EEEF£ESmR . 12
NET ASSETS BEFE 96,981 76,661
Restricted Funds SEHRET 92,983 73,340
Other Funds HihBE 3,998 3,321

TOTAL FUNDS axan 96,981 76,661

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Trustees on 4 October 2013
FEERREENR _T—=F+ANAERIRERRIATEHER

Charles Y. W. Leung #iifa
Chairman, FJiE
Board of Trustees % &

Wong Man Yin £ &

Member, 1 &)k B
Board of Trustees f#H &

The notes set out on pages 7 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements.

NERELtEEZ+—BZMERAMEHRRC 55 -



(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LUEH#FT5TR)

Restricted Funds

SERES
(Note FfizE6)
Donations
Capital and Endowment
Fund Benefactions Fund Total
BEEEE BEREMR BARES FEEE]
Balance at 1 July 2011 —E——-FtHA—B&8R 567 67,376 8,262 76,205
Deficit and total comprehensive — FEEERFEZTHEH NI - (3,091) (237) (3,328)
Income for the year
Inter-fund Transfers BEEEEIR - 456 7 463
Balance at 30 June 2012 —E-—FXA=TRARERS 567 64,741 8,032 73,340
Balance at 1 July 2012 —E-—gFtRA—A4%&8% 567 64,741 8,032 73,340
Surplus and total comprehensive FEEZRBREEZHIES - 11,377 8,266 19,643
Income for the year
Inter-fund Transfers HEERZEIR - (92) 92 -
Balance at 30 June 2013 —E-=FA=1TR%R

567

76,026 16,390 92,983

The notes set out on pages 7 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements.

NERFELtEE=+ B MERAMEHRR 55 -
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L&#FIT5I5R)

Other Funds
HittEE
(Note FfizE6)
Donations General
and Endowment Total
Benefactions Fund Reserves Total Funds
BEkER —REBrES RS gz BEEREH
Balance at 1 July 2011 —E——FtHA—H&K 987 1,278 455 2,720 78,925
Deficit and total FEBENMEETEWE 1,032 - 32 1,064 (2,264)
comprehensive
Income for the year
Inter-fund Transfers EEEZER (463) - - (463) -
Balance at 30 June 2012 =—ZF——_F;B=1H%% 1,556 1,278 487 3,321 76,661
Balance at 1 July 2012 =—Z—-FtA—-H&#H 1,556 1,278 487 3,321 76,661
Surplus and total FERBAFEZHEWE 646 - 31 677 20,320
comprehensive
Income for the year
3,998 96,981

Balance at 30 June 2013 =Z—=FxA=1H&8% 2,202 1,278 518

The notes set out on pages 7 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements.
FIEHREtEE-+-BMERFHBHRR—5 05 -
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THE TRUSTEES OF NEW ASIA COLLEGE
E CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
MDERRET

TRERER

FOR THE YEAR 2013

BEE_S-=FRA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LUEH#FT5TR)

Note 2012
PftEE
Operating Activities seiEE
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year REERER/(E51E) (2,264)
Adjustments for: HEEIEE:
Interest Income FIE2UA (734)
Dividend Income BE2UIA (769)
Net Realised and Unrealised (Gain)/Loss BB EEIRAREBIRM(FIR)/ 2,733
on Investments Esig
Operating Surplus/(Deficit) before Changes in SIEE T IR SE R/ (BIR) (1,034)
Working Capital
Increase in Accounts Receivable FEMUMR TR A AT TRIE =2 380 (400)
and Prepayments
Increase in Accounts Payable FE(IMRFA N FEE & FH 21810 3,641
and Accruals
Increase in Provision for Employee Benefits EEfEF 2wz 18 12
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities RETHEERHAEIE 2,219
Investing Activities BEES
Increase in Time Deposits with Original FRHAEE=E BRI EE (6,344)
Maturity over Three Months FEZIgh
Payment for Purchase of Investments RIS (6,026)
Interest Received BRFIE 704
Dividends Received [SLgis 673
Proceeds from Sales of Debt Securities HEBKES -
Net Cash Used in Investing BB RE A RE R (10,993)
Activities -
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash REMRESEYZFEY (8,774)
Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year RERBREEEV-FWELS 38,689
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year REMRTEEY-FRER 10 29,915

The notes set out on pages 7 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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E TRUSTEES OF NEW ASIA COLLEGE
SE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

&HEP
NOTES TO THE

FAISERRMIRE

The financial statements of The Trustees of New
Asia College (the “College”) reflect the state of
affairs of all the funds of the College at 30 June
2013 and the College’s results and cash flows for
the year then ended. The assets of the College
are vested in The Board of Trustees of the College,
under the provisions of The Chinese University of
Hong Kong Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong.

The HKICPA has issued several new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of
the College. The adoption of the new and revised
HKFRS has no material impact on the College’s
financial statements in the current and previous
period.

The College has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 15).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except otherwise stated in the accounting policies
set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.
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The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the College is set out below.

Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets, other than the art collection, are
stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

The art collection is stated in the balance sheet at
cost less any impairment losses. The residual value
of the art collection is expected to be equal to or
greater than the carrying amount, and therefore the
art collection is not depreciated.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Where it can be clearly demonstrated
that subsequent expenditure on an asset has
resulted in an increase in its future economic benefit,
such expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of that asset.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of fixed
assets, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

3 -5years
3 years

Furniture and Equipment
Computer Equipment

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of a fixed
asset are determined as the difference between
the net proceeds and the carrying amount of the
fixed asset and are recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure on the
date of retirement or disposal.
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(b)

Impairment of Fixed Assets

An impairment loss is recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, is more than its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of
an asset, or of the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, is the greater of its fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the assets.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.

Investments

The College’s policies for investments in securities
are as follows:

(i) Investments are recognised/derecognised on
the date the College commits to purchase/sell
the investments or they expire.

(ii) Investments in securities held for trading are
initially stated at fair value plus transaction
cost. At each balance sheet date the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

(i) Dated debt securities that the College has the
positive ability and intention to hold to maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity securities.
Held-to-maturity securities are initially stated at
fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
they are stated in the balance sheet at
amortised cost less impairment loss.

Impairment loss for held-to-maturity debt
securities is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets).
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(d)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee Benefits

(i) Salaries, paid annual leave, housing allowances
and the cost to the College of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees of the College.

(i) Contract-end gratuity is payable on completion
of a contract appointment of not less than two
years. The gratuity, together with the total
amount of the College’s contributions to a
particular retirement scheme, will add up to
10% of the appointee’s basic salary drawn
during the contract period.

(iii) Contribution to defined contribution retirement
plan are recognised as an expense in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure as incurred.

(iv) Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the College demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the College has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligation,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurence or non-occurence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefit
is remote.

Income Recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the College and the income and expenditure,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, income is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure as follows:

(i) Interest Income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

(i) Dividend Income

Dividend income from listed securities is
recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

(i) Donations and Benefactions

Donations and benefactions are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure when the College becomes
entitled to the donations and benefactions and
it is probable that they will be received, which
is generally receipt of cash.
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(h)

Related Parties

(i)

(ii)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the College if that person:

(1
(1
()

has control or joint control over the
College;

has significant influence over the College;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the College or the College’s
parent.

An entity is related to the College if any of the
following conditions applies:

(1

(I

()

(V)

The entity and the College are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the College or an entity related to the
College.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i).

Aperson identified in (i)(l) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L& T 515T)

2012
Bank Interest Income RITRIRA 524
Interest Income from Debt Securities BEESFNE
Overseas Listed T8 L 94
Listed in Hong Kong E=EEL™m -
Unlisted L 116
Dividends from Listed Equity Securities LHESFRE 769
Net Realised and Unrealised Gain/(Loss) HithFE 5 2 B8R AREIRM (2,733)
on Investments F=/(B518) B
(1,230)



DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS R RIER
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MA&#EFIT5IT)

2013 2012
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries — i2E3F - BiE3E Ri%E 7,802 2,665
Others Hfih 18,248 4,657
26,050 7,322
EXPENDITURE X%iH
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT ITHIT)
2013 2012
Learning and Research : ERfii R R
Instruction and Research HERAR
Conference Expenses EREH 505 599
Student Helpers B4 42 50
547 649
Other Academic Services Hth#EBARTE
Visiting Scholars SHRAEA 92 105
92 105
Institutional Support : SRR
Student and General Education Services BYER—RHESEE
Student Financial Aids/Scholarships BLESEREEESE 5,402 5,421
Student/Extra-curricular Activities B4R EED 1,041 1,451
Staff Cost and Benefit B TH a5 88 273
Student Helpers B4 EhE 161 100
Repairing and Maintenance RENEE 2,242 -
Miscellaneous IR H 88 197
9,022 7,442
Other Activities HAthE
Gifts and Souvenirs BmAkicEm 57 22
Tea Reception and Banquet/Entertainment E2/FE 319 106
Miscellaneous HIEZH 135 128
511 256
10,172 8,452




6. NATURE AND PURPOSE OF FUNDS

(i)

(ii)

RESTRICTED FUND
Capital Funds

Capital Funds represent the balance of net book
value of the Fixed Assets which were financed
by funds with non-designated purpose.

Donations and Benefactions

Donations and Benefactions represent funds
received by the College from the Donors which
are used to support Scholarships, Student
Activities and Other College development
activities.

Endowment Funds

Endowment Funds represent donations
received by the College, usually with the
stipulation from the donors that the principal
amounts should remain intact in perpetuity or for
a defined time period for specific purposes.

OTHER FUNDS
Donations and Benefactions

Donations and Benefactions represent funds
received by the College from the Donors which
are used for general College development
activities.

General Endowment Fund

General Endowment Fund represents donations
received by the College. The principal amounts
remain intact and is mainly used for generate
interest and investment income.

Reserves

Reserves mainly represent interest and
investment income generated from General
Endowment Fund.
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7. FIXED ASSETS [ER&EE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (KAB#ETFTTHIT)
Furniture
Art and Computer

Collection Equipment Equipment  Total
i HERRRE SINRHE kL]

Cost
At 1 July 2011

Disposals

At 30 June 2012

Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 July 2011

Written Back on Disposals

At 30 June 2012

Net Book Value
At 30 June 2012

Cost
At 1 July 2012 and
30 June 2013

Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 July 2012 and
30 June 2013

Net Book Value
At 30 June 2013

5%
—2——%tA—H
HE
—®B-ZF5xA=1H

RFHrE
—2——%t+tA—H
H RO
—B-"FxA=1+H

IRELEE

—E-THA=tTH&R

R A{E
“B-"F+tHB—HXK
—E-=FxHB=1H

ZitineE
“B-"F+tHB—HXK
—E-=FxHB=1H

IRELFE
—E-=FA=tH&R

567 446 1 1,024
- ©) (11) (20)

567 437 - 1,004

- 446 1 457

- ©) (11) (20)

- 437 - 437

567 - - 567
567 437 - 1,004

- 437 - 437

567 - - 567



INVESTMENTS 3&&
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT IT5ITR)

2013 2012
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities, AR ERES
at amortised cost TRIBIHREANSIR
Listed in Hong Kong EEEBLD 1,453 -
Overseas Listed Cehisy nly ] - 1,507
Unlisted L 3,896 4,000
5,349 5,507
Trading Securities, at fair value OEERES ' BROAEEBEIT
Equity Securities listed in Hong Kong EEE LR AES 26,437 18,892
Total investments BERE 31,786 24,399
Less: Current Investments BRERE
Equity Securities listed in Hong Kong EEE LR AES 26,437 18,892
Overseas Listed Debt Securities EFBRI L EiSE - 1,507
Unlisted Debt Securities JE LGS 1,896 2,000
28,333 22,399
Non-current Investments JEmENIEE 3,453 2,000

The fair value of held-to-maturity debt securities which were listed overseas, listed in Hong Kong and unlisted
were nil (2012: HK$1,551,238), HK$1,433,523 (2012: nil) and HK$3,928,306 (2012: HK$4,055,820) respectively
at 30 June 2013.

REF—Z=%A=10 - ®f5 L - F& LHRIF EmEERIE EEES A ABEZ FIREEETRT(2012:
#1%1,5651,2387%) » #81,433,5237T (2012: FBHEBTT) RiBE3,928,3067T (2012: ##E4,055,8207) °

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS IR R Fa{IFRIA
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MAB¥EFITHIR)

2013 2012

Amount due from The Chinese University B E B AREBIRIE 4,685 1,192
of Hong Kong

Accounts Receivable FEYIRTR 130 201

Prepayments and Other Receivables FEATRRIE R E At FEUTR 1,092 1,273

5,907 2,666

Accounts receivable and prepayments are expected to be recoverable or recognised as expenditure within
one year.

FEUIIRFR R TR FRIRTEHA I — F A EI sk R B3I H -

Note: The outstanding balance with The Chinese University of Hong Kong is unsecured, interest free and
has no fixed repayment terms.

Mizt: EERKAFEPIABERIRDP - ZIEAFREHDDBIER - RENEEEEERGT -



(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAY TT5IR)

2012
Cash at Bank RITER 9,541
Time Deposits EHREM 43,371
Cash at Bank and Time Deposits inthe  EEBEBERANETR 52,912

Balance Sheet EHATEM
Less: Time Deposits with Original Maturity i&: TZEAEE =B BrEHH (22,997)
over Three Months (e
Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Cash IRERERAIRE
Flow Statement KMIREEEY 29,915

Cash and time deposits included the following amounts denominated in foreign currency:
RE RIFTEREREE TIILIIMEREMNEEE
(Expressed in thousands)  (LAFTT5I7R)

2012
Renminbi RMB AR -
United States Dollars uUsD ETT 1,134
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAEH#EFIT5IR)

2012
Accounts Payable FE(TIRFR 3,311
Receipt in Advance FEWERIE 1,060

4,371

The College is a not-for-profit organisation and
forms part of The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
The objective of the College is to complement the
University in the provision of a balanced and holistic
education. The College defines capital as including
various general and restricted funds balances. The
various funds represent the unspent balance of
donations, grants and income. These funds are
managed in accordance with the College’s financial
management procedures and the relevant funding
conditions, where applicable. The College’s primary
objective when managing capital is to safeguard the
College’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain a strong financial base to support the
development of the College. To achieve the above
capital management objective, the College follows
guidelines on investment and financial management
as set out in note 13.

There has been no change in the College’s capital
management practices as compared to prior year.
The College is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirement.
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NAIB

The College’s financial instruments mainly include
bank deposits, debt securities and equity securities,
which are exposed to credit, interest rate, currency
and equity price risks. The risks on financial assets
are controlled in accordance with the investment
guidelines approved by the Investment Sub-
committee under the College’s Board of Trustees.
This is achieved through diversified asset allocation,
rules governing the selection and credit limits of
investment counterparties with reference to their
credit ratings and financial strength. The Investment
Sub-committee reviews investment strategies
and performance periodically to ensure that the
investment objectives and performance targets
are met. The Investment Sub-committee meets
periodically to manage and monitor risk exposures
associated with respective financial assets to ensure
that appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Credit Risk

The College’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to the investments in debt securities and bank
deposits. Management has a credit policy in place
and exposures to these credit risks are monitored
on an ongoing basis. The College places deposits
with major financial institutions with good credit
ratings.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the balance sheet.

Interest Rate Risk

The College is exposed to interest rate risk primarily
arising from its bank deposits due to fluctuations in
the prevailing levels of market interest rates.

As at 30 June 2013, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in fixed
deposit interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased the
College’s surplus for the year by approximately
HK$627,000 (2012: decreased/increased the
College’s deficit for the year by HK$434,000) and
increased/decreased the College’s net assets at the
balance sheet date by approximately HK$627,000
(2012: HK$434,000). This analysis has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rate had occurred at the balance sheet date and
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(c)

had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for bank deposits in existence at that date, with an
assumption that fixed term instruments which expire
during the next reporting period will be rolled over
at the expiry of that term at the new market rate.

Foreign Currency Risk

The functional currency of the College is the Hong
Kong dollar. The College is exposed to currency risk
primarily arising from bank deposits and investments
that are denominated in United States dollars
(USD). Those assets and liabilities denominated
in currencies other than HKD and USD are not
material.

About 11% of the College’s financial assets
(including cash, bank deposits with banks, debt,
equity securities and investments) are denominated
in USD, but it is considered that risk of movement
in exchange rate between the HKD and the USD
is insignificant as the HKD is currently pegged to
the USD under the linked exchange rate system
adopted by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region.

The following tables show the amounts of financial
assets (including cash, bank deposits with banks,
debt and investments) denominated in various
currencies at the balance sheet date:

A~ SHEERR

FERFIFANEBRET - FERFIEHRIIHERR
FEREETHNERRIZE - BREEENSELERE
BRETTEENERL AR -

FERBEURTREEEENEMEEALILER
EEMENEIZ+—(BERE - FRRERTER -
FE - RERKRE) - BEEERITHRERNENE
TRBEITHHRERFET - 2EREEERR
KTEEEEERMUCARAIEX

UT—BRIHEEBRAMZEEEREEEE
HNEMBECEHE (BFRE - TRRRTHER -
FELIRE)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MABHSTFTToIT)
2013 2012
Amount % of total Amount % of total
value of value of
financial financial
assets assets
koL (LRSS 8 LRERE
Currency &g ENBALL ENBSLL
HKD S 77,036 82 67,008 87
UsD EpT 10,476 11 10,303 13
RMB ARHEE 7,031 7 - -
94 543 100

77,311 100



About 7% of the College’s financial assets are
denominated in RMB, which is expected to
appreciate in the long run. As no financial assets
denominated in currencies other than HKD, USD
and RMB as at 30 June 2013 (2012: nil), exposure
to foreign currency risk is not significant.

Equity Price Risk

The College is exposed to equity price risk arising
from investments in equity securities listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (see note 8). These
investments have been chosen based on their
longer term growth potential and are monitored
regularly for performance against expectations.
At 30 June 2013, it is estimated than an increase/
decrease of 10% in these securities’ market prices
with all other variables held constant, would have
increased/decreased the College’s surplus for
the year by approximately HK$2,643,000 (2012:
decreased/increased the College’s deficit for
the year by approximately HK$1,889,000) and
increased/decreased the College’s net assets at the
balance sheet date by approximately HK$2,643,000
(2012: HK$1,889,000).

Fair Values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values as at
30 June 2013 and 2012. The fair values of equity
securities listed in Hong Kong are based on quoted
bid prices at balance sheet date. The fair values of
held-to-maturity debt securities disclosed in note 8
are based on market prices provided by counterparty
financial institution at balance sheet date.

HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures
requires disclosures relating to fair value
measurements of financial instruments across
three levels of a “fair value hierarchy”. The fair
value of each financial instrument is categorised in
its entirety based on the lowest level of input that
is significant to that fair value measurement. The
levels are defined as follows:

(i) Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instruments;
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(i) Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data;

(iii) Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured
using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable
market data.

At 30 June 2013, the financial instruments of the
College carried at fair value were trading securities
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.
These instruments fall into Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy described above.

Due to the not-for-profit nature of the College and the
composition of the Board of Trustees (being drawn
from private and public organisations), the College
has received from time to time donations from its
Board of Trustee members, key management and
companies controlled or significantly influenced by
them. The receipts of such donations have all been
individually reported to and approved in accordance
with the financial regulations of the Chinese
University of Hong Kong (the “University”) by the
Board of Trustees and the University Council.

All transactions relating to the purchases of
goods and services and capital projects involving
organisations in which a member of the Board of
Trustees may have an interest are conducted during
the normal course of business and in accordance
with the University’s financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures.

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments,
new standards and interpretations which are not
yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2013 and
which have not been adopted in these financial
statements.

The College is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these amendments,
new standards and new interpretations which is
expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significantimpact on the College’s
results of operations and financial position.
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DEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

F HONG KONG

HERPXARBHRSERRED

We have audited the financial statements of the Trustees of
United College (the “College”) set out on pages 2 to 22, which
comprise the balance sheet as at 30 June 2013, the statement
of comprehensive income and expenditure, the statement of
changes in funds and the cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

The Board of Trustees is responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and for such
internal control as the Board of Trustees determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Statue 12(7) of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong Ordinance (Cap. 1109), and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Board of Trustees, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the College as at 30 June 2013 and of
its surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

21 October 2013

USTEES OF UNITED COLLEGE
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LA&#TFIT5lR)

Note 2013 2012
P
Income KA
Interest and Investment Income BRI E W 3 11,164 8,707
Donations and Benefactions EELYSE R 4 14,661 6,738
Others Hith 186 344
26,011 15,789
Expenditure X 5
Learning and Research Efif KRR
Instruction and Research HEBRMRR 2,090 2,577
Institutional Support EREHBNARTS
Premises and Related Expenses BFRBE%H 142 147
Student and General Education Services BEN—BHEER 12,506 10,648
Other Activities HithE# 1,358 2,385
16,096 15,757
Surplus for the Year TEERR 9,915 32
ltem that may be Reclassified Subsequently to HiguSMaEERRTE
Surplus or Deficit BrIER
Changes in Fair Value of Available-for-Sale Ot HERERES AR 18,391 (17,213)
Equity Securities BEEE
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year AEEREWISEEE 28,306 (17,181)

The notes set out on pages 7 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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UNITED COLLEGE ENDOWMENT FUND
S OF UNITED COLLEGE
OF HONG KONG

BaEREE
FXRA=1H

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L& IT5IR)

Note 2012
P&
Non-Current Assets ERBEE

Fixed Assets BEE&E 8 4,137
Investments B7E 9 199,803
203,940

Current Assets neEnEE
Funds Held by The Chinese University ERREEPIARE 10 33,400

of Hong Kong b
Student Loans BEEm 11 266
Accounts Receivable and Prepayments FEWTR TR K FE T TRIE 12 5,289
Cash at Bank and Time Deposits IRITAEHER 13 39,249
78,204

Current Liabilities mEAaE
Accounts Payable and Accruals FERIIRFR R FERTE 14 2,636
Provision for Employee Benefits EEEF£ESE 15 100
2,736
Net Current Assets MENEEEE 75,468
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities BEERRESaE 279,408

Non-Current Liability ERERE

Provision for Employee Benefits EEEF%ER 15 92
NET ASSETS BERH 279,316
Restricted Funds EHRES 6 45,378
Other Funds HihES 7 233,938
TOTAL FUNDS E2BE 279,316

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Trustees on 21 October 2013
HaERRESN_S—=F1+A-+—BitERIBEERILATEER

Thomas H.C. Cheung iRIER Lina H.Y. Yan ERI552

Chairman £[E

Board of Trustees {&{&=

S.T. Wong &#2%
Member &8

Board of Trustees {{&=

Chairman £[E
Endowment Fund Committee E£ZEE S

Peter P.F. Chan PR35
Hon. Treasurer ZZ5]E&E
Endowment Fund Committee £ E5=

The notes set out on pages 7 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.
NEREtREE T BRI RTR —E0 5 -
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LEEFTTHIT)

Restricted Funds

(Note 6)
SREX
(Fif=E 6)
Capital Funds Donations Total
and
Benefactions
BEEE BB b
Balance at 1 July 2011 —_ES——FtHA—H#&R 4,215 38,530 42,745
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year F£EZHEW = (113) 2,746 2,633
Balance at 30 June 2012 —B-"FB=1TH%&H% 4,102 41,276 45,378
Balance at 1 July 2012 “E-"HFtHP—B#&&% 4,102 41,276 45,378
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year FEEZHEEE (127) 12,177 12,050
Balance at 30 June 2013 —T-=FA=1TH#&8R 3,975 53,453 57,428

The notes set out on pages 7 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Other Funds

(Note 7)
HihEE
(PftEE 7)
Capital General Investments Other Total Total
Funds Endowment Revaluation Reserves Funds
Funds Reserves
BEEMR Hith
EEES BIEES fifis ffEE g BB
70 36,185 180,886 36,611 253,752 296,497
(35) - (17,213) (2,566) (19,814) (17,181)
35 36,185 163,673 34,045 233,938 279,316
35 36,185 163,673 34,045 233,938 279,316
6 - 18,391 (2,141) 16,256 28,306
41 36,185 182,064 31,904 250,194 307,622
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THE UNITED COLLEGE ENDOWMENT FUND

THE TRUSTEES OF UNITED COLLEGE

BEHASERES
CASH FLO ER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LL#E#TFIT5lmR)

INESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

2013 EE-_F—=FB=1+THLTFE

Note 2012
FizE (Restated)
(5
Operating Activities mEGER)
Surplus for the Year REERER 32
Adjustments for : FAEEIER -
Depreciation e 161
Dividend Income B2 A (8,575)
Net Realised and Unrealised Gains on EHREEPI X RBRIEEEZ (60)
Trading and Other Securities from Funds EENHMESFEIRNREIR
Held by The Chinese University of Hong Wiesi B8R
Kong
Interest Income FSUZA (72)
Foreign Exchange Loss BE ARS8 337
Operating Deficit before Changes SELET IR SRS (8,177)
in Working Capital
Increase in Student Loans EBEEMZIEM (27)
Decrease / (Increase) in Accounts PR SR R B 2RIE Z R4/ (0) (1,366)
Receivable and Prepayments
(Decrease) / Increase in Accounts FE(TIRER R FES T A2 (R /30 1,064
Payable and Accruals
Increase / (Decrease) in Provision for EEEFIEMRZIEM / (R (93)
Employee Benefits
Net Cash Generated from / (Used in) BETRESE / (FRR)ZIREFH (8,599)
Operating Activities
Investing Activities BEEH
Payment for Purchase of Fixed Assets BREEEE (13)
Dividend Received [0S 8,579
Interest Received BIFIR 68
Increase in Funds Held by The Chinese GFRREEPSIAERELZ (400)
University of Hong Kong =0
Decrease / (Increase) in Time Deposits with F AR = A BN EETE=SR (10,027)
Original Maturity over Three Months ZiA 1 (3Eh0)
Net Cash Generated from / (Used in) WEERMES / (FRA)ZIRE (1,793)
Investing Activities
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash IRE BIREEFEBY I / GRD) (10,392)
Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year IR NIRESZHEY) - £V 39,951
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year HERIESEEY - £1845% 13

The notes set out on pages 7 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.
FIERELtREE-+ B R4 #5IRER —&M7
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UNITED COLLEGE ENDOWMENT FUND

EES OF UNITED COLLEGE

Y OF HONG KONG
HEAPIKEBES BEREE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA3&$R:RMisE

The financial statements of The Trustees of United
College (the “College”) reflect the state of affairs of
all the funds of the College at 30 June 2013 and
the College’s results and cash flows for the year
then ended. The assets of the College are vested
in The Board of Trustees of the College, under the
provisions of The Chinese University of Hong Kong
Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong.

The HKICPA has issued several amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the College. Of these,
“Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income” is the development relevant
to the College’s Financial Statements.

The amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to
present the items of other comprehensive income
that would be reclassified to profit or loss in the future
if certain conditions are met separately from those
that would never be reclassified to profit or loss.
The College’s presentation of other comprehensive
income in these financial statements has been
modified accordingly.

The College has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 20).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except otherwise stated in the accounting policies
set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.
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(a)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are

reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the College is set out below.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets are stated in the balance sheet at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
assets to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Where it can be clearly demonstrated
that subsequent expenditure on an asset has
resulted in an increase in its future economic
benefit, such expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of that asset.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
fixed assets, less their estimated residual value,if
any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 40 years

Equipment, Furniture
and Fittings

3-5years

Shorter of useful
life or duration of
project

Equipment acquired for
Research Projects

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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(b)

An impairment loss is recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, is more than its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of
an asset, or of the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, is the greater of its fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
assets. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of a fixed
asset are determined as the difference between
the net proceeds and the carrying amount of the
fixed asset and are recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Investments

(i) Investments are recognised/derecognised on
the date the College commits to purchase/sell
the investments or they expire. Investments in
equity securities are initially stated at fair value
plus transaction costs.

(i) The equity securities held by the College are
not for trading purpose and are classified
as “available-for-sale equity securities”. At
each balance sheet date, the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity
in the fair value reserve, except for impairment
loss.

When there is objective evidence that available-
for-sale equity securities are impaired, the
cumulative loss that had been recognised
directly in the fair value reserve is reclassified
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure. The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure is
the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the College concerning the
underlying financial stability of the investee as
well as a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment below its cost.

HFfEEENREENREEEEMSRTREIRZ
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(c)

(iii) Impairmentlosses recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
Any subsequent increase in the fair value of
such assets is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

(iv) Funds placed with investment managers in
the name of The Chinese University of Hong
Kong comprise cash deposits, bonds and
equity investments managed by independent
investment managers. These funds are stated
at fair value and any change in the fair value
of the funds is recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

(d) Employee Benefits

0] Salaries, paid annual leave, housing allowances
and the cost to the College of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees
of the College.

(i) Contract-end gratuity is payable on completion

of a contract appointment of not less than two

years. The gratuity, together with the total

amount of the College’s contributions to a

particular retirement scheme, will add up to

10% or 15% of the appointee’s basic salary

drawn during the contract period.

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans, including Mandatory
Provident Funds as required under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, are recognised as an expenditure
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure as incurred.

(iii)

Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the College demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.
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(e)

(f)

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the College has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Income Recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the College and the income and expenditure,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, income is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure as follows:

(i) Interest Income

Interestincome is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

(ii) Dividend Income

Dividend income from listed securities is
recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

(iii) Donations and Benefactions

Donations and Benefactions are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure when the College becomes
entitled to the donations and benefactions and
it is probable that they will be received, which is
generally receipt of cash.
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(9)

(h)

Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the
balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses
on foreign currency translation are dealt with in the
relevant fund accounts through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Related Parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the College if that person:

() has control or joint control over the
College;

(I)  has significant influence over the College;
or

(Il is a member of the key management
personnel of the College or the College’s
parent.

(if) An entity is related to the College if any of the
following conditions applies:

() The entity and the College are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(I)  One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(I) Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(IV) One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(V) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the College or an entity related to the
College.

(VI) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i).

(VIl) Aperson identified in (i)(l) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.
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INTEREST AND INVESTMENT INCOME

FIB R BE WS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TTAm)
2013 2012
Net Realised and Unrealised Gains on ERREEDPXREREEEZ 1,798 60
Trading and Other Securities from Funds BEENHMESEIRNMRER
Held by The Chinese University of Hong Kong Wk FER
Dividends from Listed Equity Securities LHRAESRE 9,255 8,575
Interest from Bank Deposits RITEMIE 111 72
11,164 8,707
DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS LSRR
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT THIR)
2013 2012
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries REE - BENEEBE 11,848 5,481
Others Hith 2,813 1,257
14,661 6,738




5.

5.1

EXPENDITURE 2]

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LABHEETTTHIR)
2013 2012
Staff Cost Operating Total Staff Cost Operating Total
and  Expenses and Expenses
Benefits Benefits
BT HH STEHM
RaEH =ERX 0 RiEEF SENEx 88
Learning and Research Efif &R
Instruction and Research HEB KRR 19 2,071 2,090 49 2,528 2,577
Institutional Support (Note 5.1) EFeEHBIARES (FiEE5.1)
Premises and Related Expenses {8 KEREAXE _ 142 142 - 147 147
Students and General Education B4ER—KHE 3,790 8,716 12,506 3,453 7,195 10,648
Services =¥
Other Activities Hit=E# 114 1,244 1358 80 2,305 2,385
3,904 10,102 14,006 3,633 9,647 13,180
Total Expenditure P 3,923 12,173 16,096 3,582 12175 15757
Analysis of Operating Expenses on Institutional Support ERWHMRENEELZ HS
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB TTAIT)
2013 2012
Premises and Related Expenses BFAERAXH
Renovation and Maintenance BT YN E S 142 147
Student and General Education Services BYER—BRHESEE
Scholarships & Prize REENERE 7,076 5,638
Student/Extra-curricular Activities B4 ERINEED 1,561 1,584
Microcomputer Laboratory BH=E 79 (30)
Miscellaneous I - 3
8,716 7,195
Other Activities HAthsE#%
College Publications ElxT 97 69
College Activities and Functions ElEE 757 1,663
Exchange Loss TR EFS 255 337
Miscellaneous I8 135 236
1,244 2,305
10,102 9,647




NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESTRICTED
FUNDS

Capital Funds

Capital Funds represent the balance of net book
value of the Fixed Assets which were financed by
funds with non-designated purpose.

Donations and Benefactions

Donations and Benefactions represent funds
received by the College from the Donors which are
used to support Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries
of the College.

- NATURE AND PURPOSE OF OTHER FUNDS

Capital Funds

Capital Funds represent the balance of net book
value of the Fixed Assets which were financed by
funds with non-designated purpose.

General Endowment Funds

Endowment Funds represent donations received
by the College, usually with the stipulation from the
donors that the principal amounts should remain
intact in perpetuity or for a defined time period for
specific purposes.

Investments Revaluation Reserves

Investments Revaluation Reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-
for-sale equity securities held at the balance sheet
date and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies in note 2(b).

Other Reserves

Other Reserves represent the reserves generated
by the College from interest and investment income
which are used to support college activities, student
activities, programmes or projects of the College.
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8. FIXED ASSETS EE&EE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LUBEET TTHIT)
Buildings  Equipment, Total
Furniture
and
Fittings
FREE
B Es ST ]

Cost HANE

At 1 July 2011 —E——FtHhA—BH# 4,759 1,627 6,386

Additions w"E - 13 13

At 30 June 2012 - EFRA=1TH%&R 4,759 1,640 6,399
Accumulated Depreciation REtinE

At 1 July 2011 —S——F+tHB—HA%8 553 1,548 2,101

Charge for the Year REEIRE 121 40 161

At 30 June 2012 “E-THEXB=1TH#AH 674 1,588 2,262
Net Book Value at 30 June 2012 ZZ—ZFA=1+HIREFE 4,085 52 4,137
Cost HAE

At 1 July 2012 t= Sl = of = B S F2357 4,759 1,640 6,399

Additions B - 34 34

Disposals HE - (161) (161)

At 30 June 2013 “—E—=FA=1TH#% 4,759 1,513 6,272
Accumulated Depreciation REtinE

At 1 July 2012 “E——FtRA—B#8 674 1,588 2,262

Charge for the Year REEIRE 121 34 155

Written Back on Disposals HEREE - (161) (161)

At 30 June 2013 “E-=FAB=1TH%&% 795 1,461 2,256
Net Book Value at 30 June 2013 ZEZ—Z=F;xA=1+HIREFE 3,964 52 4,016

9. INVESTMENTS A=
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT THIT)
2013 2012

Available-for-Sale Equity Securities aHtHERTES

at Fair Value DA EESIR

- Listed in Hong Kong -EEEB LD 218,194 199,803

._



10.

1.

12.

FUNDS HELD BY THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG (“CUHK” or the “University”)
EFHRRBEEPXAE( “XB” RIE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TTHIR)

2013 2012
Funds Placed with Investment Managers DEBPIABERER 9,180 10,191
in the name of CUHK BB AT RIS
Fixed Income Assets in the name UEBDPIAREBZEER 24,220 23,209
CUHK EEWMAEEZIE
33,400 33,400
Note:

Funds held by the University are pooled with other University funds for investment and bank deposits
arrangements in the name of CUHK.

Pt EE:
EHREBPXARBRIEEEMABES —HURBRRERERRITERSTE -

STUDENT LOANS BEEM
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB TTAIR)

2013 2012
Student Emergency Loans BAESEM 81 81
Wong Fung Ling Student Loans EEWMEBEEM 30 20
Travel Loans for Non-Local Academic FEARHEBEREERETE 204 165
Activities Scheme
315 266
The student loans are expected to be recoverable within one year.
BLESFURIEISTRIAR —FANE] -
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS FEUIRTR B FE A FRIE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB TTHIT)
2013 2012
Accounts Receivable FEYTRTR 1,224 1,100
Prepayments FETRIE 1,880 2,438
Amount due from The Chinese University R E B ARE 2,270 1,751
of Hong Kong (Note) RIS (PftEE)

5,374 5,289

The accounts receivable, prepayments and amount due from The Chinese University of Hong Kong are
expected to be recoverable or recognised as expenses within one year.

FEKIIRTR ~ FRFIE AR BN E B P X ABIRIEY AR —FAROER S -

Note:  The outstanding balance with CUHK is unsecured and has no fixed repayment term.

MizE: EERAEBPIXABHERIED - BREDRIEHLEREEEERR



13.

14.

15.

.._

CASH AT BANK AND TIME DEPOSITS RITRBHER
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB TTHIT)

2013 2012
Cash at Bank IRITER 12 659
Time Deposits EHAERR 48,735 38,590
Cash at Bank and Time Deposits in the BEERBRANRITR 48,747 39,249

Balance Sheet EHER
Less: Time Deposit with Original Maturity W EREBB=ER (9,435) (9,690)
over Three Months HIEERAEM
Cash and Cash Equivalents in the RERERAIRE 39,312 29,559
Cash Flows Statement RMIREEEY

Included in time deposits is the following amount denominated in the following foreign currency:
HRITEIEMEETIILMERELNEEE :
(Expressed in thousands)  (JAF1517R)

2013 2012
Pounds Sterling (“GBP”) REE 800 800
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS BTiRmR A BT ER
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT ITHITR)

2013 2012
Accounts Payable FETHIRFR 539 340
Receipt in Advance FEWRIE 1,567 2,284
Accruals FEEtE&ER 3 12

2,109 2,636

The accounts payable and accruals are expected to be settled within one year or are payable on demand.

FEAIIRTR K FEET B RISTERAIR — FREEWRE R

PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EESEFERE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB TTHIE)

2013 2012
Contract-end Gratuity Ep i 200 86
Other Employee Benefits HitnESEF 115 106
315 192
Payable FE(~t

Within 1 year R—FA 140 100
After 1 year R—F& 175 92
315 192



The College is a not-for-profit organisation and forms
part of The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Itaims
to offer a balanced and holistic education with rich
college life to students in supporting their personal
growth and development. The College defines
capital as including various general and restricted
funds balances. The various funds represent the
unspent balance of donations, grants and income.
These funds are managed in accordance with the
College’s financial management procedures and the
relevant funding conditions, where applicable. The
College’s primary objective when managing capital
is to safeguard the College’s ability to continue as
a going concern and to maintain a strong financial
base to support the development of the College. To
achieve the above capital management objective,
the College sets guidelines on investment and
financial management. For funds with specific
purpose, they will mainly be placed in funds held
by The Chinese University of Hong Kong (Note 10),
whereas funds invested in blue chip equity securities
are reserved for general use.

There has been no change in the College’s capital
management practices as compared to prior year.
The College is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirement.

The College’s financial instruments mainly include
bank deposits, equity securities and funds held
by The Chinese University of Hong Kong, which
are exposed to credit, interest rate, currency and
equity price risks. The risks on financial assets
are controlled in accordance with the investment
guidelines approved by the Endowment Fund
Committee under the College’s Board of Trustees.
This is achieved through diversified asset allocation,
rules governing the selection and credit limits
of investment counterparties with reference to
their credit ratings and financial strength. The
Endowment Fund Committee reviews investment
strategies and performance periodically to ensure
that the investment objectives and performance
targets are met. An investment sub-committee
under the Endowment Fund Committee meets
periodically to manage and monitor risk exposures
associated with respective financial assets to
ensure that appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

FEREMBEREEPIIABHIFFTEEE - KSR
HWREEERBERHTERTENHENEENIR
EETE - HEMtPIRNMRAER - ERNETERE
E—RESNEREE - MARSNALER - HEIE X
HtARIMEERMATSEEA - BLEESER
BERNMFEEBRRREE - FERESEESNE
BREERRARSREEEEE L TRENMEINR
RGHERNER - BERILER - ERHIE 718
HIRE RS EERIES| - EREETEFNNEE
PRABHRIAGE10) - MRBREZRTELSNES
AIBE—IAE -

FERNEFTEERBRIRENBEEFER - 30k
W BINERENMMERRE

FERFANEMTIRIRERITENR - BREEHR
ERREEPTXAREME - AERZES -~ FIE -
SMERERERNER - ERRESE THESZH
TE TIEES IREHELERE - WEERGTHRER
BARRUMASIRERS MERIREER - #EES
ZTH—ERE /A - ZENSEHESHERERRE -
VAtEREERNR ~ BRUtRIGEZIEHE



(@)

(b)

(c)

Credit Risk

The College’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
bank deposits. Management has a credit policy
in place and exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis. The College places
deposits with major financial institutions with good
credit ratings. The credit risk associated with the
funds held by the Chinese University of Hong
Kong is considered to be low. The College has no
significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the balance sheet.

Interest Rate Risk

The College is exposed to interest rate risk primarily
arising from its time deposits due to fluctuations in
the prevailing levels of market interest rates.

As at 30 June 2013, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in fixed
deposit interest rate, with all other variables
held constant, would increase/decrease the
College’s surplus for the year and net assets at the
balance sheet date by approximately HKD487,000
(2012: HKD386,000). This analysis has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rate had occurred at the balance sheet date and had
been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
short-term deposits in existence at that date, with an
assumption that fixed term instruments which expire
during the next reporting period will be rolled over
at the expiry of that term at the new market rate.

Currency Risk

The College’s foreign currency risk exposure mainly
arises from a GBP short-term deposit.

As at 30 June 2013, the percentage of financial
assets denominated in currencies other than HKD
to total assets is 3.0% (2012: 3.4%). The College
considers the effect of currency risk on the financial
statements not material.

Though the funds held by the University are also
invested in debt and equity securities and bank
deposits denominated in United States dollars,
management does not consider it necessary to
hedge the exposure on United States dollars given
that the Hong Kong dollars are currently pegged to
the United States dollars under the linked exchange
rate system adopted by the HKSAR Government.
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(d)

(e)

Equity Price Risk

The College is exposed to equity price risk arising
primarily from available-for-sale equity securities. All
of these investments are blue chip shares listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and are included
in the Hang Seng Index. These investments have
been chosen based on their longer term growth
potential. Management monitors regularly the
performance of the investments to ensure their
suitability as investments for the College.The equity
price risk related to funds held by the University is
managed by professional managers through their
own risk management and assessment policies.
The investment managers’ investment strategies are
governed by the University’s investment and asset
allocation guidelines. The College also monitors the
risk exposure by reviewing periodic reports from the
custodians and investment managers.

As at 30 June 2013, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 10% in these securities’
market prices, with all other variables held
constant, would increase/decrease the College’s
net assets by approximately HKD22,062,000 (2012:
HKD20,244,000).

Fair Values

Financial instruments carried at fair value

HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, requires
disclosures relating to fair value measurements of
financial instruments across three levels of a “fair
value hierarchy”. The fair value of each financial
instrument is categorised in its entirety based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

+ Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instruments

* Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data

* Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured
using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable
market data

At 30 June 2013, the only financial instruments of
the College carried at fair value were available-for-
sale equity securities of HKD218,194,000(2012:
HKD199,803,000) listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong. These instruments fall into Level 1 of
the fair value hierarchy described above.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(UEBTTHT)

Capital commitments outstanding at 30 June 2013, not provided for in the financial statements, are as

follows:

REF—ZF7A=1H » REMBERRBZLEMERREIRAT -

2012

Authorised but not Contracted for

Due to the not-for-profit nature of the College and
the composition of the Board of Trustees (being
drawn from private and public organisations),
the College has received from time to time
donations from its Board of Trustees members,
key management and companies controlled or
significantly influenced by them. The receipts of
such donations have all been individually reported
to and approved in accordance with the financial
regulations of the Chinese University of Hong Kong
(the “University”) by the Board of Trustees and the
University Council.

All transactions relating to the purchases of
goods and services and capital projects involving
organisations in which a member of the Board of
Trustees may have an interest are conducted during
the normal course of business and in accordance
with the University’s financial regulations and
normal procurement procedures.

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments,
new standards and interpretations which are not
yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2013 and
which have not been adopted in these financial
statements.

The College is in the process of making an
assessment of whatthe impact of these amendments,
new standards and new interpretations which is
expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significantimpact on the College’s
results of operations and financial position.
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PENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

THE CHINESE UNIV
BEAPXAXBERXERRET

F HONG KONG

We have audited the financial statements of the Trustees of Shaw
College (the “College”) set out on pages 2 to 22, which comprise
the balance sheet as at 30 June 2013, and the statement of
comprehensive income and expenditure, the statement of
changes in funds and the cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

The Board of Trustees is responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and for such
internal control as the Board of Trustees determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Statue 12(7) of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong Ordinance (Cap. 1109), and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Board of Trustees, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the College as at 30 June 2013 and of its
surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

18 October 2013

S OF SHAW COLLEGE
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LT TTEIT)

Note 2013 2012
PiiEE
Income WA
Interest and Investment Income/(Loss) BRI E W/ (B18) 3 8,680 (5,109)
Donations and Benefactions 1BHE M IBFR 4 16,949 1,044
Other Income EHHKBA 551 312
26,180 (3,753)
Expenditure X )
Learning and Research Bilf R A5
Other Academic Services HthZEBRRTS 407 457
Institutional Support ERREHENRTS
Management and General EEN—REE 80 20
Premises and Related Expenses BFAERZH 7,790 6,627
Student and General Education Services BN —RHESE 4,842 4,461
Other Activities HhE 101 162
13,220 11,727
Surplus/(Deficit) and Total Comprehensive TEERRI(BR)RAEE 12,960 (15,480)
Income for the Year 2

The notes set out on pages 7 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.
FIERELtREE-_+ BRI MIFHRR —EM -



(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L{#&#&FIT5]7R)

Note 2013 2012
FiiEE
Non-Current Asset EREEE
Fixed Assets BEE&EE 8 422 75
422 75
Current Assets mENEE
Investments BE 9 4,865 4,708
Funds Held by The Chinese University of FERREEPIAE 10 131,655 125,578
Hong Kong A
Student Loans BEEM 1 562 672
Accounts Receivable FEUWTIRTR 12 93 64
Cash at Bank and Time Deposits IRIT M EHATERR 13 10,248 3,675
147,423 134,697
Current Liabilities mEaE
Accounts Payable and Accruals FEfIIRFA N FESTE F 14 936 846
Provision for Employee Benefits EEEF £ 25 16
961 862
Net Current Assets MENEESHE 146,462 133,835
Total Assets Net of Current Liabilities BEERGIEE 146,884 133,910
Non-Current Liability ERBEE
Provision for Employee Benefits EEEFIESE 14 -
NET ASSETS BESHE 146,870 133,910
Restricted Funds ERES 6 146,336 134,426
Other Funds HittEE 7 534 (516)
TOTAL FUNDS BE4E5E 146,870 133,910

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Trustees on 18 October 2013
BREGRESENR_F—=F+A+ N\ B ERIRERRILEATFRE

Clement Fung JBJk5

Hamen Fan SgE%&%

Chan Chi Fai R

Chairman, &
Board of Trustees {XE&=&

Hon. Treasurer, FE25]&
Board of Trustees {{&&

Member, 285
Board of Trustees {{&&

The notes set out on pages 7 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAEHTT5T)

Restricted
Funds
SEHESE
Capital Endowment Other Total
Funds Funds Restricted
Funds

EEEE BrEE HUEREE a5

(Note 6)
(FftzE6)
Balance at 1 July 2011 —ES——Ft/—B#8% - 102,362 46,335 148,697
Transfers to the Statement of BEEZEKXZR - (5,886) (8,385) (14,271)
Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure
Balance at 30 June 2012 —E-"HFA=1TH#8 - 96,476 37,950 134,426
Balance at 1 July 2012 “E-"FtRA—B#8R - 96,476 37,950 134,426
Transfers from the Statement of HEEEZEBXZR 367 5,133 7,854 13,354
Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfers R ER - 500 (1,944) (1,444)
Balance at 30 June 2013 —E-=FA=1TH#8 367 102,109 43,860 146,336

The notes set out on pages 7 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.
FEREtEE-+-BHMERAMBEHRRC 8



(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L4&#&F5t57R)

Other
Funds
HittEE
Capital Reserves Total Total
Funds Funds
BEEEE s wE Eew
(Note 7)
(Pf=E7)
Balance at 1 July 2011 —E——F+H—R%&8% - 693 693 149,390
Transfers from/(to) the Statement of ER/(ZE)ZENKZR 75 (1,284) (1,209) (15,480)
Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure
Balance at 30 June 2012 —E-T"HFERB=1TH%&H% 75 (591) (516) 133,910
Balance at 1 July 2012 —ES—-"F+HPA—RH#&% 75 (591) (516) 133,910
Transfers (to)/from the Statement of #E(E)/BZENKZR (20) (374) (394) 12,960
Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfers EEMEZEIR - 1,444 1,444 -
Balance at 30 June 2013 —B-=FA=1TH%&R 55 479 534 146,870

The notes set out on pages 7 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE TRUSTEES OF SHAW COLLEGE
CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

FOR THE YEAR EN
BE_F-=FA=THLEER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L{E#ETF5T57R)

Note 2012
FfisE
Operating Activities esER)
Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year REERER/(E1E) (15,480)
Adjustments for: HEIER
Depreciation e 9
Net Realised and Unrealised (Gains)/Loss on HERHMESEIRMREIR 6,136
Trading and Other Securities (Cresti=Es
Interest Income from Bank Deposits RITERFS (21)
Net Realised and Unrealised Exchange Gain E IR MR EIR Z I E SRR R (42)
from Bank Deposits
Dividend Income RERBWA (964)
Operating Surplus/(Deficit) before Changes in EEERETRICKEREN (10,362)
Working Capital (B518)
Decrease in Student Loans BEEMZRD 140
Decrease in Accounts Receivable B8 NHEMBWIRRZ D 19
Increase in Accounts Payable and Accruals FEfTIRFR & FEETE 21BN 91
Increase/(Decrease) in Provision for Employee EEREFIERZ I/ 2)
Benefits
Net Cash Generated from/(Used in) Operating Activities #&&;EENEE/(FRR) R &5 (10,114)
Investing Activities BEER
Payment for Purchase of Fixed Assets EREEEE -
Increase in Time Deposits with Original Maturity FAERBIB = A B ERRTER (21)
over Three Months Z3ghn
Payment for Purchase of Listed Securities -yl o (1,042)
Proceeds from Sales of Listed Securities & LB SRS MIE -
Decrease in Funds Held by The Chinese University EFHREEPXKRERBEZHD 11,023
of Hong Kong
Dividend Received EWEE 105
Interest Received Sl 21
Net Cash (Used in)/Generated from Investing Activities IR &;EREN(FTA)EEZIREFHE 10,086
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents REMRESEMZHD (28)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year REMIREEEY - TR 28
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year RERIREEEY) - FHERER 13 -

The notes set out on pages 7 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.
NEREtEE-+-HMERARMBRRC I -
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TRUSTEES OF SHAW COLLEGE
T UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
HEPX

NOTES TO THE FIN

PATSERRMIEE

The financial statements of The Trustees of Shaw
College (the “College”) reflect the state of affairs of
all the funds of the College at 30 June 2013 and
the College’s results and cash flows for the year
then ended. The assets of the College are vested
in The Board of Trustees of the College under the
provisions of The Chinese University of Hong Kong
Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The HKICPA has issued several new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of
the College. The adoption of the new and revised
HKFRS has no material impact on the College’s
financial statements in the current and previous
period.

The College has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 18).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except otherwise stated in the accounting policies
set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.
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SC8

(a)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the College is set out below.

Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
assets to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Where it can be clearly demonstrated
that subsequent expenditure on an asset has
resulted in an increase in its future economic benefit,
such expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of that asset.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of fixed
assets, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Equipment, Furniture, 5 years
Fixtures and Fittings
Computer Equipment 3 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.

An impairment loss is recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, is more than its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of
an asset, or of the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, is the greater of its fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
assets. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of a fixed
asset are determined as the difference between
the net proceeds and the carrying amount of the
fixed asset and are recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Investments

(i) Investments in securities held for trading are
classified as current assets and are initially
stated at fair value. At each balance sheet date
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

(i) Funds placed with investment managers in
the name of The Chinese University of Hong
Kong comprise bonds and equity investments
managed by independent investment managers.
These funds are stated at fair value and
any change in the fair value of the funds is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure.

(iii) Investments are recognised/derecognised on
the date the College commits to purchase/sell
the investments or they expire.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial insitutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the College has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.
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(e)

(f)

Income Recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the College and the income and expenditure,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, income is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure as follows:

(i) InterestIncome

Interestincome is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

(i) Dividends

Dividend income from listed securities is
recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

(iii) Donations and Benefactions

Donations and Benefactions are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure when the College becomes
entitled to the donations and benefactions and
it is probable that they will be received.

Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the
balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses
on foreign currency translation are dealt with in the
relevant fund accounts through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
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(9)

(h)

Employee Benefits

(i) Salaries, paid annual leave, housing allowances
and the cost to the College of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees of the College.

(i) Contract-end gratuity is payable on completion
of a contract appointment of not less than two
years. The gratuity, together with the total
amount of the College’s contributions to a
particular retirement scheme, will add up to
10% or 15% of the appointee’s basic salary
drawn during the contract period.

(iii) Contribution to defined contribution retirement
plan are recognised as an expense in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure as incurred.

(iv) Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the College demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Related Parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the College if that person:

() has control or joint control over the
College;

(Il) has significant influence over the College;
or

(1) is a member of the key management
personnel of the College or the College’s
parent.

(ii) An entity is related to the College if any of the
following conditions applies:

(I)  The entity and the College are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(I)  One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(Il1) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(IV) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(V) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the College or an entity related to the
College.
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(VI)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i).

Aperson identified in (i)(I) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(Vi)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

(V1)
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(Vi)

BARERKENRSZEERMMNTERERERNRS
P OB EZBEAARZTEEZENKERS -

INTEREST AND INVESTMENT INCOME/(LOSS) F 2 R gBsr/(E548)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TTHITR)
2013 2012
Net Realised and Unrealised Gains/(Loss) BE&EMHEMESEHENAREHK 554 (7,218)
on Trading and Other Securities /(B518) 38
Net Realised and Unrealised Gains on FHREBEPXABRIEEECESE 7,206 1,082
Trading and Other Securities from Funds  REfEHEIRRRER W FHE
Held by The Chinese University of Hong
Kong
Dividends from Listed Securities LTHESRERE 466 964
Interest Income from Bank Deposits RITERFIE 163 21
Net Realised and Unrealised Exchange BEIR AREIR 2 HNE iR 5 291 42
Gain from Bank Deposits
8,680 (5,109)
DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS RIG R IERR
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TTHIR)
2013 2012
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries ISEaS « GRS NIES 3,042 438
College and Student Development Fund ERNEBEREES 13,907 606
16,949 1,044




EXPENDITURE k-2

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT 7TIR)
Staff Cost Operating Total
and Benefits Expenses
BT
KAEFl SER% FEEE]
Learning and Research: EAflg R A5t
Other Academic Services HthZ4 RS 227 180 407
227 180 407
Institutional Support (Note 5.1): E R EEBhARTS (FfIRE5.1):
Management and General BER—MREIE - 80 80
Premises and Related Expenses BF LA - 7,790 7,790
Students and General Education Services B4 R—RHEEH 1,556 3,286 4,842
Other Activities HhEEF5 - 101 101
1,556 11,257 12,813
Total Expenditure for 2013 “S-=FAEZE 1,783 11,437 13,220
Learning and Research: Bii KRR
Other Academic Services Hth20EAR#E 268 189 457
268 189 457
Institutional Support (Note 5.1): S PrumBNARTS (IEES.1):
Management and General EEN—REE - 20 20
Premises and Related Expenses BFAEERH - 6,627 6,627
Students and General Education Services B4R —RHEEE 590 3,871 4,461
Other Activities H{hEEF% - 162 162
590 10,680 11,270
Total Expenditure for 2012 —E-TFETH 858 10,869 11,727




5.1 Analysis of Operating Expenses on Institutional Support EfRHBIRFEHEEREZ S

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TTHIR)
2013 2012
Management and General EEBR—HREIE
General Insurance RIGE 27 11
Depreciation e 53 9
80 20
Premises and Related Expenses BFRERE%ZH
Repair and Maintenance HIERIRE 7,790 6,627
7,790 6,627
Students and General Education Services BYEN—BRHESER
Scholarship and Prizes REBENIES 2,424 2,418
Student Activities B4R 862 1,453
3,286 3,871
Other Activities HhEE%
Miscellaneous FIE 101 162
101 162
11,257 10,680




NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESTRICTED
FUNDS

Capital Funds

Capital Funds represent the balance of net book
value of the Fixed Assets which were financed by
funds with non-designated purpose.

Endowment Funds

Endowment Funds represent donations received
by the College, usually with the stipulation from the
donors that the principal amounts should remain
intact in perpetuity or for a defined time period for
specific purposes.

Other Restricted Funds

Other Restricted Funds represent the unspent
balance of funds donated for the development
of the College. In addition, the Funds also
comprise the unspent balance of donations which
support student scholarships, bursaries and
development.

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF OTHER FUNDS

Capital Funds

Capital Funds represent the balance of net book
value of the Fixed Assets which were financed by
funds with non-designated purpose.

Reserves

Other Reserves represent the unspent balance of
funds generated from college activities.

-
/N

SHEENMERRARE

BEEE®

EEESRHIFNEARNESRENECEENK
EFE -

BAES
BARESERAERWEINEIERIE - BRRREESE

PAREEREAE - BIEFRAEEEABAERE
A& -

HithSAEE
HithSAESEABAERRIERMIREMIE

Lesh - ERNMBSRERIEEFERBEREE - &
BO K S RAVERER o

HtnBEZRHE R RS

BEEES

EEEEEHIFHERENESRENEEEENK
EEE -

filfmE

Hitt B OEEMERTINRERER



8.

FIXED ASSETS ERE&EE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A& 7T5I7R)

Computer Equipment, Total
Equipment Furniture,
Fixtures and
Fittings
i~ AN
= ®E we

Cost HAsE

At 1 July 2011 —F—%tH—H 254 308 562

Additions AN 21 63 84

At 30 June 2012 “E-"HFAA=THZ#ER 275 371 646
Accumulated Depreciation Zitihe

At 1 July 2011 “S——FtHA—Hx#eH 254 308 562

Charge for the Year REEIRE 5 4 9

At 30 June 2012 ZE-THFAA=1THz#ER 259 312 571
Net Book Value at 30 June 2012 =FT—Z_F,xB=1HIRAZRE 16 59 75
Cost A E

At 1 July 2012 —F—=—F+HB—H 275 371 646

Additions b=yl 85 315 400

Disposals HE (22) - (22)

At 30 June 2013 “E—=FxBA=1THx#Hk 338 686 1,024
Accumulated Depreciation FHEHinE

At 1 July 2012 “E-—FtH—Hx#eR 259 312 571

Charge for the Year NEEIRE 17 36 53

Written Back on Disposal HER D (22) - (22)

At 30 June 2013 “E—=FXRBA=1THx&E 254 348 602
Net Book Value at 30 June 2013 Z=—Z—=F;A=1HIREFE 84 338 422




9.

10.

1.

12.

INVESTMENTS BE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (ABEETTTHITR)

2013 2012
Current investments mMENRE
Trading Securities, at Fair Value HERS  RAnBEENTR
Equity Securities, Listed in Hong Kong EEE LA 3,800 3,711
Unit Trusts, Listed in Hong Kong EEE LMNEMETRES 1,065 997
4,865 4,708
FUNDS HELD BY THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG (“CUHK?” or the “University”)
FHRBBPIAE( “XEB” )JIE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TTAIT)
2013 2012
Funds Placed with Investment Managers KEBPIARBERZEFR 34,740 36,640
in the name of CUHK BEERASIZMIE
Marketable Investments in the name of UEBDTAEBZEER 5,263 5,243
CUHK BEEHFNEZNE
Fixed Income Assets in the name of KEBPIARBERZEFR 91,652 83,695
CUHK ERMAEEZNIE
131,655 125,578

Note: Funds held by the University are pooled with other University funds for investment and bank deposits

arrangements in the name of CUHK.

fitEE: FRREEPNXASBRIRHEMABEE —HUKBZRFERERIRITERRE

STUDENT LOANS BEEM
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TTHE)
2013 2012
Student Loans Outstanding REERBEEM 701 811
Impairment Provision for Overdue Student Loans B ERua e iE (139) (139)
562 672
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE +=  EBYIRFR
Accounts receivable is expected to be recoverable FEWIIRFRFREAR — Y E ©

within one year.



13.

14.

15.

CASH AT BANK AND TIME DEPOSITS

RITREHER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT 7T5l7R)
2013 2012
Cash at Bank RITER - -
Time Deposits TEHATER 10,248 3,675
Cash at Bank and Time Deposits in the ~ BEBBRANERITR 10,248 3,675
Balance Sheet EHAER
Less: Time Deposits with Original Maturity if: 7 HAEE =& B EHA (10,248) (3,675)
over Three Months =R
Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Cash IRERERANIRE
Flow Statement KIREEEY - -
Time deposits included the following amount denominated in the following foreign currency:
IRITEEMRERETIIIMNEREMNEEE
(Expressed in thousands)  (IAFi5l7R)
2013 2012
Renminbi AR 8,110 3,017

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS

Accounts payable and accruals include payables
to students from overseas on student exchange
programme.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The College is a not-for-profit organisation and forms
part of The Chinese University of Hong Kong. The
College aims to provide general education and
development activities for University students. The
College defines capital as including various general
and restricted funds balances.

The various funds represent the unspent balance
of donations, grants, and income. These funds are
managed in accordance with the College’s financial
management procedures and the relevant funding
conditions, where applicable.

The College’s primary objective when managing
capital is to safeguard the College’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain a
strong financial base to support the development
of the College.

To achieve the above capital management objective,
the College follows guidelines on investment and
financial management as set out in note 16.

There has been no change in the College’s capital
management practices as compared to prior year.

The College is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirement.
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(a)

(b)

The College’s financial instruments mainly include
bank deposits, studentloans, accounts receivable,
equity securities and funds held by the University,
which are exposed to credit, interest rate, foreign
currency and equity price risks. The risks on
financial assets are controlled in accordance with
the investment guidelines approved by the Finance
Committee under the College’s Board of Trustees.
This is achieved through diversified asset
allocation, rules governing the selection and credit
limits of investment counterparties with reference
to their credit ratings and financial strength. The
Finance Committee reviews investment strategies
and performance periodically to ensure that the
investment objectives and performance targets
are met. A sub-committee under the Finance
Committee meets regularly to manage and monitor
risk exposures associated with respective financial
assets to ensure that appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit Risk

The College’s exposure to credit risk is primarily
attributable to bank deposits and funds held by
the University. For funds held by the University,
the risk is managed by the University’s financial
management policies and practices.

The College places deposits with major financial
institutions with good credit ratings.

Credit risk associated with student loans and
accounts receivable is immaterial to the College
and all doubtful receivables are adequately
provided for.

Interest Rate Risk

The College is exposed to interest rate risk
primarily arising from its bank deposits due to
fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates.
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(c)

As at 30 June 2013, itis estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in bank
deposit interest rate, with all other variables
held constant, would increase/decrease the
College’s surplus for the year by approximately
HK$102,000 (2012: decrease/increase the
College’s deficit for the year by approximately
HK$37,000) and increase/decrease net assets
at the balance sheet date by approximately
HK$102,000 (2012: HK$37,000). This analysis
has been determined assuming that the change
in interest rates had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to the exposure
to interest rate risk for bank deposits in existence
at that date, with an assumption that fixed
term instruments which expire during the next
reporting period will be rolled over at the expiry
of that term at the new market rate.

Foreign Currency Risk

The functional currency of the College is the
Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”). The College’s
monetary assets and liabilities are denominated
mainly in HKD while those denominated in other
currencies are not material. Though the funds
held by the University are also invested in debt
and equity securities denominated in United
States dollars, as the HKD is pegged to the USD,
the College considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between the HKD and the USD
to be insignificant. About 7% (2012: 3%) of the
College’s financial assets are denominated in
RMB, which is expected to appreciate in the long
run. As there is no financial assets denominated
in currencies other than HKD, RMB and USD as
at 30 June 2013 (2012: nil), exposure to foreign
currency risk is not significant.
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(d)

(e)

Equity Price Risk

The College is exposed to equity price risk arising
from equity and unit trust investments listed in Hong
Kong, both classified as trading securities (see
note 9). The Finance Committee and investment
sub-committee of the College closely monitor the
risk of each of the investments to ensure their
suitability as investments for the College. The equity
price risk related to funds held by the University is
managed by professional managers through their
own risk management and assessment policies.
The investment managers’ investment strategies are
governed by the University’s investment and asset
allocation guidelines. The College also monitors the
risk exposure by reviewing periodic reports from the
custodians and investment managers. At balance
sheet date, if the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 5% higher/lower, with all
other variables held constant, the College’s surplus
(2012: Deficit) for the year would have increased/
decreased by approximately HK$966,000 (2012:
decreased/increased by HK$972,000) as a result of
the changes in fair value of listed equity securities.

Fair Values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values as at
30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012. Fair values of
trading securities are based on quoted bid prices at
the balance sheet date. Fair values of funds held by
the University are based on market value quoted by
external fund managers at the balance sheet date.

The amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments:
Disclosures, require disclosures relating to fair value
measurements of financial instruments across three
levels of a “fair value hierarchy”. The fair value of
each financial instrument is categorised in its entirety
based on the lowest level of input that is significant
to that fair value measurement. The levels are
defined as follow:

* Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instruments

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data

* Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured
using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable
market data
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At 30 June 2013, the only financial instruments of the
College carried at fair value were equity securities of
HK$10,128,000 (2012: HK$9,952,000) listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. These instruments
fall into Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy described
above.

Due to the not-for-profit nature of the College and the
composition of the Board of Trustees (being drawn
from private and public organisations), the College
has received from time to time donations from its
Board of Trustees members, key management and
companies controlled or significantly influenced by
them. The receipts of such donations have all been
individually reported to and approved in accordance
with the financial regulations of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong (the “University”) by the
Board of Trustees and the University Council.

All transactions relating to the purchases of
goods and services and capital projects involving
organisations in which a member of the Board of
Trustees may have an interest are conducted during
the normal course of business and in accordance
with the University’s financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures.

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments,
new standards and interpretations which are not yet
effective for the year ended 30 June 2013 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements.

The College is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these amendments,
new standards and new interpretations which is
expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the College’s
results of operations and financial positions.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

HONG KONG

HERAPXARBREERRED

We have audited the financial statements of Morningside
College (the “College”) set out on pages 2 to 17, which
comprise the balance sheet as at 30 June 2013, the statement
of comprehensive income and expenditure and the statement
of changes in funds for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The Committee of Overseers of the College is responsible for
the preparation of financial statements in accordance with the
basis of preparation and accounting policies set out in note 1
to the financial statements and for such internal control as the
Committee of Overseers determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This reportis made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Committee of Overseers, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements of the College as at
30 June 2013 have been prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the basis of preparation and accounting policies
as set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

21 October 2013
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LEHEFITolR)

Note
Pt 2013 2012
Income N
Government Subvention [ ER=4:l] 2,720 2,773
Interest and Investment Income/(Loss) FIRFIZEWA/(E5E) 3 6,906 (793)
Donations and Benefactions LIPS E =R 4 27,807 21
Matching Grants EeditEEE 13,612 -
Other Income EL{g A 5 5,758 3,544
56,803 5,545
Expenditure X 6
Institutional Support ShreBNARE
Premises and Related Expenses BFLBEXH 386 28
Student and General Education Services BER—RHESEHE 11,304 7,240
Other Activities HAth=E7% 719 361
12,409 7,629
Surplus/(Deficit) and Total Comprehensive REERR/(EE) N 44,394 (2,084)
Income for the Year REEEEW

The notes set out on pages 6 to 17 form an integral part of these financial statements.
FIEREAREETLHEZMERTHBERC —55 -
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LT T55F)

Note 2013 2012
Ptk
Non-Current Asset ERBEE
Fixed Assets ErEE 9 - 2
Current Assets mENEE
Funds Held by The Chinese ERRE B AR 10 126,593 81,959
University of Hong Kong B
Accounts Receivable FEMIRTR 1" 125 18
126,718 81,977
Current Liabilities wREaE
Accruals EstER 64 -
Deposits Received b g 304 194
Provision for Employee Benefits EEEF#= R 12 72 94
Net Current Asset REEETHE 126,278 81,689
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities BwEERRISEE 126,278 81,691
Non-Current Liability EREIRE
Provision for Employee Benefits ESEF£ESE 12 406 213
NET ASSETS EEZHE 125,872 81,478
Restricted Funds ERES 7 32,206 5,231
Other Funds HitnE S 8 93,666 76,247
TOTAL FUNDS aeEE 125,872

Approved and authorised for issue by the Committee of Overseers on 21 October 2013

REERREENR_S—=F+A"+— B E RS ERIBEMIZERR

Gerald Lok-chung Chan BR&45R

Leonie Man-fung Ki #2328l

Chairman, ¥[E
Committee of Overseers fRESE

Vice-Chairman, Bl E[E
Committee of Overseers fRES S

The notes set out on pages 6 to 17 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L{&#ETF5T57R)

Balance at 1 July 2011

Transfer from/(to) the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

Balance at 30 June 2012

Balance at 1 July 2012

Transfer from/(to) the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

Balance at 30 June 2013

—g—FtHA—H

BR/(E)ZEKZE

“ES-T"HFxB=1H

—2-—%tA—H

BE/(E)ZEKXZER

—E-=FxA=1H

Restricted
Funds

ERES

(Note 7)

(PFI=E 7)

Other
Restricted
Endowment  Funds Hostel Capital

Funds HtEA Reserves Fund Total
BEES BEE BEMkE BEEES EEEL]
2,661 1,878 86 12 4,637
(167) (496) 1,267 (10) 594
2,494 1,382 1,353 2 5,231
2,494 1,382 1,353 2 5,231
25,913 (396) 1,460 (2) 26,975
28,407 986 2,813 - 32,206




Other

Funds
HitBE
(Note 8)
(Pff=E 8)
uGC
Matching
Operation Block Grants
Funds Grant HEDAEE Total Total Funds
rERE BR&EE HENE L HEBE
7,201 1,092 70,632 78,925 83,562
(619) (293) (1,766) (2,678) (2,084)
6,582 799 68,866 76,247 81,478
6,582 799 68,866 76,247 81,478
1,320 32 16,067 17,419 44,394
7,902 831 84,933 93,666 125,872




NOTES TO

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

INGSIDE COLLEGE

The financial statements of Morningside College (the
“College”) reflect the state of affairs of all the funds
of the College at 30 June 2013 and the College’s
results for the year then ended. These non-statutory
financial statements have been prepared solely for
the information of, and use by the Committee of
Overseers.

These financial statements have been prepared
based on the accounting policies set out below
which are consistent with the recognition and
measurement criteria of the applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”).

The HKICPA has issued several new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
College.

The adoption of the new and revised HKFRS has no
significantimpact on the College’s financial statements
for the years ended 30 June 2012 and 2013.

The College has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 17).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except as otherwise stated in the accounting policies
set out below.

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenditure. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the College is set out below.
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(a) Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets are stated in the balance sheet at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
assets to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Where it can be clearly demonstrated
that subsequent expenditure on an asset has
resulted in an increase in its future economic benefit,
such expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of that asset.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of fixed
assets, less their estimated residual value,if any,
using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Computer Equipment 3 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.

An impairment loss is recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, is more than
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
of an asset, or of the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, is the greater of its fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
assets. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of a fixed
asset are determined as the difference between
the net proceeds and the carrying amount of the
fixed asset and are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure on the date
of retirement or disposal.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

Investments

Funds placed with investment managers in
the name of The Chinese University of Hong
Kong(“CUHK” or the “University”) comprise cash
deposits, bonds and equity investments managed
by independent investment managers. These funds
are stated at fair value and any change in the fair
value of the funds is recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the College has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Income Recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the College and the income and
expenditure, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, income is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure as follows:

(i) Government Subventions
Block grants are recognised as income when
the grants have been received or are receivable
from the University Grant Committee (“UGC”)
and represents the amount allocated to the
College by CUHK.

(ii) Interest Income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.
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(iii) Donations and Benefactions

Donations and Benefactions are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure when the College becomes
entitled to the donations and benefactions and
it is probable that they will be received.

(e) Translation of Foreign Currencies

(f)

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the
balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses
on foreign currency translation are dealt with in the
relevant fund accounts through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Employee Benefits

(i) Salaries, paid annual leave, housing allowances
and the cost to the College of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees
of the College.

(if) Contract-end gratuity is payable on completion
of a contract appointment of not less than two
years. The gratuity, together with the total
amount of the College’s contributions to a
particular retirement scheme, will add up to 10%
or 15% of the appointee’s basic salary drawn
during the contract period.

(iii) Contribution to defined contribution retirement
plan are recognised as an expense in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure as incurred.

(iv) Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the College demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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(g) Related Parties

(h)

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the College if that person:

(0] has control or joint control over the
College;
() has significant influence over the College;

or
() is a member of the key management

personnel of the College or the College’s
parent.

(i) An entity is related to the College if any of the
following conditions applies:

() The entity and the College are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(I One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(Il Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(IV)  One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(V)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the College or an entity related to the
College.

(VI)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i).

(VII) Aperson identified in (i)(l) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with
the entity.

Cash Flow Statement

A cash flow statement has not been prepared
because the College did not have any cash flows
during the year, nor did it have any cash or cash
equivalents at any point throughout the year.

The cash flows resulted from the operations of the
College were all paid/received by CUHK and the
amounts involved have all been accounted for as
currents with CUHK.
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3. INTEREST AND INVESTMENT INCOME/(LOSS) B RIRBEWE/(EE)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L& T55R)

2013 2012
Net Realised and Unrealised Gains/(Loss) EBER&HESSIRL 4,907 (1,421)
on Trading and Other Securities REIRW R/ (B518)EEE
Interest Income from Time Deposits THER R ERESFE 1,134 600
and Debt Securities
Other Interest and Investment Income HithFl S MBS 865 28

6,906 (793)

Note: Interest and investment income/(loss) was derived from Funds held by The Chinese University of Hong
Kong for the years ended 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012.
iz AEEREFENFRAIZEN S/ (BE)BERREBPXARBZRIEFMES -

4. DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS EELEPSEEEN

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LT T55F)

2013 2012

Scholarships, Bursaries and Prizes BB - PESNIES 683 20
College and Student Development Fund ERLELEREES 27,124 1
27,807 21

5. OTHER INCOME H{thig A
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LT T5Im)

2013 2012

Residence Fees and Communal Dining BEKER 3,962 3,281
Miscellaneous Hith 1,796 263
5,758 3,544



6. EXPENDITURE Zih
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L{E#ETF5T5I7R)

2013

2012

Staff Cost Operating Total
and Expenses

Benefits

BT HM

Staff Cost Operating Total

and Expenses

Benefits

BT HM

RiEFl &ERx 5 REN Z2ERX 48

Institutional Support (Note 6.1) Z FREHENARFS (FitaE6.1)

Premises and Related Expenses 12 NEREXH
Students and General Education B4k —iR¥HE

Services S
Other Activities HAEFE
Total Expenditure ]

- 386 386 - 28 28
6,296 5,008 11,304 4,080 3,160 7,240
- 719 719 - 361 361
6,296 6,113 12,409 4,080 3,549 7,629

6.1 Analysis of Operating Expenses on Institutional Support SR RIS EERZ 27
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L& IT5IR)

2013 2012
Premises and Related Expenses BFEEEEXTH 386 28
Repair and Maintenance HIEMRE
386 28
Student and General Education Services B N—RRHESEE
Service Fee ARF5E 353 16
Office Expenses WMAEZH 543 330
Student Activities BARE 129 21
Advertising EE - 5
Training and Development 1ENA R 34 -
Scholarship, Bursaries and Prizes HEE EERES 1,658 1,171
Residence Fees and Communal Dining FEMER 758 558
Residence Hall Expenses BAESHER 1,505 857
Orientation Camp e 28 102
5,008 3,160
Other Activities Hﬂi’.%?%
College Activities and Functions EEE ___ 719 361
719 361

6,113

3,549



7.

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESTRICTED FUNDS

Endowment Funds

Endowment Funds represent donations received by the
College, usually with the stipulation from the donors that
the principal amounts should remain intact in perpetuity
or for a defined time period for specific purposes.

Other Restricted Funds

Other Restricted Funds represent the unspent balance
of funds donated for the development of the College. In
addition, the Funds also comprise the unspent balance
of donations which support student scholarships and
bursaries.

Hostel Reserves

Hostel Reserves represent the unspent balance for hostel
operation.

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF OTHER FUNDS

Operating Reserves

Operating Reserves represent the unspent balance of
funds generated from College activities.

Block Grants

Block Grants represent the unspent balance of government
subvention allocated to the College for College operation
and activities by CUHK.

UGC Matching Grants

The University has set aside $53 million of the UGC
Matching Grants as permanent endowment capital
of the college, to support strategic initiatives such as
endowed scholarships and other indicated activities in
perpetuity. Only investmentincome from these permanent
endowments will be used to fund these programmes.
Other than the above, Matching Grant Funds represent
the unspent balance of Matching Grants generated from
College donations and allocated to the College for use in
operation and activities within UGC guidelines.

t -FREENEELAE

BAES

BTrESRIERWEINRERE - BEREESERLE
BEREAY - BEFEREEECHEAFERERRE -

HitnEHESE

HithSAESBUEARBAERRASRAVBIEIE Lot -
ESNESRENEETERBERBE LEBRIERE -

SR
BEERECEESEENRERR -

N\~ HttBEEMMUER AR

HEHmE
HERMTOEBNERTDNREER -

HF&EE

BiT&BhE EEARBABEABR A IEERFEREENEM
SEENVBATEBR)

HESmAHIE

PESMHHEPHEPHAT=ERTCEEERFEENES
£ - UHRBUNRRIEE - SEEEREE LES
EEE - MEFEENZEEXZL - RAUBEFES IR
REWERT o RIS - BESHERHBEEERES
RWEN IR A R FERMABRIFEREELZMEEN
HESMmMHHE -



9.

10.

FIXED ASSETS ElERZE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB HEFIToImR)

Computer
Equipment
G
Cost A E
At 1 July 2011 and 30 June 2012 —E——%+H—H 43
AZB—"FA=1TH#&ER
Accumulated Depreciation FHEHiRE
At 1 July 2011 “S——FtRA—B#&8H% 32
Charge for the year NEEIRE 9
At 30 June 2012 “E-"HFRB=1H#%% 41
Net Book Value —S—=—fF
at 30 June 2012 ~A=tTHIREEE 2
Cost AN E
At 1 July 2012 and 30 June 2013 —s——F+8—H 43
AZF—=F;B=1+H%&8H%
Accumulated Depreciation SiHipeE
At 1 July 2012 —ES——F+B—HA%Es% 41
Charge for the year NEERE 2
At 30 June 2013 —E—=FA=1Ha4%&H% 43

Net Book Value
at 30 June 2013

—E—=F
ARAETRIREFE

FUNDS HELD BY THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG (“CUHK” or the “University”)

EFHREAEPKREB( “KB” )RR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LT T5Im)

2013 2012
Funds Placed with Investment Managers UEBPIABEZEREFN 53,313 33,259
in the name of CUHK KREBI AT RIE
Fixed Income Assets in the name of UEBDPIAREZHEEFN
CUHK EEWABECRIE 73,280 48,700
126,593 81,959

Note:

Funds held by the University are pooled with other University funds for investment and bank deposits

arrangements in the name of CUHK.
PiEE:
FRREEP X ABRIAEEMABES —HURBEREREARITENRZE -



11. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE FEWIRTR

Accounts Receivable is expected to be recoverable within one year.

BUWOIRMIERR —FAWE -

12. PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS {EE&EFI% (&
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LE#EFTolm)

2013 2012
Contract-end Gratuity b EA 406 307
Other Employee Benefits HiESEF 72 -
478 307

Payable &S :
Within 1 year R—EA 72 94
After 1 year R—F# 406 213
478 307

13. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT +=- BLXERE

The College is a not-for-profit organisation and
forms part of The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
The College aims to provide general education and
development activities for University students. The
College defines capital as including various general
and restricted funds balances.

The various funds represent the unspent balance
of donations, grants, and income. These funds are
managed in accordance with the College and the
University’s financial management procedures and
the relevant funding conditions, where applicable.

The College’s primary objective when managing
capital is to safeguard the College’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain a
strong financial base to support the development
of the College.

To achieve the above capital management objective,
the College follows guidelines on investment and
financial management as set out in note 14.

The College is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirement.

FERBEEPIABNHEP—EMG - BIFFFHE -
FERMIIREREEAREHERHEAAENEE -
FERNEFSFRAEAEE REMESAMRER -

FERNESRFEERZRBANER - BBIRKA ;
HUEREASHMBEEREBR R BRERIFSORE (30
BA) REHE -

FEREEETINIRZERRMIHFERMBIRR LTS
ERE-

FERBRIIRELMBEERES(RMEE14) - LUERLL
FEREERWERE -

FERALAZHIRIMEBEMPIESIRE



14.

15.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The College’s financial assets are in the form of funds
held by the University which are pooled with other
University funds for investment and bank deposit
arrangements in the name of CUHK. Financial
instruments of the University include bank deposits,
fixed income investments and equity securities which
are exposed to credit, liquidity, interest rate, foreign
currency and equity price risks. The University has
established financial management policies and
practices to manage these risks.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Due to the not-for-profit nature of the College and the
composition of the Committee of Overseers (being
drawn from private and public organisations), the
College has received from time to time donations
from its Committee of Overseers members,
key management and companies controlled or
significantly influenced by them. The receipts of such
donations have all been individually reported to and
approved in accordance with the financial regulations
of the University by the University Council.

All transactions relating to the purchases of
goods and services and capital projects involving
organisations in which a member of the Committee of
Overseers may have an interest are conducted during
the normal course of business and in accordance
with the University’s financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures.

+m-

+5-

TR TRREREE

FERMNEMTIETIROEFRRABRE Bk
EMEEGY REERINERERES

BBt R %

HRAERDIIFFEFNEE - FRUIREENEEES
BILERNERE - AERDEEWEIERREZ R
8 AERIBEEAS » REZHNASNZH
EAFENATINEM - BLBMEZE AR LHA
BREGRRBABHERAILER W -

ERERNEREFBEPBENRE - LEE
BIER®WL - Aok ERREEmE T =R
FHRIBERS & BELRS - IRABNIER
AIEEIF R AERIBTE P IETT -



16.

17.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

During the year ended 30 June 2013, management
determined that the amount of Block Grant income
and related expenditure which have been allocated
by the University should be included in the College’s
financial statements. Consequently, the comparative
figures have also been updated to include Block
Grant income and related expenditure amounting to
$2,773,000 and $3,075,000 respectively.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30
JUNE 2013

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments,
new standards and interpretations which are not yet
effective for the year ended 30 June 2013 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements.

The College is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments, new
standards and new interpretations which is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the College’s results of
operations and financial position.

+
Sk
’

+t-

BT

EZS—Z=FRA=THHEE » EEERTIERES
BRI AT & B & 2 WA FNHE R = SR E A E RS
HIRF o ALt - EREFETT T HEARAEMSER
FEBE 2 WA= - 2 Rl5ERE2,773,000 7T
K EH£3,075,0007T ©

REE—F-=FXA=+tHLFESHECHMA
EREMBEET - T LR RRFUREENTE

BEETHBHRRTIZEHIL - FESHMLSR/HS
IHEFHERNEET ~ FRIERINERRBERR-S—=F
ANA=THIEFEEN - FEREHEEZS—=FX
B=tHEEMBHRED - TREPRAKRENNE
HESEHE LR

FERCHARENMIEET RIMEER K2R EF
T - BB IEAELEIT AT £ R Z R
FERMNEBERRUBRAGAEREANRE -



S. H. Ho College
The Chinese University
of Hong Kong

DA S

=@ Sk




EPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

THE CHINESE
BERETNADEEHERRES

F HONG KONG

We have audited the financial statements of S.H. Ho College (the
“College”) setouton pages 2 to 18, which comprise the balance
sheet as at 30 June 2013, the statement of comprehensive
income and expenditure and the statement of changes in funds
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

The Committee of Overseers of the College is responsible for
the preparation of financial statements in accordance with the
basis of preparation and accounting policies set out in note 1
to the financial statements and for such internal control as the
Committee of Overseers determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Committee of Overseers, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements of the College as at
30 June 2013 have been prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the basis of preparation and accounting policies
as set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

15 October 2013

OVERSEERS OF S.H. HO COLLEGE

A UTEE "®M L) SEMIEREEESTNEE
BHER( "EER" NMEHRE - KMBEREERZS—=F5
B=tHmEERERESEXALFENEANIRIESES)
* o LR ERSEBRUZERE MR

RESASERBESMBHRRME - FERER XD BRERM
BHK - USHMBERREEERDRERMBHERALENAREE
#l » DSB